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Corporate Information (Continued)

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.hongkunwuye.com
STOCK CODE

1941

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank
— Beijing Xihongmen Branch
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
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Corporate Information (Continued)
NEEH(E)

Notes: it -

1. With effect from 7 July 2021, Ms. Zhang Chunying has been 1. BT —FtAtARE RERLTE
appointed as an executive Director, Mr. Li Yifan has been ZREAVTES T -AEEBZERKE
appointed as a non-executive Director, and Mr. Leung Ka Wo has HITES  RRNEEBZERBIIER
been appointed as an independent non-executive Director and TEFURERZES - FNEZE SR
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee HEEGWNE - BB F2HAR
and the Nomination Committee. For details, please refer to the AIBEMAZZS—FtALANAL -

Company’s announcement dated 7 July 2021.

2. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the auditor of 2. EEeBER A ETT((BEDHIAL
the Company with effect from 31 December 2020. Crowe (HK) CPA RIZEE B2 =TF+=-A=+—H
Limited (“Crowe”) was appointed as the auditor of the Company BEN - BEEEEB) SAMELIE
with effect from 29 January 2021. RATR(EEREDREZERARRBIZE

B BT A"t NBERER-
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Results Highlights

Financial Highlights
MBERE

For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-HA=+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREFTT
Revenue Wk 336,828 261,405
Gross profit EF 89,630 63,478
Net profit FAE 31,207 20,762
Earnings per share (RMB cent) FREAEFIARE )
— Basic — 5K 7.58 5.40
Revenue Gross profit Net profit
g EX A F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr ARETT AREFTT
350,000 100,000 35,000
300,000 30,000
80,000 -
250,000 - 25,000
60,000 -
200,000 |- 20,000 -
150,000 |- 15000
40,000 - '
100,000 [~ 10,000 -
20,000 -
50,000 - 5,000
0 0 0
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021
BEEEEZERERAT —T-—FFR 5



Financial Highlights
MBERE

THE BREAKDOWN OF TOTAL REVENUE BY TYPE g PRI 5 & 81 5 194 Iy 2 95 &
OF SERVICES

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t—HL=EE

6

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ECEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREFT

Property management services Y EEIRTE 259,197 191,851

Property developer related services Y S 52 P ME A AR % 43,462 45,679

Value-added services BB AR TS 34,169 23,875

Total st 336,828 261,405
SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET EEEEREE

As at 31 December
Rt+=-—A=+—H

2021 2020

—B--F —EETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFTT

Total assets wEE 469,568 427,801

Total liabilities warE 204,999 194,439

Total equity B 264,569 233,362

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following
terms shall have the meanings set out below.

“AGM’
[BRRBFAE]

“Audit Committee”

[EZREE]

“Articles of Association’
[EZF240A]

“Beijing Herun”

[HEm&HE]

“Beijing Hongkun”

[HE 70k |

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

B

“Company” or “our Company”
NS IR NG

“Corporate Governance Code”
[{EEEEFAl

“Deed of Acting in Concert”

[—2TEh324)

Definitions

Bx

RAFHRA - BXERBAEEI U TH
REATIIEE -

the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

B RITOARRRRBFERE

the Board committee established by the Board to supervise the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting procedures and the Company'’s financial
statements review

HEFERUNEZZES  AREZAQRNEH NV BRERFAREQRN
g mEES

the amended and restated articles of association of the Company
RRABIERTMERT A ZIZ4RA

Beijing Herun Asset Management Company Limited* (Jt R & HEEEEGRAF),
a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 13 November
2013 and owned by Mr. Zhao Weihao and Ms. Wu Hong as to 99% and 1%,
respectively

IREaHEERRERAR  —MRZE—=F1+—-AT=ARBHBUEEKIH
BRAF] - ARBBEESEERRITZEDFIEE99% K 1%

Beijing Hongkun Property Management Company Limited* (1t Figih 4512 A
fRA 7)), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 16
July 2010 and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of our Company
IEFEHRYEERERAR  —AR 2T —ZTF A+ NBAREBEFEEEKLNE
AR RARBINEEEZENB AT

the board of Directors of our Company
KABERE

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited (fE2&BIERAER 2 7)), an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 26 March 2019
HEESEZEREBRAT - —EARZZE-—NAF=A= T ~BEHRSHETMAZHE
HRBERAT

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

LR B R 4PTE R R E VR TR

the deed of acting in concert dated 24 July 2019 and executed by Mr. Zhao
Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin whereby they confirmed their acting in
concert arrangements as more particularly set out in “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders and Parent Group — Our Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Acting
in Concert” in the Prospectus. Ms. Wu Hong is Mr. Zhao Bin’s spouse and Mr.
Zhao Weihao is their son. They are together our controlling Shareholders
MEESALE  RULETNBEWAEESENERA - Z-NAFLA-THAN
TERL - Bt HEERT REN—BITHLH - EEFBHARNBRERHH[E
TR AR B R R — HPIEIERRR — —BUTERA P - REA L2l
FHEREE  BEFEERMMANTE T  REHREHRMEVIERIR

HEEEERERAT —Z=—5FRH
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Definitions (Continued)

B=(E)

“Directors”

[E%]

“GFA”
[#EsEEEmETE

“Group”, "Ye Xing Group",

“our Group”, “we” or “us”

[REE] - [5E] - [H25E 5 #M)

“Hongkun Group”
[ imeeE ]

“Hongkun Jituan”

Rk SEINSTE

“Jiangsu Wanhao’

[ERTE

NI#REx]

“Listing”
[

“Listing Date”
[ B B &
“Listing Rules”
[ ErmRAl
“Model Code”
[ME2E<P A

“Parent Group”
[BH5E ]

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

the directors of our Company

RRRHESE

gross floor area
HEEEE

our Company and our subsidiaries, and Chinese entities controlled by the
Company through contractual arrangements

ARE] - EMBARRERRNLTHRARREHNHEER

Hongkun Jituan and its subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures
BHEEANRRENBAR  BEQARREERE

Hongkun Jituan Company Limited* (3§ E B[R A7), a limited liability company
established under the laws of the PRC on 15 September 2014 and wholly-owned
by Beijing Herun

BHEEBERAT - —HRZE—WFNATHAARBFREEZERIHNERAF R
mitRa B8R

Jiangsu Wanhao Property Management Co., Ltd.* (T# B WEREER AR, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 24 September 2003
LEHEEMERBERLAF - —HRZZZ2=FANATHAEFREGMAZHE
REFAF

the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
13 March 2020
ARBMBROR ZEZEF= A+ =AEBIAER LT

13 March 2020, being the date on which the shares of the Company were listed
on the Stock Exchange
ZECEFE=A+=H - BIARRARIRG R FT_ B e B A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, as amended or supplemented from time to time
EEBARSMBRARES WA R RERTSHT

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
TR AR 10FTE ) E T AESHITHE SR HHIRLEST A

Beijing Herun and its subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures
IEREEEREMBAR - BERARREEDRE



“PRC”

[PE

“Prospectus”

[T ER]
“Reporting Period”
(¥R H7)

“RMB”
[AR®]

“SFO”
[ N e 51 )

“Shareholders”

A& E ]
“Shares”
&5 ]

“Stock Exchange”
[Hs 22 P |

“Tianjin Hongsheng”

[REIER

*  For identification purposes only

EE5

Definitions (Continued)

B=(E)

The People’s Republic of China, for the purposes of this annual report, does not
include the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China, the Macao Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
and Taiwan

REARKME  REFEREMES - TEEFEARLMBETERERTHER - F
2 ARAMERFIFRITR RN ZE

the prospectus dated 28 February 2020 issued by the Company, which relates to
the listing of its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
AARTFIEHBARA—ZTS_ZSF_A-—+/)\BNBRER  RAEEERD?
FRER £

E
B3
St

for the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—F+-A=+—HIFE

China’s lawful currency

FEIEEER

the Securities and Futures Ordinance

& 75 MR R

holders of the Shares

Bin A A

ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company
RAF AR EARE(EO.01/E LAY AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
HEMERXHMBRAT

Tianjin Hongsheng Property Services Company Limited* (K2 EYWERKEE
FR/AR]), a limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC on 27
December 2013 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
REBBEYERBERAR  —ARZE—=F+ A=+ BREBEFBUEENL
MBERAR  RARRGINEENB QG

EESEERBRAE —Z-—FFH
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Year in Review

FEXRELE

AUGUST 2021 202158A

A third-party project, “Jiangxi Changzheng Hospital”, was signed, which BEHNE=FHEAENIAERMEER]  #FT
means that we have entered the Jiangxi market. mEmE o

SEPTEMBER 2021 2021594

Acquired Jiangsu Wanhao, the GFA under management increased WETHS S  HEREEBEARIEMNA2.5
significantly by approximately 2.5 million sq.m. BEFAK-

10 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



2021 Honors and Awards
—E-—FREREE

2 =
Ar PR g

2021+ [3 #y b iR 55 F 5 4l

2021 TOP100 Property Management Companies in China

IR E WAL IO, L e BN BRI,
R TR, IO T 20 T R

b SR AR A B A ]
k2021 E IR % R A I

We ranked 40th among the 2021 China Top 100 Property Management Companies
ERHE[ 20217 BIY) 3 AR 7% B ok (b 3K 1 3840161

SI% = -3
-1-1 =
@ CERTIFICATE W

20214 E YNV AR %47 b7 Y5 2 2k

“IEEE M E R E A R AR
EHEIE ‘M - BEHEL”

(ka /'
g # Za

“Hongkun Rhone Valley” project won the 2021 China Property Service Industry Demonstration Base

[Rime IBAB RS S |78 B SR I 2021 7 B W) 3 IRAS 1T R &b i dth |

EESEERBRAE —Z-—FFH 11



2021 Honors and Awards
—E--FREREE
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2021 vp [k AR 55 4 AL il il 2055

: 2021 Top 20 Branded Property Management Companies in North China

E=isainFR L EEAIRAE

L R L MR LS T LT R L

R
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L e L LR S SO (Lt

& oS R R S R R S S R B R S D R A B S R S S R S N ST R AT RN R R

We won the honor “2021 Top 20 Branded Property Management Companies in North China”
ERE[2021 AL an 8 ) 3 AR 7S (2 252058 |

IR I A S N R R M S T S A T A T D A A I et

,
é;ﬂ.
et

G@{M}{O\D

SRR N A

SR RIBNE R IR RS

© 2021 EHDILARS Aol SR E 1008
2021 Top 100 of Most Valuable Brand of China Property Management Service -e:
 EUSEHRIUESEERAT

We won the honor “2021 Top 100 Most Valuable Brand of Property Management Service”
ESE[20211) % IR 75 (b 3 IR E(E 10034 |

12 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited ~ 2020 Annual Report



Dear Shareholders and friends who are interested in Ye Xing Group, | am
honored to present the 2021 Annual Report of Ye Xing Group on behalf of
the Company and the Board of Directors.

2021 was a year of opportunities and challenges for the property
management industry. In the first half of the year, relevant policies were
issued at the national level to clarify the future development direction of
the property management industry, creating strong conditions for the
rapid growth and standardized development of the industry. Property
management enterprises continued to accelerate the pace of moving
forward, successively landed in the capital market and expanded their
scale. At the same time, it is also more rational, firm and in-depth on the
road of intelligent and value-added service construction.

In the second half of the year, with the effect of the real estate market,
the focus of the property management industry gradually changed from
listing to M&A. Property management enterprises expanded rapidly
under the upsurge of M&A, and the industry concentration was further
increased. In this context, property service enterprises adhere to the
development foundation based on quality service, deeply cultivate the
field of value-added services, explore business operation mode, deeply
integrate smart technology, constantly consolidate their competitiveness
and continue to promote the rapid growth and development of the
industry.

Now | will report the consolidated results of the Company mainly from
three aspects, being enterprise development concept and strategy,
annual results performance and future outlook.

ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT AND
STRATEGY

In order to complete the mission of “creating an enjoyable living
environment” (:E AFIERIFLD), Ye Xing Group focuses on creating the
best customer experience and becoming a service provider for a better
life. The Company successfully achieved the strategic model of “Service
+ Six Ecosystems”, namely “Cultural Ecosystem, Financial Ecosystem,
Community Ecosystem, Health Ecosystem, Business Ecosystem and
Education Ecosystem”.

During the year, with the acquisition of Jiangsu Wanhao which locate
in Jiangsu Province and Jiangxi Changzheng Hospital project which is
a third party project locate in Jiangxi Province, the Group has further
advance towards the goal of national layout. Our business currently cover
the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region, the Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone,
the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the Hainan
Free Trade Zone, and other major metropolitan areas, providing living
services to more than 80,000 owners and users.

Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

BHARRARBTEEEENMEM R
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ER®E(RE)

We adhere to the development direction of digitization and intelligence,
combining of “Internet+” to integrate online and offline resources for more
diversified services, and expands services to every segment with the
power of technology. We continuously invest on iterating and upgrading
Hongkunhui*(#§3# &), the existing one-stop online service platform,
H-Butler*(38& %), a mobile application, and other automated technology
solutions such as intelligent parking systems, in order to timely response
to owners’ maintenance needs, enhance maintenance efficiency with
smart dispatching of maintenance work orders as well as provide owners
with high-quality maintenance services focusing on user experience,
attending to owners’ lives anytime and anywhere.

We attach great importance to the development of human resources
and firmly believe that it is the key to the service quality of property
management. In 2021, the Company further enhanced the construction
of talent echelon and prepared to complete the manpower shared
service center for service centralization. Through centralized services,
the Company established unified service standards and processes to
improve efficiency and focus on strategy. With the rapid development
of the Company, it is necessary to continuously promote the existing
talent echelon construction work. At the same time, it is also necessary
to continuously introduce new talents and expand the size of the human
reserve. The Company has established a complete system of talent
selection, job training, comprehensive evaluation, and promotion and
incentives. It is guided by positive incentives to stimulate the enthusiasm
of employees and create a property management and service team that
focuses on value creation.

ANNUAL RESULTS IN 2021

In 2021, the Company achieved revenue of approximately RMB336.8.4
million, an increase of about 28.8% year on year; realized gross profit of
approximately RMB89.6 million, an increase of about 41.1% year on year;
and realized net profit approximately RMB31.2 million, an increase of
about 50.0% year on year. The gross profit margin and net profit margin
in 2021 were 26.6% and 9.3%, respectively, representing an increase of
2.3 percentage points and 1.4 percentage points respectively, compared
with 2020.

As of the end of 2021, the Group’s contracted GFA was approximately
14.2 million square meters, and the total revenue-bearing GFA under
management exceeded 11.8 million sg.m., representing an increase of
29.1% and 55.3% compared with 2020, respectively; the number of the
Company’s managed residential property projects was 53, with a total
revenue-bearing GFA of 10.7 million sg.m., accounting for 90.3% of total
revenue-bearing GFA; and the number of the Company’s managed non-
residential property projects was 20, with a total revenue bearing GFA of
1.1 million square meters, accounting for 9.7% of total revenue bearing
GFA. The non-residential property projects include shopping malls, office
buildings, industrial parks and hospital.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

The Company has been ranked one of the Top 100 Property Management
Companies in the PRC *(FF EI¥) 3 ik 75 B 58 12 %) by China Index Academy
“(HPEIFEEAFEBR) for several consecutive years and ranked 40th in 2021.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

In 2021, property management service industry has embraced a new
round of rapid development under pandemic. Several major mergers and
acquisitions accelerated the integration of the industry. During the year,
we also accelerated the layout of business covering the whole country
through mergers and acquisitions.

Looking forward to 2022, though the COVID-19 pandemic remains
rampant in the world, we expect that the impact of the pandemic in China
will be further minimized due to China’s accumulated experience in
pandemic prevention and control, while the strong domestic demand will
keep driving the economy to continue the recovery path, which provides
a wide range development opportunity for the industry.

We believe that scale expansion is still the mainstream trend in the
property management industry. The Group will continuously leverage
our good industry reputation and excellent track record, the Company
will also be committed to seeking more property management projects
from independent third-party property developers,take the property
management company with standardized management and good
operation status as the potential acquisition target plan. At the same time,
facing the complicated domestic and international economic situation,
the Group will continue to operate prudently, adjust our business strategy
in a timely manner to response different risks in future, to ensure the
sustainable development of the Group.
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Management Discussion And Analysis

BEREFWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW
Business Overview

The Group is a reputable property management service provider offering
comprehensive property management and related services for residential
and non-residential properties in the PRC. Its parent group, Hongkun
Group, is a leading property developer in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
Region and has been ranked among the Top 100 Property Developers
in the PRC* (P EIEHER M2 H58). The Group has been ranked
one of the Top 100 Property Management Companies in the PRC* (
B ERF ER%) by China Index Academy* (FREI35 & 55FT) for
six consecutive years since 2016 and ranked 40th among the Top 100
Property Management Companies in the PRC* (FF Bl 2 RS B 2 b %)
in 2021. Through upholding the Group’s service philosophy of “creating
an enjoyable living environment (EAIEHFL:)" and the dedication
to the Group’s core values of “friendliness, persistence, innovation and
excellence” in delivering its services, the Group envisions to become an
outstanding property management service provider in the PRC. As at 31
December 2021, the Group provided property management services to
properties spanning across 17 cities in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region,
Hainan Province, Hubei Province, Anhui Province, Jiangsu Province,
Shaanxi Province, Jiangxi Province and Shanghai, managing a total
revenue-bearing GFA of approximately 11.8 million sgq.m., comprising
53 residential properties (with over 81,000 units in total) and 20 non-
residential properties.

In 2021, the Company achieved revenue of approximately RMB336.8
million, an increase of about 28.8% year on year; realized gross profit
of approximately RMB89.6 million, an increase of about 41.1% year
on year. The total profit and other comprehensive income amounted
to approximately RMB31.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately 50.0%. The gross profit margin and net profit margin in
2021 were 26.6% and 9.3%, respectively, representing an increase of 2.3
and 1.4 percentage points as compared with 2020, respectively.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Business Overview (Continued)

As of the end of 2021, the Group’s contracted GFA was approximately
14.2 million sg.m., and the total revenue-bearing GFA under management
exceeded 11.8 million sq.m., representing an increase of 29.1% and
55.3% compared with 2020, respectively; the number of the Company’s
managed residential property projects was 53, with a total revenue-
bearing GFA of 10.7 million sg.m., accounting for 90.3% of total revenue-
bearing GFA; the number of the Company’s managed non-residential
property projects was 20, with a total revenue-bearing GFA of 1.1 million
sg.m., accounting for 9.7% of the total revenue-bearing GFA.

The table below sets forth our (i) contracted GFA; (ii) revenue-bearing
GFA; and (iii) number of properties under our management in relation to
the properties for which we had commenced our provision of property
management services, as at the dates indicated:

EEER WD ()

S 7 ol R ()
EEHME(E)

HEZZT-—FK  AEENGNEEER
HE142BBF K EELNGEERR
BRI 8EEF K HEZZE=ZF 55|
#129.1% K55.3% : ARREEFEEIEE
531 « BN EEEEEAR10.7TEEF K
IHAAREEEmMIEN0.3% : KARAREEIF
FEEE20ME  RUEEEEER11BEF
Tk AR BN B EETERN.7% °

TREIARFRABRMAN)ADEER
(i EEEEE  R(RMEEDE
(RBRMCABAEIREMETIERENME
m&)EE :

As at 31 December

B+=A=+—8H
2021 2020
—E-—= —F-F

Residential Properties =
Contracted GFA ('000 sq.m.) (Note) BRBREmME(TERR WL 12,507 9,364
Revenue-bearing GFA ('000 sq.m.) W EEmE (FF 5K 10,670 6,518
Number of properties managed EEMHEEE 53 35
Non-residential Properties FEEEWE
Contracted GFA ('000 sq.m.) (Note) A REEmE (T F 5K W2 1,676 1,633
Revenue-bearing GFA ('000 sq.m.) W s mE (FF 5K 1,147 1,119
Number of properties managed EEMHEEE 20 19
Total et
Contracted GFA ('000 sq.m.) (Note) A REEEE (T F 5K W2 14,183 10,997
Revenue-bearing GFA ('000 sq.m.) W EEmE (FF K 11,817 7,637
Number of properties managed EEMHEEE 73 54

Note:

Contracted GFA refers to the total GFA managed and the total GFA to
be managed by the Group under signed property management service

agreements.

AhBREEREREEREDEBEN LT TR

B EEMEREMERSEIENEEER
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Future Outlook

2021 was a year of honing and opportunities for the property management
industry. Although affected by the overall macroeconomic and the
regulation and policies control on the real estate market, the fundamental
and nature of the development of the property service industry have not
changed. The Group has continuously consolidated its competitiveness,
improved its management system and moved forward with more solid
steps.

1. Expand business scale, enhance multi-business model,
and seize market share actively

At the current stage of the industry development, the scale
expansion is still focus of the Group. We will continue to
concentrate our market expansion on Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei
Region, develop Yangtze River Delta, explore Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and pay attention in Hainan Free
Trade Zone” and expand our scale and strengthen our market
position through acquisition. At the same time of expansion, we
strive to look out for good management and operational standards
in the target property management company as the prerequisite
for potential acquisition.

In addition to the acquisition, we will enter into more strategic
cooperation agreements with high-quality business partners,
and constantly explore the business of business consulting,
project cooperation and joint venture, to expand our business
development model. We will also further optimize the structure,
enhance the layout of the multi-business model, enter more
market segments, accelerate the expansion of non-residential
properties, extend horizontally and vertically, further extend
the service capacity and enrich the management business
type and service content. We will expand and optimize our
professional development team, recruit qualified professionals
from benchmarking companies, actively participate in professional
training in the industry and improve professional standards.

18 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Future Outlook (Continued)

2.

Deeply cultivate diversified value-added services in the
community to create more value for users

Focusing on the needs of owners, the Group continues to
increase the scope of community value-added services, improve
the proportion of value-added services, optimize the revenue
structure, launch the strategic development of “service + six
ecosystems” around community life services, and integrate
multiple services into the property system by taking advantage of
the diversified development of resources and industrial synergy
among multiple business platforms, form a community service
ecosystem. We are committed to becoming a housekeeper for the
customers, so as to provide multi-directional and one-stop asset
management solutions in education, finance, community, health,
business and culture, such as housekeeping services, house
leasing, asset management, house decoration services, etc. by
maintaining and exploring more cooperation opportunities with
well-known businesses in the industry, The successful cooperation
mode is popularized and copied, provides great potential for the
future performance growth of the enterprise, and maintains the
stable growth of performance.

Continuously upgrade the service capacity and create a
warm and happy community

The Group is committed to becoming a better life service provider,
adheres to taking the owner’s service as the core of property
management service, and pays more attention to the continuous
supply capacity of high-quality service while paying attention
to the service quality. By specifying management, constantly
repeatedly calculate the customer service standard system of the
whole life cycle, optimize the service process, create a service
benchmark, form two service product lines of residential and non-
residential to meet the needs of customers of different business
types, realize the systematization and standardization of the whole
life cycle service, and realize the rapid replication of service
standards to escort customer satisfaction.

Looking forward to 2022, under the normative requirements of
policies, with the further development of the property management
industry, people’s demand for services continues to grow, and
the property management industry will still be in a high-quality
track with high growth, high certainty and favorable policies.
The Group will continue to uphold the mission of “creating an
enjoyable living environment” GEAPHERIF L) , take customers
as the center, treat customers sincerely and provide excellent
service, continuously consolidate its competitiveness in growth,
realize high-quality and rapid growth around the three dimensions
of expanding scale, increase revenue and excellent service, and
continue to reward to all employees and shareholders with high-
quality and sustainable growth.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

BB WED (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 5[l R
Results of Operations KB LR

The Group’s revenue was mainly derived from property management
services, property developer related services and value-added services.
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s total revenue
was approximately RMB336.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB75.4 million or approximately 28.8% as compared to
that of approximately RMB261.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the revenue generated
from property management services, property developer related services
and value-added services contributed 77.0%, 12.9% and 10.1% to the
total revenue, respectively.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by type of
services for the periods indicated:

AEENRGZEIEREMEEERY - W
FHEEBEERERISERY BE_T——
FH+ZA=Z+—HILFE AEEMNB K
HBARKI6CEEETL  BREE-_ZT-TF
TZAZT—HLEFENHOARE261.48E
TN ARET5 48 EIT54128.8% © &,
E-E-_—E+-A=1+—RHItFEE Y%
EERRES - MEFREAEERYE KISERS
EEMWZED IMERKERT7.0% ~ 12.9%
10.1%

TR XA AR EFHZ R RIS 5 H)
YR B4R -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ZETF

RMB’000 % RMB000 %

AR¥ETFT % AREFT %

Property management services MEERR% 259,197 77.0% 191,851 73.4%
Property developer related services 122 EEBERYG 43,462 12.9% 45,679 17.5%
Value-added services EE RS 34,169 10.1% 23,875 9.1%
Total 4aEt 336,828 100.0% 261,405 100.0%
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Property Management Services

The revenue generated from property management services increased
by approximately RMB67.3 million year on year, or about 35.1%. Revenue
generated from residential properties increased by approximately
RMB64.4 million or approximately 49.2%, mainly due to (i) the fully
reflected contribution of property management fees from those residential
property projects delivered in the second half of 2020; (ii) 3 newly
delivered residential properties in the year, which generated a total
revenue of approximately RMB4.1 million; and (iii) approximately RMB5.9
million of the property management services revenue was generated
from the 15 residential property projects under management by Jiangsu
Wanhao, a subsidiary that we newly acquired in the fourth quarter of 2021.
Revenue generated from non-residential properties increased slightly by
approximately RMB3.0 million or approximately 4.9%, primarily because
2 non-residential properties were newly delivered in the year and the
disposal of a subsidiary Tianjin Hongsheng which holds 2 non-residential
properties with under expectation performance in order to optimize our
properties portfolio under management. The GFA under management
increased from 7.6 million sq.m. for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
11.8 million sg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total revenue-bearing
GFA and our revenue derived from the property management services by
type of properties as at the dates indicated and for the periods indicated:

EEER WD ()

Bt 7 (ol R ()
MR EIER

MEE R R EENRRIRFIE MO ARE
67.3E 8T HAI35.1% - EEWEMUE
EINWARE64 4B ETLHEL49.2% £ B
HRORZEZEF T EEIMNNEEDE
HMEBNERE T2 R (VERFTRH
FEME=ME HTEEREHAREAA
BETT - AR (i) Uk i B — fRIF B & B &
Ex HI-AAEEEEDEENTEED
¥EERBBRGEHARESOEET : MIEE
EMERNWEBEIEMHARBI.0BETL
#14.9%  TEARFATINIETEMER
@ teoh - BB EEMENES  REE
HETHAMERRARMIEBNIEFEEDE
MNBARRERE -EEREARBRESR
TECEFF - A=+—HILEFENTEES
FkENEHE T —F+_A=+—
BItEEM11.8EEF K -

TREINNAR B H R AR R I8 K
BREMBERYEEERBUWRIZY FER
B0 H AR -

As at/Year ended 31 December

RtZA=+-R/BERALEE

2021 2020
“E--% 22
Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue
BREEEE Wi bHREERE Wz

000 sq.m. % RMB000 % 000 sq.m. % RMB000 %
FEIA %  AEETR % FFHH* % NEETI %
Residential properties TEnE 10,670 90.3% 195,230 75.3% 6,518 85.3% 130,826 68.2%
Non-residential properties ~ JFEENE 1,147 9.7% 63,967 24.7% 1,119 14.7% 61025 31.8%
11,817 100.0% 259,197 100.0% 7,637 100.0% 191,851 100.0%
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

BB WED (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Property Management Services (Continued)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total revenue-bearing
GFA and our revenue derived from property management services by

Bt 7 (ol R ()
M EIR R (8)

TRE}FIATR B H PR B IR A A2 1
HEEEELYMEETERBEEIRYENE

type of property developers as at the dates indicated and for the periods PIERTYE S KRR
indicated:
As at/Year ended 31 December
RT=B=+-B/HZAALEE
2021 2020
“B--F —EC%F
Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue
hRREER Wi WHRERE e
000 sq.m. %  RMB000 %  000sqm. % RMB000 %
FEIA % ARETT % FEIR % AEEFT %
Hongkun Group BAEE 9,144 77.4% 245,650 94.8% 7,488 98.0% 185,314 96.6%
Third party property developers =7 11EE%%E 2,673 22.6% 13,547 5.2% 149 20% 6,537 3.4%
11,817 100.0% 259,197 100.0% 7,637 100.0% 191,851 100.0%

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total revenue-bearing
GFA and our revenue derived from property management services by
revenue model as at the dates indicated and for the periods indicated:

TRE}FIRATR B H R PR B IR A A2 1
HEEEELYEETERBEERERER
104N -

As at/Year ended 31 December

RtZA=t-B/BERALFE
2021 2020
~B--F 13
Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue
hERERE Wi W REEE el

000 sq.m. % RMB000 % 000 sq.m. % RMB000 %
FELH %  AREFT % FFHH* % NEETT %
Lump sum basis 2k 10,791 91.3% 247,976 95.7% 6,832 89.5% 181,215 94.5%
Commission basis kA 1,026 8.7% 11,221 4.3% 805 10.5% 10,636 55%
1,817 100.0% 259,197 100.0% 7,637 100.0% 191,851 100.0%
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Property Management Services (Continued)

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total revenue-bearing
GFA and our revenue derived from property management services by
geographic coverage as at the dates indicated and for the periods
indicated:

EEER WD ()

B 7% 120 e (4D
W E IR IR ()
TRMFURFTR B E R R R B AP 1K

AEREEBENRYEERRB KGRI ES
HEFIDHFA

As at/Year ended 31 December

RT=R=1-R/BEZALEE

2021 2020
“B--F e 23
Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue Revenue-bearing GFA Revenue
hEREEE g WaEEmE g

000 sq.m. % RMB'000 % 000 sq.m. % RMB 000 %
FEGIA %  AREFT % FEIA %  AREFI %
Beijing IR 2,703 22.9% 95,360 36.8% 2,240 29.3% 91,209 47.5%
Tianjin X2 1,331 11.2% 48,645 18.7% 939 12.3% 22,498 11.7%
Hebei Province b 3,426 29.0% 72,535 28.0% 3,100 40.6% 50,954 26.6%
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region ~ RE2EHE 7,460 63.1% 216,540 83.5% 6,279 82.2% 164,661 85.8%
Hainan Province BEE 515 4.3% 8,688 3.4% 511 6.7% 8,410 4.4%
Hubei Province A 504 4.3% 13,149 5.1% 428 5.6% 7,868 4.1%
Shaanxi Province RRE 42 0.3% 2,756 1.1% 42 0.5% 2,824 1.5%
Anhui Province ) 470 4.0% 4,232 1.6% 157 21% 2,610 1.4%
Jiangsu Province ThE 2,713 23.0% 12,040 4.6% 128 1.7% 3,003 1.5%
Shanghai Lt 92 0.8% 1,437 0.6% 92 1.2% 2,475 1.3%
Jiangxi Province ki) 21 0.2% 355 0.1% - - - -
11,817 100% 259,197 100.0% 7637 100.0% 191,851 100.0%

Property Developer Related Services

The revenue generated from property developer related services
decreased slightly by approximately RMB2.3 million or about 5.0% from
approximately RMB45.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB43.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
This was mainly due to the continuing impact of the pandemic which
led to a decrease in revenue generated from sales assistance services
amounted to approximately RMB6.2 million or approximately 21.9%, which
was partly offset by the increase in planning and design consultancy
and inspection services fees amounted to approximately RMB2.7 million
and the increase in post-delivery maintaining service fee amounted to
approximately RMB2.0 million.

V5% 7 3 P AR RA AR

MEREHBRREEENUEHREE T
—TEEF A=+ HUEFENHARE
ASTEEBTLERLOARKE23EELHL
50%E28E_T-—F+-A=+—HLHF
EHARBAZABETT - TZEARTRER
BEE  BEBRBERABRIHOARKC2ES
Tk #121.9% ¢ B0 IG N AR B R Rt eE
AR ERSEHOARE2 78 BT RIE N
MR BEERBBHARE2.08E AR
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)
EEENWED ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) Bt 7% 5 B (4K)
Property Developer Related Services ) 5 AR R AR TS

The following table sets forth a breakdown of number of property TREIIRAT BB RARA AR ERE
developer related services projects and our revenue derived from B RTSIE B B8 KRB MR Y EF e
property developer related services by geographic coverage as at the ARG R IR B EFE S 5 A
dates indicated and for the periods indicated:

As at/Year ended 31 December
WH=B=t+-B/8BEZ%ALEE

2021 2020
~B--% ZEC%F
Number of Number of
projects Revenue projects Revenue
BEEYA Kz EEYE Iz
RMB'000 % RMB000 %
ARBTFT % ANREFT %
Beijing IR 1 4,859 11.2% 7 12,831 28.1%
Tianjin P2 4 10,676 24.5% 5 6,451 14.1%
Hebei Province i) 1 21,259 49.0% 11 14,838 32.5%
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Region REEHE 16 36,794 84.7% 23 34,120 74.7%
Hainan Province etk 1 951 2.2% 1 305 0.7%
Hubei Province Hita 2 3,086 7.1% 2 4,944 10.8%
Jiangsu Province ThA 1 1,008 2.3% 1 3,810 8.3%
Anhui Province ZHE 1 52 0.1% 1 201 0.4%
Guangdong Province BERE 1 1,571 3.6% 1 1,331 2.9%
Shanghai B - - - 1 968 2.2%
22 43,462 100.0% 30 45,679 100.0%
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)
EEENWED (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) B 7% (21 (40
Value-added Services E(E RS

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue derived from TREHIAFTR B I PR EE RS UK B
our value-added services for the periods indicated: AR4H :

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—BLFE

2021 2020
—B--F —EETF
Revenue Revenue
Wz Wz
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥FT % ARBFr %
Home living services (Note 1) REEERS Wi 1) 12,667 37.1% 12,749 53.4%
Leasing of common areas (Note 2) QKRS (F1772) 20,540 60.1% 10,410 43.6%
Others A 962 2.8% 716 3.0%
34,169 100.0% 23,875 100.0%
Notes: W
(1) Our home living services primarily included our collection of electricity (1) HPNRELEERETERIERMFWEE
tariffs, air-conditioning and heating fees, household repair and 5. THMEES  mRMOATENTES
maintenance service provided to property owners and residents of our IEFEEMENETIREFPIREIEBEHER
managed residential or non-residential properties. RERT ©

(2) Our leasing of common areas primarily represented the leasing of (2) RAWEEAEESEEZEEHBRMRE

certain common areas of our managed residential or non-residential BEESFTEVENET AR TE
properties to third-party services providers for setting up advertisement = RIS ERE AR L B S EAE - ARERK
lightboxes, distilled water vending machines, screens in lifts and other EEH BT IREEREMBRNE -
facilities.

The revenue generated from value-added services increased significantly MERSEENNESHEE -_ZE-_ZEF+=

by approximately RMB10.3 million or about 43.1% from approximately A=+—BHIFEEMNHARE23 9B LA
RMB23.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately TE1E N ARKA10.3E B LKk 443.1% 2 &
RMB34.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was E2-FE-—F+-_A=+—HILFEEHHA
mainly due to (i) the increase of residential properties under management R4 2HET - WINFEHRR()ENES
of 18 in the year and an approximate 50.0% increase in the total number FEBE LM T18(E - F 1IN T 427,000
of units of approximately 27,000 units of households, and (i) our Group Pa#4150.0% « R(i)ANEESREL LR -
has allocated more resources include setting up a team to develop the B B AR EIRE R -
business of value-added services.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

EEE WD ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Cost of Services

Our cost of services primarily consist of (i) labour costs which arise mainly
from the security, cleaning and gardening services; (ii) subcontracting
costs; (iii) utility expenses; (iv) office expenses; and (v) maintenance
costs.

Our cost of services increased by approximately 24.9% from
approximately RMB197.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB247.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
This increase was primarily attributable to (i) the continuous increase in
number of our projects under management and total revenue-bearing
GFA; (ii) the discontinuation of reduction in national social security benefit
for employees in 2021; and (iii) the increase in resource investment
include setting up a team to develop the business of value-added
services.

To maximise our cost and operational efficiency, we outsourced our
cleaning, gardening, equipment maintenance, site security services and
car park management to Independent Third Party subcontractors. We
believe that the subcontracting arrangement allows us to leverage the
resources and expertise of the subcontractors, reduce our operating
costs, and enhance our overall efficiency and profitability.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the gross profit of the Group
was approximately RMB89.6 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB26.1 million or approximately 41.1% as compared to
approximately RMB63.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The gross profit margin was 26.6% for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 24.3% for the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase in gross
profit margin was mainly due to the significant increase of revenue from
value-added services which had relatively high gross profit margin.

Selling Expenses and Administrative Expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of (i) promotional
expenses; (ii) salaries and allowances for our sales personnel; and (iii)
travelling and entertainment expenses. The total selling expenses of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 were approximately
RMB1.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB1.3
million or approximately 56.5% as compared with approximately RMB2.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease primarily
attributed to to the significant decrease of promotional activities due to
the continuously effect of COVID-19 epidemic.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Selling Expenses and Administrative Expenses (Continued)

Our administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) salaries and
allowances for our administrative and management personnel in our
headquarters; (ii) travelling expenses; (iii) professional fees; (iv) lease-
related expenses and (v) bank charges.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the administrative expenses of
the Group were approximately RMB43.7 million, representing an increase
of approximately RMB10.4 million or approximately 31.2% as compared
to approximately RMB33.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. This increase was mainly due to (i) the continuous increase in
number of our projects under management and total revenue-bearing
GFA; (ii) the discontinuation of reduction in national social security
benefits for employees in 2021; and (iii) the increase in headcount of our
headquarters to cope with our continuous business expansion.

Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2021, other income of the Group
amounted to a net revenue of approximately RMB4.1 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB4.9 million or about 54.4% as compared
to that of approximately RMB9.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The decrease was mainly because no interest income arose from
loan receivables in 2021.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the income tax expense of the
Group was approximately RMB13.0 million (2020: approximately RMB11.1
million).

Profit for the Year

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net profit of the Group
was approximately RMB31.2 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB10.4 million or approximately 50.0% as compared to
that of approximately RMB20.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, which was mainly due to (i) the increase in gross floor area of
properties under management by the Group and (ii) the growth in revenue
generated from community value-added services.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets of the Group were
approximately RMB469.6 million (as at 31 December 2020: approximately
RMB427.8 million), and the total liabilities were approximately RMB205.0
million (as at 31 December 2020: approximately RMB194.4 million). As at
31 December 2021, the current ratio was 1.9 (as at 31 December 2020:
2.1).

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group had no
outstanding bank borrowings and undrawn banking facilities.

The Board will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents and maintain a strong liquidity
position to ensure that the Group is able to take full advantage of future
growth opportunities.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Our property, plant and equipment included (i) our building for our
staff quarters; and (ii) our furniture, fixtures and equipment in our office
premises and management offices and sites. Our property, plant and
equipment was approximately RMB38.0 million as at 31 December
2021, representing an increase of approximately RMB20.2 million or
approximately 113.5% as compared with that of approximately RMB17.8
million as at 31 December 2020. It was primarily attributable to the new
office acquired in the year with RMB22.8 million, which was patrtially off
set by the depreciation charged for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 September
2021 for further detail of the acquisition of office.

Intangible Assets

Our intangible assets of approximately RMB18.9 million as at 31
December 2021 representing a significant increase of approximately
RMB15.4 million or approximately 440.0% as compared with that of
approximately RMB3.5 million as at 31 December 2020. Approximately
RMB2.5 million is attributed to the mobile applications, Hongkunhui* (%
#E) and H-Butler* (5%E %) acquired from Hongkun Group in June 2019,
which were initially measured at cost of acquisition of RMB5.0 million and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation (with useful
life of five years) and impairment losses and approximately RMB 16.4
million resulted from the acquisition of Jiangsu Wanhao.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Right-of-use Assets

Our right-of-use assets represented our right to use our leased assets
(i.e. office premises and staff quarters) with lease terms of over one year,
which was initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses under HKFRS 16.

Our right-of-use assets increased by approximately RMBO0.4 million or
about 50% from approximately RMBO0.8 million as at 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB1.2 million as at 31 December 2021.

Goodwill

Our goodwill was approximately RMB29.3 million as at 31 December
2021, representing an increase of approximately RMB27.8 million or
approximately 1,853.3% as compared with that of approximately RMB1.5
million as at 31 December 2020. The increase was primarily attributable
to the goodwill generated from the acquisition of Jiangsu Wanhao, which
was initially measured at cost, being the excess of the total consideration
transferred over the net amount of identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed arising from the acquisition of Jiangsu Wanhao, and
partially offset by the decrease of goodwill from disposal of Tianjing
Hongsheng.

Trade and Other Receivables

Our trade and other receivables increased by approximately RMB71.6
million or about 192.5% from approximately RMB37.2 million as at
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB108.8 million as at 31
December 2021 mainly due to the increase in our trade receivables.
Our trade receivables increased by approximately RMB18.8 million from
approximately RMB29.2 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB48.0 million as at 31 December 2021 mainly due to the continuous
growth in our business, in which approximately RMB5.9 million of our trade
receivables are attributed to Jiangsu Wanhao which is newly acquired
in the year. Approximately RMB23.6 million of our trade receivables as
at 31 December 2021 had been recovered as at the date of this annual
report. And the Group has entered into a sole agent service agreement to
facilitate the sale of car park spaces and paid the deposits to secure the
sole agent status. Pursuant to the relevant agreement, the amount shall
be refunded within twelve months from the end of reporting period. As at
31 December 2021, the balance was approximately RMB38.5 million.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Amounts due from Related Parties and Fellow
Subsidiaries

Trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Our trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries mainly represented
the outstanding balances to be received from the Parent Group mainly
in respect of the provisions of our property management services and
property developer related services.

Our trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries increased by
approximately RMB27.4 million or about 35.4% from approximately
RMB77.3 million as at 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB104.7
million as at 31 December 2021.

Non-trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Our non-trade nature amounts due from fellow subsidiaries of
approximately RMB11.3 million and RMB1.6 million as at 31 December
2020 and 2021 respectively. The amount mainly represented the deposit
paid to the fellow subsidiary to secure the sole agent status of the sale of
car park spaces. Pursuant to the relevant agreement, the amount shall
be refunded upon completion of the sale. The balances were unsecured
interest free and repayable on demand.

The Directors confirmed that, other than the above-mentioned security
deposit arising from the acquisition of business, we do not have any
non-trading related balances with related parties (including our fellow
subsidiaries) after the Listing.

Trade and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2021, the trade and other payables were
approximately RMB116.7 million, representing a slightly decrease of
approximately RMB8.8 million or about 7.0% as compared to that of
approximately RMB125.5 million as at 31 December 2020. In which our
account payables were approximately RMB37.0 million, representing
a slightly decrease of approximately RMBO0.8 million or about 2.1% as
compared to that of approximately RMB37.8 million as at 31 December
2020. As the increasing weighting of subcontracting cost, we have
restored the settlement speed of supplier as that before the COVID-19
epidemic, in order to maintain the relationship with suppliers and bargain
better price.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Contract Liabilities

Our contract liabilities primarily represented the payments in advance
from our customers for the provision of our property management
services because pursuant to the property management service
agreements, we usually charge a fixed amount of fees by issuing demand
notes to property owners and residents, which are generally required
to be paid in advance on an annual basis for residential properties and
a monthly or quarterly basis for non-residential properties. Our contract
liabilities increased by approximately RMB13.3 million or about 19.6%
to approximately RMB81.2 million as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31
December 2020: approximately RMB67.9 million), which was mainly due
to the increase of 18 residential properties under management in the year.

Asset Pledged

As at 31 December 2021, none of the assets of the Group was pledged.

Proceeds from the Listing

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
13 March 2020 and 100,000,000 new Shares were issued. The over-
allotment option was partially exercised and 5,310,000 new Shares were
issued on 3 April 2020. After deducting the underwriting fees and relevant
expenses, net proceeds from the Listing amounted to approximately
HK$129.4 million (equivalent to approximately RMB116.2 million). The net
proceeds from the Listing were higher than that stated in the Prospectus,
due to a higher final issue price than the median of the range of offer
prices stated in the Prospectus and lower-than-expected underwriting
fees. Such proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent with that in
the Prospectus which is detailed as follows:
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)
EEENWED (&)

Disclosure in the Prospectus

RERERTHESR
Proceeds Proceeds
Approximate planned to planned to
net proceeds  Approximate be utilised be utilised
Intended use utilised percentage in 2020 in 2021
HE U HE A
BREZ ZBCBE “B--F
Eralics) B BAZ BAZ
RERE RERE BAl &R i
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)  (HK$ million)
(BZ#T) (BZ#T) (B&#7)
Expansion of geographic presence and scale of BABRMIERERE R EHE
operations in the PRC 64.4 65.0% 61.3 3.1
Development and enhancement of our information % REARMOEN R RAMEIR
system and technological initiatives 129 13.0% 129 -
Expansion of our value-added services B E RS 9.9 10.0% 47 52
Staff development BT%R 20 2.0% 20 -
General working capital —fREEES 98 10.0% - -
Total 3t 9.0 100.0% 80.9 83
Due to the abovementioned reasons, the net proceeds from the Listing AR EMRE - EWATSRIEFERME
increased to HK$129.4 million and therefore our expected usage 120.4B 8% - Bt R MM BB BRI LS
increased proportionately as follows: N
As at 31 December 2021
BE-E--E1-B=1-H
Actual Proceeds
amountof  Approximate Proceeds notyet Proceeds planned to
Intended use netproceeds  percentage utilised utilised  be utilised in 2022
FIf kit
ReRg ERMERERE  BAEAL CBRMSNE ABRAKEIE BRZHEHE
(HKS millon) (HKS millon) — (HK$ million) (HKS million)
(BE#7T) (G&%r)  (BE#T) (5&%7)
Expansion of geographic presence and scale of BAAMM BN ERERIERE
operations the PRC 84.1 65.0% 470 311 374
Development and enhancement of our information REREARMOERZEREMGEN
system and technological initiatives 16.9 13.0% 0.7 16.2 16.2
Expansion of our value-added services MR ERS 129 10.0% 34 95 95
Staif development BI%E 26 20% - 26 26
General working capital -fReE4% 129 10.0% 57 72 72
Total @ 1294 100.0% 56.8 726 726
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Proceeds from the Listing (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has utilized part of such proceeds
according to the use as set out in the Prospectus. Approximately
RMB47.0 million, representing approximately 36.3% of the actual amount
of net proceeds, was utilized for expansion of geographic presence
and scale of operations the PRC, including acquiring Jiangsu Wanhao;
approximately RMBO0.7 million, representing approximately 0.5% of
the actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for development and
enhancement of our information system and technological initiatives,
include building up a resident communication database; approximately
RMB3.4 million, representing approximately 2.6% of the actual amount
of net proceeds, was utilized for expansion of our value-added service,
include setting up a business development team; and approximately
RMB5.7 million, representing approximately 4.4% of the actual amount of
net proceeds, was utilized for the general working capital.

Due to the significant increase in the number of acquisitions in the
property management industry currently, the uncertainty of acquisition
pricing raised, we adopt a more cautious attitude towards the evaluation
of acquisition objectives. Therefore, our progress in utilizing the proceeds
from listing was delayed comparing with the plan. The expected timeline
for utilising the unutilised proceeds will be one year, which is based on
our best estimation and will be subject to change in market conditions.
The unutilized proceeds as at 31 December 2021 were deposited in the
bank accounts.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposals

On 24 September 2021, Beijing Hongkun (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) and Beijing Lianyou Enterprise Consulting
Company Limited* (AL REBHMED AR AR A A]) (“Beijing Lianyou”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Beijing
Lianyou agreed to dispose of, and Beijing Hongkun agreed to acquire,
100% of the equity interest in Jiangsu Wanhao. The consideration for the
acquisition was RMB47.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$56.6
million). Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24
September 2021 for further details.

Upon completion of the acquisition, Jiangsu Wanhao has become an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its results have
been consolidated into the Group’s results since October 2021.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
investments.
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Management Discussion And Analysis (Continued)
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2022 AGM will be held on Tuesday, 31 May 2022 and the notice of
the 2022 AGM will be published and despatched to the Shareholders in
the manner as required by the Listing Rules in due course.

DIVIDEND

No final dividend was recommended by the Board for the year ended 31
December 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 792 employees. Staff
costs for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
RMB98.6 million.

The Company’s policy for determining the remuneration payable to
Directors is based on the skills, knowledge, involvement and performance
of individual Directors, with reference to the Company’s profitability, the
level of remuneration in the industry and prevailing market conditions.
To ensure that the remuneration committee of the Company can better
advise on the Group’s future remuneration policies and related strategies,
the remuneration committee of the Company is informed of the Group’s
existing remuneration policies and succession plans (e.g. guidelines for
determining staff remuneration packages and relevant market trends and
information).

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group
contributes to the PRC social security fund (including pension insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, maternity insurance and
work injury insurance) and housing provident fund for its PRC employees.
The Group’s full-time employees in the PRC participate in a number of
government-sponsored defined contribution retirement schemes under
which employees are entitled to a monthly pension calculated according
to certain formulas. The relevant government agencies assume the
responsibility of pension payments to these retired employees. The
Group makes monthly contributions to these pension schemes. Under
these schemes, the Group has no obligation for post-retirement benefits
other than the contributions made. Contributions to these schemes
are expensed as incurred and contributions made to these defined
contribution pension schemes on behalf of an employee cannot be used
to reduce the Group’s future obligations under these defined contribution
pension schemes even if the employee leaves the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Wu Guogqing (= B %)

Ms. Wu Guogqing ( R Bl % ), aged 47, is our executive Director and the
Chairman of our Board. She joined our Group on 7 January 2014 as a
general manager of Beijing Hongkun, where she was responsible for
the overall management, strategic planning and day-to-day business
operations. She was appointed as the chairman of the board of directors
of Beijing Hongkun on 18 February 2019. Ms. Wu Guoging was appointed
as our Director on 26 March 2019. She was redesignated as our
executive Director on 24 July 2019. Apart from being the chairman of the
board of directors of Beijing Hongkun, Ms. Wu Guoging is also its legal
representative and general manager. She is also the general manager of
Beijing Hongkun Property Management. Ms. Wu Guoging is responsible
for the overall management and business operations of our Group,
including formulating strategies and operational plans, supervising the
working progress of various departments, and making daily business
decisions for our Group.

Ms. Wu Guoging has more than 19 years of experience in the property
management services industry in the PRC. Prior to joining our Group,
she worked at Beijing Vanke Property Service Company Limited* ( it =
ERMERBEMR A A ), a company principally engaging in providing
property management, property agency, property pre-delivery and sales
assistance, consulting and real estate brokerage services, from March
2002 to January 2014 with her last position as director ( # £ ), where
her major job duties included strategic execution, overseeing property
management projects and management of human resources. Before
that, Ms. Wu Guoging had had work experience in the hotel management
industry.

Ms. Wu Guoqging became the vice president of Hebei Property
Management Institute (JA/ b & ¥ EIRITEWRE ) in January 2018, the
first member of Law and Policy Working Committee of China Property
Management Institute ( FEI¥ ¥ EEHEAEREIEZEE ) in 2019,
CIH CM Chartered Member of CIH Chartered Institute of Housing ( 2£Ed
HHEREGIEEE ) in 2020 and the president of Beijing Xihongmen Town
Property Service Institute ( 3t R FAALFIEEY) 2 AR ESEER ) in 2020.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENEREERE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

She was awarded “China’s Property Management Innovative Person
in 2017* (2017 R B ¥ B 2 &% 77 A% )" in 2017 by China Property
Management Magazine* ({FR EI¥1 % & 1) # 554t ), "China’s Outstanding
Property Manager in 2018* (2018 R EIEF ¥ E4LIE A )’ in 2018 by EH
Consulting ( {2 %8 & ), "China’s Innovative and Entrepreneurial Leader
In 2019* (2019 7 B¥ &1 %7 Al 2 B ¥ A ¥ )" in 2019 by Xiou Net* ( % BX
#49) > “Industry Influential People In 2019* 2019 FE{TEEEAY )" in
2019 by The China Finance Summit ( 2 B Bf 4 I& & ), "Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Leader of the Year 2019"* (2019 4F & b B A 37 Al 2 5B #h
A1) in 2019 by the 7th China Innovation and Entrepreneurship Leaders
Summit* ( EEH BIAIFTAIZEMHIES ) and "2020 Top 30 CEOs”™ (2020
fFZ CEO 30 38 ) in 2020 by Leju* ( &FE 4 ).

Ms. Wu Guoging graduated from Hainan University (/88 A2 ) in Hainan
Province, the PRC in December 1995 with her profession in international
trade. She was qualified as a certified property manager (=t EIEAD)
by the MOHURD in August 2013.

Mr. Zhao Weihao (i 2%)

Mr. Zhao Weihao ( #f&% ) (formerly known as Zhao Liang ( #5% )), aged
28, is our executive Director. He joined our Group as a director of Beijing
Hongkun on 6 December 2017, where he is responsible for the overall
management and day-to-day business operations. He was appointed
as our Director on 26 March 2019 and redesignated as our executive
Director on 24 July 2019. Mr. Zhao Weihao is responsible for the overall
development and major business decisions making of our Group.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EEREHREERE (&)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) HITEE ()

Mr. Zhao Weihao has relevant experience in business administration and HERTERTRINEERYETERES
the property industry in the PRC. Among others, he holding the following MRS - B - AR BIRE N FIBRAL -
positions in the PRC:

Company name Period of time Principal business of the company Position

ARER 3 DARATEEH B

Beijing Hongkun Weiye Real Estate August 2019 to Present Real estate development Director
Development Co.Ltd

R EEENEREERAF “T-NENAES FiERE £

Shenzhen Municipal Coast Xingtai Real August 2018 to present Real estate development, provision Director
Estate Company Limited* of real estate brokerage services, and property
(FYMEFRREEBRAF) leasing

AEFEREEERAR —E-N\ENAES FERE  REEHECCRERDERE £

Mr. Zhao Weihao graduated from Boston University in Massachusetts, the HERTERZS—NFNLAZEREES
United States in September 2016 with a bachelor's degree in economics T #& 22 M /)R £ 18 K 2 (Boston University) -
and computer science. BISEBRRETHMRIZE B o
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENEREERE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Ms. Li Yin Ping ( Z#5% )

Ms. Li Yin Ping ( Z= # 3 ) (also known as Florence Li), aged 45, is our
executive Director. She was appointed as our Director on 26 March 2019
and was redesignated as our executive Director on 24 July 2019. She was
appointed as a director of Beijing Hongkun on 18 February 2019.

Following her appointment as a director of Beijing Hongkun, she has
been actively participating in overseeing our property management
services and business development, including reviewing the workflow,
procedures and delivery of our property management services, and she
provides strategic advice. As an executive Director, Ms. Li Yin Ping also
participates in the formulation of business strategy and major decisions
of our Group as well as in the deliberation and approval of our Group’s
administrative expenses, monthly accounts and budgets, and in the
recruitment of senior management.

As at the annual report date, Ms. Li Yin Ping also served as a director in
various private companies in Hong Kong and overseas which engage in
different nature of business as listed below. With her experience in finance
and capital investment, particularly investment in listed companies, Ms. Li
Yin Ping is also involved in strategic planning of our Group’s fund raising
and capital investment activities, and provides guidance and supervision
on financial management and corporate governance of our Group as
well as in overall strategic planning and business development of new
business opportunities. In particular, for the implementation of our Group’s
strategic plan to expand our market reach in the PRC to cover at least five
additional cities by 2021 through acquisitions of suitable local property
management companies, Ms. Li Yin Ping will also be involved in assessing
such opportunities once they arise and in ensuring potential acquisition
targets fit into our Group’s acquisition criteria as determined by the Board.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EERGREERE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) HITEE(A)
Ms. Li Yin Ping has experiences in finance and capital investments. FRFRITHEASRMBRERRELR - /T

She also has previous work experiences in the financial advisory and BV SRR RREITER R TIEES -
insurance industries. Among others, she is holding the following positions Hrp - BREBEINEETIIRAL -
in Hong Kong and overseas:

Place of Principal business of the
Company name incorporation Period of time company Position
AR LB AR AR S 3t B (=3 DRETEXEK Bt
Top Sing International Hong Kong October 2013 Trading Director
Company Limited to present
REERERAF &k —Z-Z51THES 25 %
Mega Marketing & Media Company ~ Hong Kong May 2015 to present Event marketing and public Director
Limited relations services
EEMSKEBRAR &k —Z-hELAES RBEHE N NERY %
Vibes Management Hong Kong May 2016 to present Investment holding in listed Director
Company Limited company in Hong Kong
FELBERARAT &t “Z-RFLAES REE LM RANREER =
Pioneer Unicorn Limited BVI June 2016 to present Investment holding in listed Director
company in Hong Kong
Pioneer Unicorn Limited EBELES ZEREXAES REE LM ARMREER 5%
Winz Strategy Company Limited Hong Kong February 2017 to Provision of financial investment  Director
present consultancy services
Byl YN 0 S RESRRERARY B5F
Winz Strategy BVI April 2017 to present Investment holding in listed Director
company in Hong Kong
Bl EREEXHS “ZHEMAES REE Eh A RRIREER 5%
Ms. Li Yin Ping is currently a member of the Federation of HK Guangxi RS TITIHEAETEEATEESSE - A
Community Organisations, as well as an executive committee member (&% RhigEs —E—-NEENEREIR -

754832 ) of 2019 of The Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon.

Ms. Li Yin Ping obtained a master's degree in business administration FEELIR - E—tHF-ABEREREEE
(MBA) from European University Business School in January 2017 through EESBNAZ SR N TR EIEELT(MBA)
distance learning. Eafi] o
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENEREERE(E)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Ms. Zhang Chunying (3R& %)

Ms. Zhang Chunying (58& %), aged 40, has been appointed as an
executive Director on 7 July 2021, and serve as the chief financial officer
of the Company. Ms. Zhang has joined the Company since 31 July 2018
and is responsible for financial management work of the Company.

Ms. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Zhang worked in
Beijing Vanke Property Service Company Limited (1t &R RS
ABRAF]) from October 2007 to July 2018, a company which is mainly
engaged in providing property management, property agency, property
pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting and real estate brokerage
services before handover of properties and sales. Her last position was
the head of financial management department of Tianjin Vanke Property
Service Company Limited (RKEERMZERIEE R A F]), responsible for
comprehensive financial tasks, including budgeting, auditing, capital and
taxation and others.

Ms. Zhang graduated from Agricultural University of Hebei with bachelor’s
degree of Economic and Management Profession in 2008. She obtained
an accounting qualification certificate.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Li Yifan (Z—R,)

Mr. Li Yifan (Z— J1), aged 33, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director on 7 July 2021. Mr. Li has joined Hongkun Group Company
Limited (B %£E AR A A]) since May 2018. He is the Board secretary
of Hongkun Group Company Limited and the person in charge of its
strategic and capital operation centre. Prior to joining Hongkun Group
Company Limited, Mr. Li served as a manager of the directors office at
State Development & Investment Corporation (BZ F 3% & A7) from
May 2014 to March 2017. From March 2017 to April 2018, Mr. Li was the
senior manager and secretary to the board chairman of Zhengrong Group
Ltd. (IEEREEEBR A A]).

Mr. Li obtained his bachelor s degree in Law from Peking University

in July 2012 and a master degree in International Studies from The
University of Sydney in July 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung ( iE{&% )

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (&R{&#), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 February 2020. He is
responsible for providing independent judgment and advice to our Board.
He is the chairman of Nomination Committee, and a member of Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung has over 11 years of experience in auditing and
accounting industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cheung Wai Hung
worked at Aoba CPA Limited from July 2004 to April 2014 with his last
position as audit manager, where he assisted in the audit of various
medium-sized and listed companies. Mr. Cheung has been appointed,
since April 2014, as the chief financial officer serving Wai Chi Holdings
Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1305), where he is responsible for the
financial management. He has become a member of the risk management
committee of Wai Chi Holdings Company Limited since August 2015 and
been appointed as the company secretary serving Wai Chi Holdings
Company Limited since November 2015. Since August 2018, Mr. Cheung
Wai Hung has been appointed as the independent non-executive director
and a member of the audit committee of Grand T G Gold Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8299).

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong in November 2003 with a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy. He is currently a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Chartered tax adviser with a membership in
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENEREERE(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (FRE3E)

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (FR &%), aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 February 2020. He is
responsible for providing independent judgment and advice to our Board.
He is the chairman of Audit Committee, and a member of Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat is the founding shareholder and sole director of
C T Tax Consultants Limited since August 2006. Prior to that, Mr. Chan
Cheong Tat had worked in the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong
for over 32 years. He joined the HKSAR Government as assistant assessor
in November 1972 and was promoted to assistant commissioner of the
Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong in September 2003. He retired
from the HKSAR Government in April 2005.

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat obtained a master’s degree in financial
management from Central Queensland University of Australia in October
1995 through distance learning. He was admitted as an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (now known as The
Chartered Governance Institute) in the United Kingdom in March 1974,
a fellow of the Association of Certified Accountants (now known as the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants) in November 1983, a
fellow of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in March 1986, a fellow of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants (now known as
CPA Australia) in June 1990, and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries (now known as The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries) in August 1994,
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EEREHREERE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFPITEE@E)

(CONTINUED)

REELLCDKABEZERTIEALD
RAEESIFATES -

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat has been or was appointed as an independent non-

executive director of the following listed companies in Hong Kong:

Company name

AREHE

Medicskin Holdings Limited

Place of listing and stock code
LB R R AR

GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8307)

Period of time
31

December 2014 to present

TEHERERAR] B2 FTGEM (B 7 R 517:8307) “ENET-AES
Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited GEM of the Stock Exchange June 2018 to present

SEEERERERAR

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings
Company Limited

BERE R EER AR AR

Accel Group Holdings Limited

EREEERERAR]

Wasion Group Holdings Limited

(stock code: 8512)
A FIGEM (B (A 55 8512)

GEM of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 8537)
522 FIGEM (AR 5% 8537)

Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1283)
AT EMR (BRIDHSE: 1283)

Main Board of the Stock Exchange

—E-\FXAES
September 2018 to present
—T-N\FNRES
September 2019 to present
ZT-NFNRES

May 2014 to May 2015; June 2020

(stock code: 3393) to present
B R EERER DT AP EAR (R 1A 5% 3393) “T-NFRAE-T-AFHA =T
—TERAES

HEEBERERLE —T-—F5H
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

ESENEREERE(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Ms. Chen Weijie ( BR#E5E

Ms. Chen Weijie ( FR#E5% ), aged 41, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 17 February 2020. She is responsible for
providing independent judgment and advice to our Board. She is the
chairman of Remuneration Committee, and a member of Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee.

Ms. Chen Weijie has over 11 years of experience in executive
management, investment and corporate finance. Since July 2020, Ms.
Chen Weijie has been appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and
responsible officer in Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activities of Vision Finance (Securities) Limited, a company principally
engaging in provision of financial services, where she is responsible for
the overall business development and provision of financial advice to
listed companies. Before joining Vision Finance (Securities) Limited, from
March 2018 to December 2019, Ms. Chen Weijie has been appointed
as the executive director and responsible officer in Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) regulated activities of ZhongHua Finance Capital
Company Limited, a company principally engaging in provision of
financial services, where she is responsible for the overall business
development and provision of financial advice to listed companies. Ms.
Chen Weijie had also worked as senior management for several financial
and securities companies including Legend Strategy International
Holdings Group Company Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1355) from November
2016 to February 2018, Vision Finance (Securities) Limited from May
2013 to October 2016, China Private Equity Investment Holdings Limited
between December 2010 and April 2013, China Fortune Group Limited
(currently known as China Fortune Financial Group Limited), the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
290) from August 2009 to November 2010, and China Aircraft Leasing
Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1848) from August 2008 to August
2009. Since 4 October 2021, Ms. Chen Weijie has been appointed as the
executive director of Finet Group Limited, the shares of which are listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8317). Since 18 June 2021,
Ms. Chen Weijie has been appointed as the independent non-executive
director of Chong Kin Group Holding Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1609).
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Ms. Chen Weijie also has some relevant experience in the legal sector.
Prior to joining our Group, she worked as an intern at the Intermediate
People’'s Court of Guangzhou, the PRC, from December 2003 to July
2004, and as a paralegal in the corporate finance department at Norton
Rose Hong Kong (currently known as Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong)
from July 2006 to June 2008. She was qualified as a lawyer in the PRC in
2009.

Ms. Chen Weijie graduated from Guangdong University of Finance &
Economics (previously known as Guangdong Business School* ( & & i
B2 )) in Guangdong, the PRC in June 2004 with a bachelor's degree in
law. She also obtained a master of laws in international business law from
City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2005. She has
been holding a Type 6 licence (advising on corporate finance) granted by
the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute since July 2013.

Mr. Leung Ka Wo (£ Z#)

Mr. Leung Ka Wo (%), aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 7 July 2021. He is responsible for providing
independent judgment and advice to our Board. He is a member of
the Audit committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive director, the
chairman and member of audit committee and a member of each of
the remuneration committee and nomination committee of Tongguan
Gold Group Limited (formerly known as China Mining Resources Group
Limited) (Stock Code: 0340), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung is currently a director and chief financial
officer of China TX IIOT Group (Hong Kong) Limited. During the period
from June 2017 to June 2019, Mr. Leung was an independent non-
executive director of Rui Feng Group Holdings Company Limited (Formerly
known as China Hanya Group Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 8312), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange and delisted since 9 July
2019.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
Seattle University. Mr. Leung is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, certified public
accountant of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
certified public accountant in the State of California in the United States of
America.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEkEREERE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Shuai Chuanyong ( & E )

Mr. Shuai Chuanyong (A8 5), aged 53, was appointed as deputy
general manager of Beijing Hongkun on 17 October 2017. He is
responsible for the project management of our managed properties
in Tianjin, Hebei Province and Hainan Province in the PRC, as well as
business development, quality control oversight and human resources
management of Beijing Hongkun. He is also the executive director
of Tianjin Hongsheng and Xinaghe HongKun Property Management
Company Limited (BB HYEEEHR A A)).

Mr. Shuai Chuanyong has over seven years of experience in the property
management industry in the PRC. Prior to joining our Group, he worked
at Beijing Hengfu Property Service Company Limited Tianjin Branch* ( 3t
REBEWERBERARKXED QA ), a company principally engaging
in provision of property management and real estate brokerage services,
from 1 September 2011 to 15 October 2017 with his last position as vice
general manager, where he was responsible for general management.
Before that, Mr. Shuai Chuanyong had had work experiences in the
property management, manufacturing and decoration industries.

Mr. Shuai Chuanyong graduated from Jiangxi Institute of Economic

Administrators* (JLPEAEEE R #EEET ) in Jiangxi Province, the PRC in
July 1993 with his profession in business management.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Ms. Cao Lixin (& 37)

Ms. Cao Lixin (&3 %7), aged 36, was appointed as assistant general
manager of Beijing Hongkun on 7 January 2018. She joined our Group
on 4 September 2015 as the director (#85) of Beijing Hongkun’s
management projects in Beijing. She is responsible for project
management of our managed properties in Beijing and Shanghai, the
PRC, and customer services oversight.

Prior to joining our Group, she worked at Beijing Vanke Property Service
Company Limited* (It @RI EREER 2 F] ), a company principally
engaging in providing property management, property agency, property
pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting and real estate brokerage
services, from March 2004 to September 2015 with her last position as
department manager, where she was responsible for project planning
and management.

Ms. Cao Lixin graduated from The Open University of China (FF & &
FEEMRAZ) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2005 with her profession in
horticulture through distance learning. She also graduated from China
Agricultural University (| B2 K2) in Beijing, the PRC in July 2007 with
her profession in landscape architecture through an online course.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEkEREERE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Kong Linggong (.4 2h)

Mr. Kong Linggong (FL.£31), aged 36, was appointed as vice marketing
director (#2%) of Beijing Hongkun on 13 November 2017. He joined our
Group on 13 February 2014 as an assistant manager of the quality control
department of Beijing Hongkun. He was also appointed as the operations
director (#88%) of Beijing Hongkun on 25 February 2019. He is responsible
for overseeing business development, formulating marketing strategies,
and merger and acquisition of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, he worked at Beijing Vanke Property Service
Company Limited* (It @RI ERE AR 2 A ), a company principally
engaging in providing property management, property agency, property
pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting and real estate brokerage
services, from September 2008 to February 2014 with his last position as
project business assistant, where he was responsible for management of
quality control and customer services.

Mr. Kong Linggong graduated from Beijing Normal University ( it 5 Al 3
A in Beijing, the PRC in January 2007 with his profession in applied
electronic technology through an evening course. He also graduated
from Beijing University of Civil Engineering and Architecture ( 3t & & ££&
AE) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2015 with his profession in building
environment and equipment engineering.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Bi Sheng (£8)

Mr. Bi Sheng (£8), aged 50, was appointed as the senior manager
of the engineering management department of Beijing Hongkun on 13
February 2018. He joined our Group as the manager of the engineering
management department of Beijing Hongkun on 27 March 2015. He is
responsible for engineering management and quality control of repairs
and maintenance of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, he worked at Beijing Vanke Property
Management Company Limited* (3t RE R ARIEBR A H]), a company
principally engaging in providing property management, property agency,
property pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting and real estate
brokerage services, from March 2003 to August 2012 with his last position
as assistant manager where he was responsible for management of the
engineering, environment and safety departments. He was then employed
as deputy general manager of the management platform in First Taiping
Rongke Property Management (Beijing) Company Limited Chaoyang
Branch* (E—AF =& Ut R) BRAREHE S AF]), a company
principally engaging in provision of property management services, from
August 2012 to March 2015, where he was responsible for management
of engineering and repairs.

Mr. Bi Sheng graduated from China University of Geosciences (4 Bl
& K2) in Beijing, the PRC in January 2013 with his profession in civil
engineering through an online course. He was qualified as a certified
property manager (;Efi¥ZELEM) by the Beijing Municipal Human
Resources and Social Security Bureau* (It M A W EBIHERER)
of the PRC in September 2014. He finished the property management
examination approved by the Beijing Municipal Commission of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development* (At R {EEFIMMEFRZ EE) in June
2011. He also finished a professional vocation training course in property
inspection and facilities and equipment management at China Property
Management Institute* (P EI¥I 5 B 1% E) in August 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEkEREERE(E)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Mr. Wang Xiaorong (E Z %)

Mr. Wang Xiaorong (£ £%%), aged 40, was appointed as director (428%)
of Beijing Hongkun’s properties in Tianjin on 12 June 2018. He joined our
Group as a manager responsible for project management on 1 August
2016. He is responsible for the general project management of our
managed properties in Tianjin and Xianghe, Hebei Province, the PRC.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang Xiaorong worked at Beijing Vanke
Property Management Company Limited* (it RERERE AR A 7)),
a company principally engaging in providing property management,
property agency, property pre-delivery and sales assistance, consulting
and real estate brokerage services, from March 2005 to August 2016
with his last position as business support system manager, where he was
responsible for maintenance of the business support system and property
environment management.

Mr. Wang Xiaorong graduated from China Agricultural University (/1
Bl 2% K2 in Beijing, the PRC in January 2016 with his profession
in horticulture through an online course. He passed the property
management examination approved by Beijing Municipal Commission of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development* (It R {EEMMMEREZES)
of the PRC in April 2015.
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Project Overview

HEME

HONGKUN PROPERTY PROJECT INFORMATION 5 ¥ ¥ EHB E R

1. BENING WOOD AND LIFE VILLA
b e PR EE

As the high-end residential representative of Hongkun Group, Beijing Wood and Life Villa provides scarce, high
comfort and healthy high-tech luxury homes in the city’s core for customers pursuing high quality of life. Based on
the Elysée Palace in France, the Pure Villa Community comprising of 276 town houses and stacked villas, with a plot
ratio of 1.02, is located on Xinwang South Street in Daxing, Beijing.
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Project Overview
IHAME

2. HONGKUN FLOWER AND LIFE VILLA
PRt TE R B

Located in the hinterland of Beijing CBD, Hongkun Flower and Life Villa is the only low-density villa in the CBD,
with shopping, entertainment, star hotel, leisure and fitness, education and medical care, and service facilities all
around the project. The south side of the project is the southeast irrigation canal, and the north side is the 8,000
square meters urban garden (pending building) planned by the government, with a total construction land area of
27,000 square meters and a GFA of approximately 65,000 square meters, a total of 9 buildings comprising of 270
households, with a plot ratio of only 1.6, a greening coverage rate of 60%, and a utilization rate of 86%-89%.
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Project Overview

HEBE

3. HAINAN HONGKUN LANDSCAPE VILLA
R R e LR EF

As the first resort community in Hainan with Zen culture as the theme, Hainan Hongkun Landscape Villa brings
a unique holiday life to the people in pursuit of spiritual relaxation, leisure and health. By virtue of the natural
landscape of mountains and lush greenery, through incorporating the view of the mountain into the park, Hainan
Hongkun Landscape Villa is the new trend of Sanya, a “second home”.
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Project Overview

HHBE
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4. HONGKUN IDEAL CITY
R 1S I Y

Located in the heart of the new city of Daxing District, Beijing, Hongkun
Ideal City project is a model of Hongkun Real Estate’s high-level low-
density product series. With an area of 130,800 square meters and a
100% occupancy rate, the development, which was ready for check-in
November 2010, not only enjoys 35,000 square meters of quality education
resources, but is also located by IKEA’s Asian flagship store; has an ART-
DECO’s classic architectural style and is inspired by the French Art Deco
architecture, and integrates the new decoration style, urban impression
concept and free fashion culture into one through the refined and perfect
treatment of facades and decorative components, giving the urban
revival temperament; has the units ranging from 90 to 180 square meters,
showing people a rich and varied lifestyle.
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Project Overview

HEME

5. HONGKUN PLAZA SHOPPING CENTRE
AR RIS B O

As the first commercial project launched by Hongkun Real Estate
Group to serve community residents, Hongkun Plaza Shopping
Centre is a comprehensive community commercial project
integrating retail, restaurant, children, entertainment, fitness,
cinema, co-working and other business modes. The project is
dedicated to creating a creative community sharing centre in the
southwest Beijing.
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Project Overview

HHBE

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

6.

HONGKUN VALUE TOWN INDUSTRIAL PARK
IR RAEXRE

Hongkun Value Town Industrial Park is a new landmark of industrial
development in the capital city that brings together modern service
industries such as finance, culture and creativity, internet and new
industries with innovation. It has 12 eco-intelligent innovations
and “three-star” green building standards, and leads the way to
become one of the few national “dual-ecology” intelligent business
parks that combines landscape and industrial ecology in Beijing.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance.

The Board believes that high standard of corporate governance is
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as the basis of the Company’s corporate
governance practices. The Company has also in place a corporate
governance framework and has established a set of policies and
procedures based on the Corporate Governance Code. Such policies
and procedures provide the basis for enhancing the Board’s abilities
to implement governance and exercise proper oversight on business
conduct and affairs of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all the
applicable code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code with
the exception for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 (previous code
provision A.2.1) of the Corporate Governance Code. Code provision
C.2.1 (previous code provision A.2.1) of the Corporate Governance Code
stipulates that the roles of chairman of the board of directors and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Ms. Wu Guoqing is the General Manager of Beijing Hongkun and is
involved in the day-to-day management of our business. Although she
does not hold the title of Chief Executive Officer, she can be regarded
as the de facto Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She is also the
Chairman of the Board. Ms. Wu has been responsible for the overall
management, strategic planning and day-to-day business operations
of the Group. The Board believes that at this stage of the Group’s
development, having the roles of both the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in the same person brings strong and consistent
leadership to the Company for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies. Accordingly, the
Directors consider it is appropriate and reasonable to deviate from
code provision C.2.1 (previous code provision A.2.1) of the Corporate
Governance Code. However, it is the Company’s long term objective to
have different individuals in the two roles when suitable candidates are
identified.

The Group will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices in order to ensure the compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERRE (F)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. The Company has
made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises nine Directors, consisting of four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Guoging, Ms. Li Yin Ping and
Ms. Zhang Chunying, one non-executive Director, named Mr. Li Yifan,
and four independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong
Tat, Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka Wo.

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 35 to 50 of this
annual report.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with any other
Directors or chief executive.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited
to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
RECORDS

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors. Notices of not less
than fourteen days are given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice is
generally given. The agenda and accompanying meeting papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings. When Directors
or Board committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will
be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of
meetings are kept by the company secretary with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board committee meeting are sent to the Directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also holds meetings
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during each year.

During the Reporting Period, 7 Board meetings were held, and 2 general
meetings were convened. The attendance of each Director at these
meetings is set out in the table below:
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERRE (R)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
RECORDS (CONTINUED)

EEE(@
EXTSERRESHERE@E

Board Meetings
Attended/Eligible

General Meetings
Attended/Eligible

to Attend to attend
BEHEEEEEE BEHERREAE
Director o= FEHERE EHEE XS
Mr. Zhao Weihao WEREE 77 2/2
Ms. Wu Guoging BB+ 77 2/2
Ms. Li Yin Ping =i 77 2/2
Ms. Zhang Chunyin RERLZ L 3/3 1/1
Mr. Li Yifan F—EE 3/3 1/1
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESLE 77 2/2
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung SRIEHE - 77 2/2
Ms. Chen Weijie FR#EEZ L 717 2/2
Mr. Leung Ka Wo BRMEE 3/3 1/1
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER FERITBEAR

The position of Chairman is held by Ms. Wu Guoging and she provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The Company does not at present have any officer with
the title “chief executive officer”. However, being the general manager
of Beijing Hongkun and involved in the day-to-day management of
our business, Ms. Wu Guoging may be regarded as our de-facto chief
executive officer of the Group though she does not carry such title. She
has been responsible for the overall management, strategic planning and
day-to-day business operations of our Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the requirements
set out in Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of one year commencing from their respective date of appointment,
subject to renewal after the expiry of their current term.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings. Under the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. The Articles of Association also provide
that any Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to
election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.
The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are
responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the
Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations. The
independent non-executive Directors will also be able to provide an
impartial, external opinion to protect the interests of our Shareholders.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERRE (F)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such
induction shall be supplemented by visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with senior management of the Company.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material
on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate.

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.

During the Reporting Period, all Directors have been given the training
regarding the directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance
and regulatory updates and relevant reading materials including
compliance manual/legal and regulatory updates/seminar handouts have
been provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.

The individual training record of each Director received during the
Reporting Period is summarized below:
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Attending relevant
training regarding
the directors’ duties
and responsibilities,

corporate governance
and regulatory updates;
reading relevant

materials including SNERESHE
compliance REFE  EER

manual/legal SERE IR AR

and regulatory FEEEM R B

updates/ BRFM SEEER

Name of Director EEpE seminar handouts B HAEEE

Mr. Zhao Weihao HEREE v v

Ms. Wu Guoging REE AL+ v/ v

Ms. Li Yin Ping FENLZ T v/ v

Ms. Zhang Chunying RERZ T v/ v

Mr. Li Yifan I v v

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat BREZESLAE v v

Mr. Cheung Wai Hung SRIBHESEHE v v

Ms. Chen Weijie PRAEE 2+ v v

Mr. Leung Ka Wo BRI v v
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EEERRE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written terms
of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to the Shareholders upon
request.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai
Hung, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka Wo. Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, the
chairman of the Audit Committee, possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and related financial management expertise as
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code.
The main duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, oversee our audit process and perform other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings and
the attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out in the table
below:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

Director = SHEEHE
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (Chairman) PREZELE(FE) 3/3
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung RIZHESE A& 3/3
Ms. Chen Weijie R4 AL L 3/3
Mr. Leung Ka Wo RRM&EE 1/1
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)
During the meetings, the Audit Committee:

° reviewed the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 as well as the relevant financial reports;

° reviewed the audit report prepared by the auditor relating to
accounting issues and major findings in course of audit; and

° reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
risk management and internal control systems (including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function), risk management systems and processes and
the re-appointment of the auditor.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor once without the
presence of the executive Directors during the Reporting Period.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Chen Weijie (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, Mr.
Chan Cheong Tat and Mr. Leung Ka Wo.

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee
are to establish and review the policy and structure of the remuneration
for the Directors and senior management and make recommendations on
employee benefit arrangement.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EEERRE (R)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)
During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held 2

meetings and the attendance of each Remuneration Committee member is
set out in the table below:

EEZEE2(®@
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REHR - FHEEERTT2RE#
FHME B SREMHFE BRI TRATR |

Attended/Eligible to attend

Director o BHE EBHE
Ms. Chen Weijie (Chairman) BRAEE 2+ (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung RIEMEE 2/2
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESLE 2/2
Mr. Leung Ka Wo REMFEE 0/0

During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee considered and
reviewed, and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out
in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (Chairman), Mr. Chan Cheong
Tat, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka Wo.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code. The principal duties of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to our Board on the
appointment and removal of our Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving and maintaining diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any
measurable objective implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held 2 meetings
and the attendance of each Nomination Committee member is set out in
the table below:
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Director = EHE EHE
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung (Chairman) REMEEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREZESLE 2/2
Ms. Chen Weijie PRAEE 2+ 2/2
Mr. Leung Ka Wo REMEE 0/0

During the meetings, the Nomination Committee:
° reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

° assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

. reviewed the Director Nomination Policy;
° reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; and

° considered the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for re-
election at the annual general meeting.
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EEERRE (F)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the objective and approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on our Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of
our Board. The Board Diversity Policy provides that our Company should
endeavour to ensure that our Board members have the appropriate
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are
required to support the execution of our business strategies. Pursuant to
the Board Diversity Policy, we seek to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity and length of service. Our Nomination
Committee is delegated by our Board to be responsible for the
compliance with relevant code provisions governing board diversity under
the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination Committee reviews
the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness and we will disclose in our corporate governance report
about the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy on an annual
basis.

Our Board comprises nine members, including four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors.
Our Directors have a balanced mix of experiences, including overall
management and strategic development, business and risk management,
and finance and accounting experiences. Our Board members have a
wide range of age, ranging from 28 to 72 years old. Furthermore, one-third
of our Board members are female. After due consideration, our Board
believes that based on the meritocracy of our Directors, the composition
of our Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors and
aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity
of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

° Skills, experience and professional expertise — the candidate
should possess the skills, knowledge, experience, qualification and
professional expertise which are relevant to the operation of the
Group.

° Diversity — the candidate should be considered with due regard to
the diversity perspectives set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

° Commitment — the candidate should be able to devote sufficient time
to attend the Board meetings and participate in induction training
and other relevant activities.

° Standing - the candidate must satisfy the Board and the Stock
Exchange that he/she has the character, experience and
integrity, and is able to demonstrate a standard of competence
commensurate with the relevant position as a Director.

° Independence — the candidate to be nominated as an independent non-
executive Director must satisfy the independence criteria set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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EEERRE (R)

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY (CONTINUED)

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at
general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 (previous code provision D.3.1) of the Corporate
Governance Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines in relation to, among others, corporate
governance, risk evaluation and management, anti-corruption, disclosure
of information, confidentiality and financial reporting in order to achieve
effective and efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to
identify risks that potentially impact the business of the Group and various
aspects including key operational and financial processes, regulatory
compliance and information security. Self-evaluation has been conducted
annually to confirm that control policies are properly complied with by
each department.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, and monitors the
risk management progress, and reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

In accordance with applicable laws and regulations, the Company has
followed internal guidelines to ensure that inside information is released
to the public in a fair and timely manner. The senior management of
the Group’s financial control functions are delegated the responsibility
to monitor and oversee compliance with appropriate procedures in
the disclosure of inside information. Only relevant senior management
is entitled to inside information on a “need-to-know” basis at all times.
Relevant personnel and other relevant professionals are required to
maintain the confidentiality of such inside information before it is publicly
disclosed. Other relevant procedures, such as pre-approval of trading
in the Company’s securities by Directors and designated members of
management and notification to Directors and employees of regular
blackout periods and restrictions on trading in securities, has been also
implemented to prevent possible improper handling of inside information
within the Group.

ERER®RE (F)

TR e B e g P 42 )

EEXoHRHAYNRBREIE RN BES R
BE  YARERAZZERGNERIE B
ARG E £ EIEMIPERREENET B R
B - M AREREBRNKERANKE R
EHAEMIFBHMIRE

ExermARNE REEA R REKRRE
BREMEESEMANRRIEEREE &R
MR AEFHEE KA R E R K A bR

RERAYLSRER - JENOMBERSE R
BTERERIER - ARFC HIE RIRSK
ZHENEPREB)EEER  ARFER
BIE - RES  BEEHN  REMPBEHRS
R E IR I R AR S o

P BBPIE BRAETT A BB B RTAE - PAREBIAT
EFEAEEXRBLERERZENUB
mE - BEARMEAREEARNZ T ENE
B o BFETARE  UEESIPIZA
TR -

BEEESHMATERR - FERRELN
AR RHMANTREREERREEE
B YABRZEZEENEETERELTEN
R P B3 BB

RERZREREZRERORTE - ARFC
REARIES - RF - REMEDREM
ABRBE - AREMBEEBENRRERE
AERERAREERNEREREARHER
FBETEENRERF - AEAREERERR
BIEABARZIFEANGIELENARE
B HEABRREMERERALTEEER
BHEARBEN  FREERTME - AR
ATMEITEMAREIZF - PINFELELE
EREEEEENEEEARAES LB
EXZEEAMEREEHMEESFRHR
il DARS L AR B A AR BE T B BRI AR H

B o
o

HEEEERERAT —Z=—5FRH

71



72

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SEEARE (H)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(CONTINUED)

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December
2021, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit
function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems. The Internal Audit Department examines key
issues in relation to the accounting practices and all material controls and
provides its findings and recommendations for improvement to the Audit
Committee.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

2 B B 2 % P AR 42 ) (4D

BE-T-_—FF+-A=t—HLFE" &
BECRESERERZRERAEAREE
B P b1 il Z AR AR o

EXEQhEEREEGURERERS LA
EZATHERNIET  CRTBE-F
TH+A=t+t—BILFENAREER
MEBEH R (BEMT - EERARES)
VTRB/ZFZAFABEYETR - FEEMN
TREVHER NTBXBELBEE
& K R AEREETR -

MEBEZ A B B U R EE kA BBES AR
MFERMERBRIEEITELR - REEZ
MEREFHREAERANERTENRAEE
REH] - UEAEZZESREREERNE
B -



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 109 to 111 of this annual report.

Where appropriate, a statement will be provided by the Audit Committee
explaining its recommendation regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor and the reasons why the Board
has taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the Company's external
auditor, Crowe, in respect of audit services and non-audit services during
the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
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EEERRE (R)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Sau Mei (fi5%%), the director of the Listing Services department
of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial services provider),
serves as the company secretary of the Company. Her primary contact
person at the Company is Ms. Wu Guoging, the executive Director.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and Board practices and matters.
Ms. Wu Guoging, the executive Director, would work and communicate
with Ms. Ng on the Company’s corporate governance and secretarial and
administrative matters.

During the Reporting Period, Ms. Ng has undertaken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various communication
channels.

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should
be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at
general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING/RIGHT TO CALL AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING

Shareholders may request the Company to convene a general meeting
according to the provision as set out in the Articles of Association and
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. A copy of the Articles of
Association can be found on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. The procedures for Shareholders to nominate a
person for election as a Director is available on the Company’s website
with title “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as
a Director of the Company”.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE
A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A DIRECTOR

The Company also adopted a set of procedures for putting forward
proposals by the Shareholders at general meetings.

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Company
may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, he/she can deposit a written
notice at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
for the attention of the Board and Company Secretary. The period for
lodgement of such written notice shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than 7 days
prior to the date of such general meeting.

In order for the Company to inform Shareholders of that proposal, the
written notice must state the full name of the person proposed for election
as a Director, including the person’s biographical details as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and that person indicating his/her willingness to be elected.

In order to allow the Shareholders to have sufficient time to receive and
consider the proposal of election of the proposed person as a Director,
Shareholders are encouraged to submit and lodge the written notice as
early as practicable.
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EEERRE (R)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:

Address: Company’s principal place of business in the PRC at Room
108, No. 45 Xinrong North Street, Xihongmen, Daxing District,
Beijing, PRC
(For the attention of the Board/Company Secretary)

Email: zhangchunying@hongkun.com.cn

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company’s website (www.hongkunwuye.com) provides
comprehensive and accessible news and information of the Company
to the Shareholders, other stakeholders and investors. The Company
will also update the website information from time to time to inform
Shareholders and investors of the latest development of the Company.

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) are available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In preparation for the Listing, the Company has adopted the amended
and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association pursuant to a
special resolution passed by the Shareholders on 22 February 2019.
Since then, the Company has not made any changes to its Memorandum
and Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS (CONTINUED)

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not assure that dividends will be paid in the future or as
to the timing of any dividends that may be paid in the future. The payment
and amounts of dividends, if paid, depend on the Company'’s results
of operations, cash flows, financial position, statutory and regulatory
restrictions on the dividends paid by us, future prospects and other
factors which the Company considers relevant.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Board herein present its report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 112 of this annual report.

No dividend was recommended by the Board for the year ended 31
December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year, a discussion on
the prospect of the Group’s future business development, a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 13 to 15 and the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 16 to 34 of this annual
report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 13 to 15, Financial Highlights on pages 5 to 6 and Five-Year
Financial Summary on page 204 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

This section lists out the principal risks and uncertainties facing by
the Group. It is non-exhaustive list and there may be other risks and
uncertainties further to the principal risk areas outlined below. Besides,
this report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice for anyone
to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are advised to
make their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the securities of the Company.

Government Policy Risk

The PRC government has implemented various measures to tighten the
sales and capital raising/debt issuance activities of property developers in
the PRC, which may have a negative impact on their financial position and
business operations. There is no assurance that the PRC government will
not introduce additional or other types of restrictive policies, regulations
or measures in the future that may affect the property development
market. The failure of the Parent Group to comply with such new policies,
regulations or measures may adversely affect its business, results of
operations and financial condition. As a result, the Group may not always
be able to obtain new property management engagements as planned or
on favorable terms, nor is it certain that any new property management
engagements will be obtained, which may have a material adverse effect
on the Group’s business, growth prospects, results of operations and
financial position.

The Group will keep abreast of the latest regulatory changes in the
real estate development industry (through government websites and
participation in relevant industry seminars) and will communicate with the
Parent Group. The project development plan will be modified accordingly
to respond to new or changed regulations.

The Company will continue to adopt the strategy of expanding its property
management portfolio and focus its marketing strategy on expanding the
Group’s geographical footprint and operations to broaden the Group’s
revenue stream. By adopting this strategy, the Group can ensure stable
property management revenues, thereby minimizing the impact of the
Parent Group.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHREE)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Risk of Economic Volatility

Any downturn in the local and global economy or any adverse change in
market conditions will reduce overall business and consumer confidence.
This will adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition,
operations or growth prospects. In particular, the economic instability and
volatile political environment in China caused by the China-United States
trade war and the novel coronavirus may reduce consumers’ spending
power, which in turn may lead to a decline in property sales and affect
revenue from property management services. As a result, the Company’s
growth and profitability may be adversely affected.

The Company will continue to adopt the strategy of expanding its property
management portfolio and focus its marketing strategy on expanding the
Group’s geographical footprint and operations to broaden the Group’s
revenue stream. By adopting this strategy, the Group can ensure stable
property management revenues, thereby minimizing the impact of market
downturns. In particular, the Company developed a development plan
this year, which was reviewed and approved by authorized management.
The program focuses on sending a dedicated team to participate in
tenders held by various property developers, and the Company’s sales
and marketing teams oversee and track the program on a monthly
basis. In addition, the Group has maintained an acceptable level of
liquidity to mitigate the risks associated with cyclical downturns due to
rapid changes in market conditions. Management reviews the cash flow
statement and cash flow forecasts on a monthly basis to mitigate the risk
of a cyclical downturn due to rapid changes in market conditions.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(CONTINUED)

Third Party Risk

The Group relies on subcontractors to provide certain property
management services to its customers and the Group may be liable
for disputes and claims arising out of or in connection with the services
provided by the subcontractors.

For subcontractor projects where the contract amount exceeds a certain
amount, the Group centralizes the tendering process. In selecting
subcontractors, the Company will consider not only the subcontractors’
quotes, but also their past performance, if any, to ensure that the
appointed subcontractor can provide a reasonable quality of work.
In addition, the terms of the contract provide for the protection of the
Company from substandard work quality and delayed completion. All
contracts are reviewed to ensure that the terms and conditions are fair
to the Company. Finally, the Company conducts regular performance
evaluations of contractors (e.g., their expertise and suitability). If the
contractor’s performance evaluation is unacceptable, the contractor’s bid
will be suspended.

Industry Competition Risk

Competition in the property management industry in China is fierce and
there are many competitors. Competition in the Group’s industry may
become more intense if new competitors entering the market continue to
increase, or if the Group’s competitors increase the diversity of products
they offer to capture emerging opportunities. The Group’s competitors
may have competitive advantages over the Group, such as a longer
operating history, stronger business relationships with customers,
suppliers and subcontractors, stronger financial, technical and other
resources and a broader geographic footprint in China.

The Group has established a precise positioning: according to the
customer research report, it has set a reasonable definition of the property
management project’s business model, price, cost, removal rate and
rhythm, and has set up countermeasures in advance to sort out the full
project cycle risks. At the same time, the Group strategically conspires
with regional companies to adopt differentiated competitive strategies to
avoid or reduce competition.
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ESEHRE(E)

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group has endeavoured
to strictly comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection.

The Company recognizes the importance of environmental protection. The
Company is committed to providing an eco-friendly energy environment
for our staff and has developed energy conservation and carbon
reduction policy so as to minimize negative environmental impacts.

A separate Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report for
2021 will be published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange in due course in compliance with ESG Reporting Guide as set
out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Reporting Period, as far as the Company is aware, there
was no material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by our Group that has a significant impact on the business
and operations of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We fully understand that employees, customers and suppliers and other
persons (together “Stakeholders”) are the key to our sustainable and
stable development. We are committed to maintaining a good relationship
with our Stakeholders so as to ensure our continuing development.

The Group regarded our staff as the most valuable assets of the
Company. The Group is providing a fair and harmonious workplace where
individuals with diverse cultural backgrounds are treated equally. The
Group offer a reasonable remuneration package and fair opportunities for
career advancement based on employees’ performance. The Group also
provides our staff with different trainings, including on-the-job training
and training courses provided by professional organisations in order to
enhance our staffs’ career progression.

The Group believes that our vendors (including contractors) are equally
important in building high-quality property projects. We proactively
communicate with our vendors to ensure they are committed to delivering
high-quality and sustainable output.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for each
of the last five financial years is set out in the Five-Year Financial Summary
on page 204 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.
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PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING EHABRIE
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The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
13 March 2020 and 100,000,000 new Shares were issued. The over-
allotment option was partially exercised and 5,310,000 new Shares were
issued on 3 April 2020. After deducting the underwriting fees and relevant
expenses, net proceeds from the Listing amounted to approximately
HK$129.4 million (equivalent to approximately RMB116.2 million). The net
proceeds from the Listing were higher than that stated in the Prospectus,
due to a higher final issue price than the median of the range of offer
prices stated in the Prospectus and lower-than-expected underwriting
fees. Such proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent with that in
the Prospectus which is detailed as follows:

Disclosure in the Prospectus

REBRERPOEE
Proceeds
Proceeds planned
Approximate planned to be to be
net proceeds  Approximate utilised in utilised in
Intended use utilised percentage 2020 2021
FTEIR FHEIR
BAZ —EZEF —E=-F
R Ba BAZ BAZ
BERRE FRSFIEFHE Bl FR8FIE FR8FIA
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(BEET) (BE%T) (BEET)
Expansion of geographic presence & A FI7 1 B &)
and scale of operations in the 2 b [ K2
PRC KRR 64.4 65.0% 61.3 3.1
Development and enhancement 2 RIRFAHAPI
of our information system and S5
technological initiatives el 12.9 13.0% 12.9 -
Expansion of our value-added IR PIRIIG(E
services BR% 9.9 10.0% 47 5.2
Staff development BT %R 2.0 2.0% 2.0 -
General working capital —MREEED 9.8 10.0% - -
Total BET 99.0 100.0% 80.9 8.3
BEKBIZERBRAR —T-—FFRK
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PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING (CONTINUED)

Due to the abovementioned reasons, the net proceeds from the Listing
increased to HK$129.4 million and therefore our expected usage
increased proportionately as follows:

LG R (&)

BN Ll RE - ETASRIEERENE
129.48 8B T - AU BRMRTEHR TR
B

As at 31 December 2021
HE-Z--5+-A=1-H

Proceeds
Actual planned
amount to be
of net  Approximate Proceeds Proceeds utilised
Intended use proceeds percentage utilised not utilised in 2022
HEJS
- S 3
BERAE B 2EA *BA BAZ
RERz RIERE BAK FiE%E FrgsE FiE%E
(HK$ milion) (HK$ milion) — (HK$ million) — (HK$ million)
(BE#T) (BE#T) (BE#T) (BEET)
Expansion of geographic presence and scale AR R PEH)
of operations the PRC WIERE RIS ERE 84.1 65.0% 470 37.1 37.1
Development and enhancement of our BRI B
information system and technological B RS RBAEIA
initiatives 16.9 13.0% 0.7 16.2 16.2
Expansion of our value-added services EMBEMNEERE 12.9 10.0% 34 95 95
Staff development BI%R 26 2.0% - 26 26
General working capital —REELAE 129 10.0% 57 7.2 72
Total @it 129.4 100.0% 56.8 72,6 726

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has utilized part of such proceeds
according to the use as set out in the Prospectus. Approximately
RMB47.0 million, representing approximately 36.3% of the actual amount
of net proceeds, was utilized for expansion of geographic presence
and scale of operations the PRC, including acquiring Jiangsu Wanhao;
approximately RMBO0.7 million, representing approximately 0.5% of
the actual amount of net proceeds, was utilized for development and
enhancement of our information system and technological initiatives,
include building up a resident communication database; approximately
RMB3.4 million, representing approximately 2.6% of the actual amount
of net proceeds, was utilized for expansion of our value-added service,
include setting up a business development team; and approximately
RMB5.7 million, representing approximately 4.4% of the actual amount of
net proceeds, was utilized for the general working capital.
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PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING (CONTINUED)

Due to the significant increase in the number of acquisitions in the
property management industry currently, the uncertainty of acquisition
pricing raised, we adopt a more cautious attitude towards the evaluation
of acquisition objectives. Therefore, our progress in utilizing the proceeds
from Listing was delayed comparing with the plan. The expected timeline
for utilising the unutilised proceeds will be one year, which is based on
our best estimation and will be subject to change in market conditions.
The unutilized proceeds as at 31 December 2021 were deposited in the
bank accounts.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the Reporting Period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 114 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, details of the reserves available for distribution
of the Company are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 18.0% of the total sales of the Group for the year,
the sales from the largest customer, Hongkun Group, accounted for less
than 15.0% of the total sales of the Group for the year. Purchases from
the five largest suppliers accounted for less than 44.0% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year, the purchase from the largest supplier
accounted for less than 18.0% of the Group’s total purchase for the year.
To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, except for Hongkun Group, all
of the five largest customers are independent third parties, and none of
the Directors, their associates or any Shareholder (who, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owned 5% or more of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in any of the five largest customers during the Reporting
Period. The Group did not have any major customers who were also the
suppliers. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, all of the five largest
suppliers are independent third parties, and none of the Directors, their
associates or any Shareholder (who, to the knowledge of Directors,
owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in
any of the five largest suppliers during the Reporting Period.

BANK BORROWING

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no outstanding bank borrowing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the

Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 57 to
77 of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the qualification as Shareholders to attend
and vote at the AGM to be held on 31 May 2022, the register of members
of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 26 May 2022 to Tuesday,
31 May 2022, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 25 May 2022, being
the last share registration date.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhao Weihao

Ms. Wu Guoqing (Chairman)
Ms. Li Yin Ping

Ms. Zhang Chunying

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Li Yifan

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Ms. Chen Weijie

Mr. Leung Ka Wo

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
all independent non-executive Directors, and considers them to be still
independent as at the date of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. A retiring Director shall retain office until the close of the
meeting at which he retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat.

In addition, in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association,
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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Accordingly, Ms. Wu Guoging, Ms. Zhang Chunying, Mr. Li Yifan, Mr.
Cheung Wai Hung, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka Wo shall retire
by rotation at the AGM and they being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in the
circular which will be despatched to the Shareholders in due course.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the existing Directors are set out on pages 35 to
50 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

Promoting good corporate governance and managing enterprise wide
risk is a priority of the Company. The Company believes that corporate
governance and Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (the “D&O
Insurance”) complement each other. The Company has arranged
appropriate D&O Insurance coverage on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of legal actions against Directors and senior management
arising out from corporate activities. The D&O Insurance will be reviewed
and renewed annually.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company. The terms and conditions of each of such service
agreements are similar in all material respects. The service contracts are
initially for a fixed term of three years commencing from their respective
appointment date and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other,
which notice shall not expire until after initial fixed term.

The non-executive Director has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from his
appointment date and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than one month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other,
which notice shall not expire until after the fixed term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of one year commencing
from their respective appointment date, which may be terminated by not
less than 7 days’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, no other Director have entered into service
contract with the Company which are not determined by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance,
to which the Company, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
Reporting Period.

There are no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
to the business of the Group between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, or a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during
the Reporting Period. During the Reporting Period, no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance for the provision of services
to the Group by a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were
made.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Reporting Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Articles of Association provide that the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty in their
respective offices, provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
Director.

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance to protect
the Directors against potential costs and liabilities arising from claims
brought against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in our Company

EERERITHRAESRKRS - HE
RO REBRETEANER AR

R-ZE-—F+-_fF=+—H ZEBERARQ
AIEBITRABRA R B sk E AR FEH A E
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EXVELET7 287 EBEAE AN E] R FTHY
BRIKE (BRI ERIEEFRAE G2
ZEBREERRRARBOERRAR) -
ARIEFEH R A B RIS 35216 B iR 8RR 7%
BATEN B EMANERSIAR - HIRER
ST A B BAE ANR R M B A AR s sA
BT :

JIZNNEIE L

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest held (L) o’ shareholding

EEpnE EEME FERGEE L) BAOERBES

Mr. Zhao Weihao Interest held jointly with another person; 237,780,000 58.67%
interest in a controlled corporation M2

HESREL B AR E VRS - R PR E 2

Ms. Li Yin Ping Interest in a controlled corporation o3 60,421,000 14.91%

FEEL L RV EE R
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Interests in our Company (Continued)
Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position in our Shares.

2. Ascendor Futur Holding Limited (“Ascendor Futur”) directly holds
237,780,000 Shares. Ascendor Futur is wholly and beneficially owned
by Will Full Holdings Limited (“Will Full”), which is in turn beneficially
owned by Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin as to
98.62%, 1.00% and 0.38%, respectively. Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong
and Mr. Zhao Bin together indirectly control all Shares held by Ascendor
Futur. Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin are parties
acting in concert pursuant to the Deed of Acting in Concert. By virtue of
the SFO, each of Will Full, Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao
Bin is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
Ascendor Futur is interested.

3. Winz Strategy Company Limited (“Winz Strategy”) directly holds
60,421,000 Shares. Winz Strategy is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms.
Li Yin Ping. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Li Yin Ping is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Winz Strategy is interested.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONTINUED)

Interests in associated corporation of our Company
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Number of Approximate

Name of associated shares held percentage of

Name of Director corporation Nature of interest (L) Note 7 shareholding
FEsRGEE BAOFR

EEpnE HEEE BB EEME (L) 71 Bt
Mr. Zhao Weihao Ascendor Futur Interest held jointly with another 1 100%

person; interest in a controlled

corporation N2
Bifth A H[RIFFH EVRER
S 1

HEZE iE

g

1. The letter “L” denotes the long position in the shares.

2. Ascendor Futur is wholly and beneficially owned by Will Full, which is in
turn beneficially owned by Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao
Bin as to 98.62%, 1.00% and 0.38%, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register
which were required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18
had been granted any right to subscribe for the Shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations, or had exercised any
such right during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to eliminate competing business with the Group, on 23 July 2019,
Beijing Herun entered into a deed of non-competition with the Company
(the “Deed”).

In compliance with the Deed, Beijing Herun has made an annual
declaration on their compliance with the non-competition undertaking.

As of the date of this annual report, the Company is not aware of any
other matters regarding the compliance of the undertakings in the Deed
that are required to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors had an interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the business in which the
Group is engaged in.

GROUP’S EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Company'’s policy on determining the emolument payable to Directors
are based on the skill, knowledge, involvement in the Company’s affairs
and the performance of each Director, together with reference to the
profitability of the Company, remuneration benchmarks in the industry,
and prevailing market conditions. To enable the Remuneration Committee
to give better advice on the Group’s future remuneration policy and
related strategies, the Remuneration Committee has been advised of
the Group's existing remuneration policy and succession plan, such as
guidelines on designing employees’ remuneration packages and related
market trends and information.

The details of the Directors’ emoluments and senior management’s
remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEgRE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES
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As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons and entities, not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:

Number of Approximate
Shares held percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest (L) Note 7 shareholding
ARG HEBRTREN
RER AR EntE HEL) 7 BREBLEIL
Ascendor Futur Beneficial owner M2 237,780,000 58.67%
RED BaibEa A2
Will Full Interest in a controlled corporation "2 237,780,000 58.67%
(ESirs REVEEE R
Ms. Wu Hong Interest held jointly with another person; interest in 237,780,000 58.67%
a controlled corporation "2
RiT&+ B AR EVRER R EAE R
Mr. Zhao Bin Interest held jointly with another person; interest in 237,780,000 58.67%
a controlled corporation M2
L B A HFFEEEVRER  RRIEAE R
Ms. Wang Qian Interest of spouse "3 237,780,000 58.67%
FHERL iRy ol
Winz Strategy Beneficial owner Noe 4 60,421,000 14.91%
Bl i BaibEa A
Mr. Chan Sheung Chi Interest of spouse " 60,421,000 14.91%

R & So
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position in our Shares.

2. Ascendor Futur is wholly and beneficially owned by Will Full. Will Full is
beneficially owned by Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin
as to 98.62%, 1.00% and 0.38%, respectively. Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu
Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin together indirectly control all the Shares held by
Ascendor Futur through Will Full. Mr. Zhao Weihao, Ms. Wu Hong and
Mr. Zhao Bin are parties acting in concert pursuant to the Deed of Acting
in Concert. By virtue of the SFO, each of Will Full, Mr. Zhao Weihao,
Ms. Wu Hong and Mr. Zhao Bin is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Ascendor Futur is interested.

3. Ms. Wang Qian is the spouse of Mr. Zhao Weihao. Ms. Wang Qian is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr.
Zhao Weihao is interested by virtue of the SFO.

4. Winz Strategy is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Li Yin Ping. By
virtue of the SFO, Ms. Li Yin Ping is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Winz Strategy is interested.

5. Mr. Chan Sheung Chi is the spouse of Ms. Li Yin Ping. Mr. Chan Sheung
Chi is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Ms.
Li Yin Ping is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

ESEHRE(E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was approved and adopted by the Board on 17 February 2020. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable our Company to grant
options to any employee, adviser, consultant, service provider, agent,
client, partner or joint-venture partner of our Company or any of our
subsidiaries (including any Director or any director of our subsidiaries)
who is in full-time or part-time employment with or otherwise engaged by
our Company or any subsidiary at the time when an option is granted to
such person under the Share Option Scheme or any person who, in the
absolute discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to our
Group (the “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe for the Shares thereby
linking their interest with that of our Group.

Grant and acceptance of options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, our Directors may, in
their absolute discretion make offer to the Eligible Participants. An offer
shall be made to an Eligible Participant in writing in such form as our
Directors may from time to time determine and shall remain open for
acceptance by the Eligible Participant concerned for a period of 21 days
from the date upon which it is made provided that no such offer shall be
open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme or the termination of the same.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by an Eligible
Participant concerned in respect of all Shares which are offered to such
Eligible Participant when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance
of the offer duly signed by the Eligible Participant, together with a
non-refundable remittance in favour of our Company of HK$1.0 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof is received by our Company within
such time as may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later than
21 days from, and inclusive of, the date of offer).

Any offer may be accepted by an Eligible Participant in respect of less
than the total number of Shares which are offered provided that it is
accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing in Shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Subscription price of Shares

The subscription price of Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined at the discretion of our Directors but in any event will not be
less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must be a business day; (b)
the average closing price of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of that particular option; and (c) the nominal
value of a Share on the offer date of the particular option.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme together with options
which may be granted under any other share option schemes for the
time being of our Group shall not exceed 40,000,000 Shares, which
represent 10% of the issued Shares as at the Listing Date. Our Company
may seek approval from the Shareholders at general meeting to refresh
the 10% limit provided that the total number of Shares available for issue
under options which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes of our Group in these circumstances must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of our Company as at the date of
approval of refreshing of the limit. The limit on the number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other share option schemes of
the Group must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. As
at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 9.87% of the issue Shares as at the date of this annual
report.
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ESEHRE(E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to be
determined and identified by the Board to each grantee at the time of
making an offer for the grant of an option, but in any event no later than
10 years from the date of grant.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, an option shall be
exercisable in whole or in part in the circumstances by giving notice in
writing by the grantee to our Company stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of Shares in respect of which it is so exercised.
Each such notice must be accompanied by a non-refundable remittance
for the full amount of the subscription price for Shares in respect of which
the notice is given. Within 21 days after receipt of the notice and, where
appropriate, receipt of the auditor’s or the independent financial adviser’s
certificate, our Company shall accordingly allot the relevant number of
Shares to the grantee (or his legal personal representative) credited as
fully paid. Though there is no specified minimum period under the Share
Option Scheme for which an option must be held or the performance
target which must be achieved before an option can be exercised under
the terms and conditions of the Share Option Scheme, our Directors
may make such grant of options, subject to such terms and conditions
in relation to the minimum period of such options to be held and/or the
performance targets to be achieved as our Directors may determine in
their absolute discretion.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing from 17 February 2020 and the remaining life of the
Share Option Scheme as of the date of this annual report is around 7
years and 11 months.

Movements in the Share Option Scheme

As of 31 December 2021, no options have been granted or agreed to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Board, the Board confirms that the Company
has maintained the public float as required by the Listing Rules as at the
date of annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 13 September 2021 (after trading hours), Beijing Hongkun, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Hongkun Weiye
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement, Hongkun Weiye agreed to dispose of, and Beijing
Hongkun agreed to acquire the property located at No. 205, 2nd Floor,
Block B, No. 1 Hong Fu Lu, Daxing Qu, Beijing, PRC, at a consideration
of RMB22.76 million (equivalent to approximately HK$27.39 million) (the
“Acquisition”).

As at the date of the Acquisition, Hongkun Weiye is beneficially owned
as to 98% by Mr. Zhao Weihao. Mr. Zhao Weihao is our Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, and therefore Hongkun Weiye
is a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As such, the Acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and has complied with
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the reporting,
announcement, circular and independent Shareholders’ approval.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 13 September
2021 for further details of the Acquisition.

The (i) royalty-free use of trademarks; (ii) royalty-free use of software
copyright; (iii) provision of property management, property developer
related and value-added services constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

Royalty-free use of trademarks and royalty-free use of software copyright
were within the de minimis threshold provided under Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules and were exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 25 February 2020, we entered into a master services agreement
(the “Master Services Agreement”) with Beijing Herun, in relation to
our continuing provision of property management, property developer
related and value-added services to Parent Group (the “Parent Group
Services”) with term from the Listing Date to 31 December 2022. The
annual caps under the Master Services Agreement for the two years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 and the financial year ending 31
December 2022 are RMB95.0 million. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the amount of the Master Services Agreement was RMB49.1 million.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii)  either on normal commercial terms, or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has performed certain predetermined
procedures and reported its findings regarding the continuing connected
transactions of the Group set out above for the year ended 31 December
2021 and stated that:

(1) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the above continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board.

(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company.

(3) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out above, nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the above continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor of
the Company has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and
confirmed the matters set out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the related-party
transactions or continuing related-party transactions set out in note 30 of
the consolidated financial statements fall within the scope of discloseable
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. The connected and continuing connected transactions
of the Group are in compliance with the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising Mr. Chan Cheong Tat as chairman
as well as Mr. Cheung Wai Hung, Ms. Chen Weijie and Mr. Leung Ka
Wo as members, has reviewed, together with the participation of the
management, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing and financial reporting matters including
the review of the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Upon Listing, Deloitte had been the auditor of the Company. As the
Company could not reach a consensus with Deloitte on the audit fee for
the year ended 31 December 2020, Deloitte resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 31 December 2020. With effect from 29 January
2021, Crowe has been appointed as the new auditor of the Company to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Deloitte. Save as the
aforesaid, there has been no change in its auditors in the preceding three
years.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
audited by Crowe. It is the auditor’s responsibility to form an independent
opinion, based on its audit, on those financial statements and to report
their opinion solely to the Company and for no other purpose. They do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of the independent auditor’s report.

Crowe will retire as auditor of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
itself for re-appointment at the AGM.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 103 to 111 of this annual report.

By order of the Board

Ye Xing Group Holding Limited
Wu Guogqing

Chairman and executive Director
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report

A\ Crowe

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YE XING GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEZERERAA
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ye Xing Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 112 to 203, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

RS e

BEEEE (§8) SHMBEHAERAT
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

& REE 1BIEE775 SEP 0
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B B R ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional judgment, was
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Key audit matters

BRESE

REEIER

MRETFRERERMNEXAE - RA
BAMGAVBRENBTZRAEENSE
H o FUERARERMEBABESEAMER
KEHARRBETREN - HMTEHE
LEETRRHEBNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BEMWETNTRERREENSEE

Impairment of trade receivables and trade receivables from related parties

ESERFERERBEL ES5ERE

We identified impairment of trade receivables and trade
receivables from related parties as a key audit matter due to
the significance of these balances to the consolidated financial
statements and the involvement of subjective judgment and
estimates made by the directors of the Company in determining
the expected credit loss (“ECL”") for these balances.

MR E 5 EUWERIA K B W RE T 8 5 SRR s ETAR & B ek
MEZN ARk BRARESEEEXSANRNERGEERE
([FEREEBREDE S RIS HE R - Bt BRASESE
WORIE R W B E TS B SRR E S B RS ET S8 -

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s
trade receivables and trade receivables from related parties
were approximately RMB47,975,000 (net of allowance for credit
loss of approximately RMB4.915,000) and RMB104,662,000
(net of nil allowance for credit loss), respectively, as set out
in notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
which represented approximately 10.2% and 22.3% of total
assets of the Group. As further disclosed in these notes, the
Group applied internal credit rating for its corporate customers.
While the related parties and debtors with significant balances
were assessed individually, the remaining debtors were
grouped under a provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics and were assessed collectively, by reference
to past default experience and current past due exposure of
the debtors and adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

WINER S BTSRRI 19 R 20PFE, - R _—F+_HA=+—
H - BH£ENESEWHIEREKEESESFIENKE S
BEARDR/AREA7,975,000(BEMREEFERENHARE
4,915,0007T) 2 A R#104,662,0007T (B MK EEEBREET) -

DRNE BEBBEEML10.2%K22.3% © AL EH FTRTE
— SR BREHECERFEANIMEETR - BRYEH

BT RSB ARNES NETTEENE - BESROESARIRE
AR EERBSE - RIBEBABENROKERE /M8 SH
RERAETTRERE - WRRHANHIBZRARE NA A ESH
AR EERHE L HE -
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment of trade
receivables and trade receivables from related parties
included:

B E 5 IR KK BE R B S FIRRER B E
FredE

Obtaining an understanding of the ECL model
applied by the directors of the Company for the
estimation of the impairment of trade receivables
and trade receivables from related parties;

WA ENRIESAMEE SR WERIE R E Y
ERESRBERERNTEANEREERSE

LR

Assessing the reasonableness of the grouping
of debtors that are assessed collectively using
a provision matrix with reference to their credit
risk characteristics identified by the directors
of the Company; while for related parties and
individually debtors with significant balances,
assessing the creditability by evaluating their
past default records and their past due exposure,
on a sample basis;

28 BAREESMHBNEERREE - FHRR
BEREHERBNTMENEB A ENESBIEETT
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BB E (&)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) TEEKEEGE)

Key audit matters

BgESEH

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BN ET N AREBERENSEE

Impairment of trade receivables and trade receivables from related parties

ESERSBERERBED B5 5B RE

Expected loss rates are estimated by the directors of the
Company based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and recovery data that is
available without undue cost or effort. The loss allowance
amount is measured as the difference between asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
with the consideration of expected future credit loss of the
respective financial assets. The Group recognised a provision
of impairment loss on ECL of approximately RMB3,267,000
based on the provision matrix for trade receivables for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the directors of the Company
considered that there is no significant ECL for the trade
receivables from related parties.

TREEEER R BERRESEREWERRIEHFREE©#
RS EAERBANTBRSKARE 1 ENA S 8 U O SR
fhEt - BEBREEREAERAMERMGTRRRERENR
BErRNZRHETE  TEEHEeREENTHBRRESEE
B BEERBEEE T —F+-_A=+—HIFENE
SREWFIER BB  HRORNTEHREEERAEREOA
[R#3,267,0007T ' B BERAREFRRR  BUHETESHA
Wi E RN TEEEEE -

Evaluating the appropriateness of the methods
and assumptions used in the Group’s ECL model
based on our understanding of the Group’s
customer portfolio of related parties and other
customers and challenging the key assumptions
including the probability default rate, the loss
given rate and internal credit ratings applied
in the ECL model, with reference to the credit
quality of the customers, past default experience,
current past due exposure of the debtor and
forward-looking information, if applicable; and
RERME BEEEREHTRAGEFONTFES
BB - Mk ERENEREEBERIMER
WIERBRBRERRE W2EEFHNEEER
BEENKR  BEBABFIHE SRR RAETE
Hn@Em) - SrRsEaEREEAMmERNEER
R(BEEOME - BlRGTERASEETRRE
HER &

Verifying the ageing of trade receivables by
performing detailed testing, on a sample basis,
to the demand notes.
BRAHETAEHBEETFAAR  ZEEH
JE W TR IE ) R -

HEEEERERAT —Z=—5FRH

105



106

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B B R ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

BRES SR

FEERSZEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BB NG ERRETEE

/dentification and valuations of identifiable intangible assets acquired upon business combination and related
impairment of gooadwill and intangible assets acquired (the “Impairment”)

RIEE O AT Y Al 3 5 T B R R AL B R KB B B R AR TG A E G R 18 ([ 1R 6 B

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
completed the acquisition of the entire equity interests in
Jiangsu Wanhao Property Services Limited (“Jiangsu Wanhao”)
at a total consideration of RMB47,000,000.
REE-ZT-_—F+-A=1T—RILFE ' NEETK T H1H
EFMERBARAR(NIHER)WWE - WERERARK
47,000,0007T) °

The Group is required to allocate the purchase price to the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on
their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.
EEEARBEMEANERBRNEA AR BESBEBIEEM
UeHE H AT BRI & B M PR R BT -
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Our audit procedures in relation to the identification and
valuations of identifiable intangible assets acquired upon
business combination and the Impairment included:

R TG & GRS T BV AT B BT B E eV BER S b (B &2
HERENEHEF 2

° Assessing the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer
engaged by management;
FHMEERERENB L REEGEMNER 2R
FHL

° Obtaining an understanding and assessing
the rationale of management and independent
professional valuer on the identification of
intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition;

B % K BT B 1R JE N B B ZE A (B R 3L 75 R B R
WiE A I B B B E R AR B BRI



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

FRETSER

B 2B R ()

FEERSEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EANET N AREBRENSEE

Identification and valuations of identifiable intangible assets acquired upon business combination and related
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets acquired (the “Impairment”) (continued)

RIEE OFAT ATHRE 0 7T 33 5 S T B EE 38 R 18 (B R R B 2B R S T EE Y 46 3 st 1B ( FE R 1EL)) ()

Management engaged an independent professional valuer
to assist them to perform valuations using different valuation
methodologies for different types of assets. Intangible asset
of approximately RMB16,894,000 representing customer
relationship was identified and recognised, resulting in a
goodwill of approximately RMB29,330,000. Various key
assumptions and estimates were adopted in the valuation,
including revenue growth rate, discount rate, customers’
retention rate and remaining useful life of customers’ contracts.
ERELZRE 2B FEMER - BB NRMEREH TR
BEETHE - REMmE B LEREVEE(BREFBIER)
#IANRE16,894,0007T » EABEL ARY29,330,0007T ° fH{E
PERASERRERR LA  BREBEABERE  BREX  ZF
MAREREFE K FIRE WA -

We identified this matter as a key audit matter due to the
identification and valuation of intangible assets and impairment
assessment of identified intangible asset and goodwill required
significant management’s judgements and estimates.
BREIE—FE  DHRABRNEVEENERREERTEZE
BB ERAE R AR -

Refer to significant accounting policies in note 4 and key
sources of estimation uncertainty in note 5, the disclosures
of intangible assets and goodwill in notes 15 and 18, and
acquisition of a subsidiary in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

2R AMHPBRARMTAP ERGETHE - MEEsT A T HER
ENTERIR - M58 B EERGE - MfrEo6 YiE
—MMBARIR#EE

Obtaining an understanding of the impairment
assessment process used by the management
and the independent professional valuer to
estimate the recoverable amounts based on a
value in use calculation;

AR I8 B SO B (L E R R AR E R IR
Fr - AHEE AR B EE E R AT E S5

Evaluating other key assumptions used in the
valuations of fair values of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at date of
acquisition and the Impairment including
revenue growth rate, customers’ retention rate
and remaining useful life of customers’ contracts
by comparing these assumptions against the
Group’s historical data and relevant market data
as well as performing industry research; and
BBLLBZEREE BEEEESLBIERAERT
ISEBNCEITITREMR - AR UGS B EIRB#RIE
ERFfAENAEN AR BERBRRERANE
hEERR(BERAEREE EPREAEREP
SRNFSRBERE) + &

Testing the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying calculation of the fair values of
identifiable intangible assets acquired and the
Impairment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

B B R ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

B 2B R ()

REIRT R B o 4m B M IRR A RIE
ZEE

BAWER  RYGEVBHRREBREST
T 72 f PO BRRF X8R 7R T S8 B B A B8 AR B
MBAERE  LER MTUERERR
REPIFMHENREBEKHABEERMER
BB RS - R ZIMRRERIEEM
B o WAL ABEMIFRE 2 ABEHEM E A
ATHEBEEMEEREZEAES - RER
FREKENRE  BTRERERRELEE
FHERPETTIER - EX - EAHERRAE
RS BRETE IR o SRRRMRA AT A R BRFF S BB AR
51 - RRAEFEME M EBRIELLERA]
R EGAMBRREMERBES BRI
TEH AR TE - A BARO S8 SRR AL AT 4% AR
EEAX °

EREEBEFEIETETNBES &
PEER T HEXAE - RIS T EXRERE -
BAIIR -

. BRI AR A B A R S ER AR T B BAR
AU BBREFEEAHERRAA R
B Rt RMITEMEF A RS EL
R - AR R MEENEHE
& EREMBERZER - AREE
MRS R ABR - i  FERER E
RER - SORBRAEESZ £
It AR BE B IR RIREF M G B 2 AR
Rt B0 R A R BE IR R SH AR T 8
B EASRRRAA R -

. W AR B ER ST AR R O R ERIE S - AR
HEERNEIESF  BEMYFYE F
SERFEHNEREERER -

. AEEEMRASHERENRELR
TR SR AR AIIERI R EE S IR L -

HEEEERERAT —Z=—5FRH

109



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matter communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine the matter that was of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and is therefore
the key audit matter. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2022

Chung Wai Chuen Alfred
Practising Certificate Number: P05444
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

GEEERkEMZEINER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_Z-—F+-A=1T—HILHFE

2021 2020
—E--F —EEF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
st AR¥TT AREFT
Revenue g 6 336,828 261,405
Cost of services BR7E A A (247,198) (197,927)
Gross profit EFI 89,630 63,478
Other income E Uz A 7(a) 4,057 9,047
Other gains/(losses) Hipdgzs, (#518) 7(b) 1,691 (227)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—fHE AR ZEE 27 (2,401) -
Administrative expenses TR (43,693) (33,315)
Net (increase)/decrease in impairment  SE{EEIE (& H0), (5858
loss 8 (4,074) 147
Selling expenses HERX (972) (2,305)
Listing expenses EmAX - (4,853)
Interests on lease liabilities HERGEZNE 17 (65) (109)
Profit before tax B 75 B2 A 11 44173 31,863
Income tax expense FrisiF sz 9 (12,966) (11,101)
Profit and total comprehensive FERMNREARGEE
income for the year 31,207 20,762
Profit and total comprehensive TANEEFE s
income for the year attributable to: PEWE BT
— Owners of the Company NI SN 30,723 20,706
— Non-controlling interests — IR 484 56
31,207 20,762
Earnings per share (RMB cent) HRREF (A RES)
— Basic — B 12 7.58 5.40

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E B ESIR L &

As at 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ECEF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB ‘000
HisF ARKTFT ARBTFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 14 38,017 17,848
Intangible assets mVEE 15 18,866 3,500
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 16 - 549
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 1,165 811
Goodwill SRS 18 29,330 1,519
87,378 24,227
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAEKGRIE 19 108,775 37,246
Amounts due from related parties FEURBAE 5 3E 20 106,276 88,648
Bank balances and cash IRITEHRNIRS 21 167,139 277,680
382,190 403,574
CURRENT LIABILITIES V=N
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M FERRIE 22(a) 116,719 125,474
Contract liabilities EHEE 22(b) 81,202 67,949
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 538 968
Tax liabilities MIABE 3,812 32
202,271 194,423
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 179,919 209,151
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HwEERABAR
LIABILITIES 267,297 233,378
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 180 16
Deferred tax liabilities REHIEEE 16 2,548 -
2,728 16
NET ASSETS BEE 264,569 233,362
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR#E
Share capital &N 24 3,650 3,650
Reserves Gl 260,379 229,656
Total equity attributable to owners SBERANR RIS AR SRER
of the Company 264,029 233,306
Non-controlling interests eI A 540 56
TOTAL EQUITY RS 264,569 233,362

FU2HEF203BEMNGAMIEREEESTS
R_TE-_—_F=ZA= +jLE|%tt/E&HZé$IJ%*
RN TEERERES

The consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to 203 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March
2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

ZHAO WEIHAO &% WU GUOQING = B 5]
DIRECTOR % DIRECTOR &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in
mERER®

For the Year ended 31 December 2021

&

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—HLHFE

Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTRENEL
Non-
Share Share Statutory Capital Retained controlling
capital Premium reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests Total
e RiHEE EERE BAGE REER Nt FERER a3t
RUB00O AMB 000 AWBO00 RUB 00O AMB 000 AWBO00 RUB 000 AWB000
NEEFL  ANEETT  AREFT ARETr AREKFT AREFT ARKTT ARETR
(Nofe a) (Note b)
i) (Hite)
At 1 January 2020 WZEZEE-A-H - 46,606 15,068 (15,725) 30112 76,061 - 76,061
Profit and total comprenensive EEENRZANRAE

income for the year - - - - 20,706 20,706 56 20,762
Transfer to statutory reserve BETITRE - - 33% - (3335) - - -
Issue of new shares pursuantto — BELBEER{THRY

public offering (Note ) (Fzxd) 90 130,537 - - - 140,437 - 140,437
Capialisation issued of shares AR (o)

(Note ¢) 2,701 (2701) - - - - - -
Exercise of over-allotment option ~ 17(F R IRE (Hitd)

(Note d) £ 7549 - - - 7,59 - 7,59
Shere issuance coss RiEARA - (11,49) - - - (11,49) - (11,496)
At 1 January 2021 RZF=-%-f-H 3,650 179,49 18,403 (15,725) 47483 233,306 56 233,362
Profit and total comprenensive EERNRZANGAE

income for the year - - - - 30,723 30,723 484 31,207
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETRE - - 4018 - (4018) - - -
At 31 December 2021 RZB=-F

TZA=1-A 3,650 179,49 2421 (15,725) 74,188 264,029 540 264,569
Notes: P&
a. The statutory reserve represents the amount transferred from net profit a. JETE ik AR AR IR AE B R 2 AR A

for the year of the subsidiaries established in the People’'s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) (based on the subsidiaries’ PRC statutory
financial statements) in accordance with the relevant PRC laws until
the statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
subsidiaries. The statutory reserve cannot be reduced except either use
to set off the accumulated losses or increase capital.

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

The capital reserve represents: (1) the considerations paid by the
Group in excess of the paid-up capital of respective group entities
upon group reorganisation; (2) the capital injection paid by Winz
Strategy Company Limited (“Winz Strategy”) in excess of the paid-up
capital of Beijing Hongkun Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Hongkun”) (as detailed in Note e) upon the group reorganisation;
(8) elimination of share capital of Beijing Hongkun upon the group
reorganisation; and (4) issue of shares of the Company upon the group
reorganisation.

On 13 March 2020, the Company capitalised the sum of HK$2,999,900
(equivalent to RMB2,701,000) standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company and applied such sum in paying up
in full at par 299,990,000 shares for allotment and issued to existing
shareholders.

On 13 March 2020, in connection with the Listing, the Company issued
100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (a public offering in
Hong Kong of 50,000,000 and an international offering of 50,000,000
shares) at a price of HK$1.56 per share (equivalent to approximately
RMB1.40 per share) for a total of HK$156,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB140,437,000) with issuance costs amounted to
HK$12,119,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB11,001,000) being
charged to the Company’s share premium account.

In addition, on 3 April 2020, the over-allotment option in connection
with the Listing was exercised and as a result, additional 5,310,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$1.56
per share (equivalent to approximately RMB1.43 per share) for a total
of HK$8,284,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,598,000) with
issuance costs amounted to HK$543,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB495,000) being charged to the Company’s share premium
account.

REERBER(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

AAREBE  OREEEARAKED
NREBHEEEEBHREANESRE:
QI ZREER AR (AR XM
MEEBRIEREHYEERBRAF
(MEmsi ) REEBABROBRTER
(3)7 5% B E 4R 1% Y S5 A0 OB I 2 IR
MANEBEERETRRFZEND -

ANZZEZZEF=A+=8 " ARFHEAR
NAIR D 5 ERER $©%882,999,9008 7T
(FHENARE2,701,0007T) BFE A -
AR EE 4 2299,990,0000% B 15 LARD
BRBITTRAERRE -

—E-TFZA+ZA BLEmmE
AARIAERI56ETMER (HBER
FH 4 AR1.407T) %17100,000,000
BEBREEIOIETNEER (EF
78 AR 2 550,000,000 & B BR 3% &
50,000,0008%) * & 156,000,000 7T
(FHERHARH140,437,0007T) * 31T
AN A12,119,0008 7T (FHE R AR
11,001,0007T) * BEF AR BIH AR &
BERP -

o RZE—TFWA=H EHEH
BRRNBELRSEETE  BEUASR
1568 TTMER (HEREBRHARE
1.437T) %8 4M ¥ 775,310,0000% & f% @ (&
0.01B LWL @AL - & £8,284,0008 T
(HHE MWK ARH7,598,000T) » £
543,0007% 7T (18 & R 4 A R #495,000
TT) BB TR B R AR R B 8 IR 10 i B AR
R -

EESEERBRAE —Z-—FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= Ao~ — 1§
HERHERER
Year ended 31 December 2021
HEZT-_—F+ZA=1+—HLFE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARMTFT AREFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES SRR
Profit before tax R B A v ) 44,173 31,863
Adjustments for: ERE
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERERETE
equipment 4,808 1,044
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 1,188 866
Amortisation of intangible assets | A ESH 1,528 1,000
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment HERIEE (as) 4 )
Bank interest income RITHBULA (2,377) (899)
Interest income from IPO subscription — EXAFREREIRESH
deposits FEWA - (2,457)
Loans interest income BEF B A - (5,087)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HeE—BFATIZER 2,401 -
Impairment losses for trade Z 5 R E M BRI
and other receivables VERIEN SEi= 4,074 (147)
Interests on lease liabilities HEBEBEZFE 65 109
Effect of foreign exchange rate HNERE R G E) 2 fo %
changes 551 1,212
Operating cash flows before LiEE S Z AN
movements in working capital KEReRE 56,415 27,502
Increase in trade and H 5 R H M pERRIE
other receivables N (32,514) (14,872)
(Increase) decrease in amounts FEURBAE TS FE
due from related parties 0 (58,907) (16,971)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other & 5 K E b B~ 308
payables Ca ), /38 (9,013) 31,084
(Decrease)/Increase in contract AR EELM
liabilities 15,789 7,713
Cash generated from operations KEMEES (28,230) 34,456
Income tax paid BRI (9,882) (16,342)
NET CASH (USED INYGENERATED  &&EZ8(FiA), ISR &FE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (38,112) 18,114
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

ma

BenEk(&)

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE_ZS-—F+-A=1t—HIFE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ETF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
HisE ARMTFT ARHFr
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Advance to related parties MRAE 2 (35,218) (15,226)
Purchases of property, plant and BEME - l?ﬁb?& P
equipment (24,935) (15,950)
Repayment from related parties Z’gﬁﬁkﬁﬁ%’( 35,652 125,541
Loans to third parties BTEZFER - (235,629)
Repayment of loans by third parties 9%*)315\5\%%67\ - 235,629
Interest received B S 2,377 5,986
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition W& —FfEF AR 2 FRE R H
of a subsidiary 26 (45,132) -
Net cash outflow arising from disposal ~ H& B AR Z
of a subsidiary FIRERH 27 (2,767) -
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - BE KRB
plant and equipment FriS5K18 18 7
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM RETEFTAH), FERE3HE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (70,005) 100,358
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEED
Advance from related parties ERER BN - 10,776
Repayment to related parties MEETTER - (15,266)
Principal paid for lease liabilities HEaBEzENES (1,808) (924)
Interests paid on lease liabilities HEaGEZEMFE (65) (109)
Issue costs paid BT TRA - (12,408)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRMGN Z PS50 - 148,035
Interest income from IPO subscription — EX AR E wﬁﬁhzﬁﬁﬁ
deposits FLEHA - 2,457
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM BEER (A, Fis
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEFEE 25 (1,873) 132,561
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRREZEMEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS B FE (109,990) 251,033
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FYNzRERRESEEER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 277,680 27,859
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE NEERSH 2HE
RATE CHANGES (551) (1,212)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZRSRRESEEEE - B4R
AT END OF THE YEAR AND THHERAE
REPRESENTED BY BANK
BALANCES AND CASH 167,139 277,680
HEEBERERAT —S-—FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B ISR R MR

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BEZT-—F+ZA=T—HLLFE

118

1. GENERAL — &R
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted ARERZE—NF=ZA=+AR
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the BHREHBRARNEF22E(—NA—F
Cayman Islands Companies Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as EIFEN - KirE RIEFDRNHASES
consolidated and revised) on 26 March 2019. The addresses of the AR R ERREREBRAR -
registered office and principal place of business of the Company ARG FEMP =R R B
are stated in the section “Corporate Information” of the annual B A F IR A EVE R —ERIRA o
report.
The Company’s immediate holding company is Ascendor Futur, a ARAFNEZEERAFRBRES - %
limited company which was incorporated as an exempted company NEIRERBREAZFETMR LA K
with limited liability in the British Virgin Islands. BEHEARRA] -
The shares of the Company have been listed on Main board of The ARFRDR T _TF=A+=H
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 13 March 2020. EBEBBERXGMARARAENRL

o

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its RRABNFEEXEBRIREER « ANt
subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the provision of property BATEENREREMEEERSE &
management services and commercial operational services, and AEEERY - AARMBA RS
the particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 31. B HIEE3T -
The consolidated financial statements is presented in RMB, which is REVBREUARKZY - 8RR
the same as the functional currency of the Company. AIBIIRE B A -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION FRENBBRRAGEREEINE

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) .

Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs

(i)

(ii)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
January 2020

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended

HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting

period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 related Rent
Concession

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform-Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

In addition, the Group has early adopted the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19 related rent concession beyond 30 June
2021.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
period has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior periods
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

Other than the amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid 19-related
rent concession beyond 30 June 2021, the Group has not
applied any new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective for financial year beginning 1 January
2021. These new and revised HKFRSs include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

mE M BRR A (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021

#HE

—E-—F+-A=+—HIEE

3. EAMTREETERBUBR

HE

(i)

(ii)

A
RANFT ] HERT B A

BmAER BT

BRI AGERMZENA
SEA SR ER LR
SRERT BB B RELED

BAMBHREEN  HERSHE
F165(EFTA) HEES

BAMBHRERA  MREERE
FOUW - BAER =B

ERIEIERERE
PIRE LR
FTH - DAY
REERFAH R
BRMBHREER
F165 (EFTA)

o EER T = —FXHA
=T RERARABEBUBRE
EAF16SR (BRI A HERSH
BHSED -

R HAfE FE R & B B 15 3 5 42 B
BB RT & A SR B A HIR A
A AR B0 B A AROR RN A T R IR =
HREEAVBRER T AENE
EEEATE -

£ 3B 1518 145K R 0
L TR
424

BT EEMBREERE165%
TR T =_—FA=TH
%2019 BERAmSHREBES
MRS AEELEERERD
BHEMAR T =—F—HA—
B P86 80 81 IR F 2 AR R # AT
BEFTNBBMBRERER - &
LRI BRI B BN RS
R (TREERAEEE AT ¢
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FEMBRRME(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HI=FE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs (Continued)

(i) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a
Contrac"
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020"

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

and HK Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation
of Financial Statements - Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause?
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts and the Related Amendments?
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture?®
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.
8 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the

sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs (CONTINUED)

(i) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

REMBEmERME(E)
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_EZ-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FE M BHRME(FE)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

122

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the financial
statements of the Company and companies controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the
Company:

Ej{ﬁ*ﬁ%(mﬁ)

ZETBEREIIAT ¢
1\/T\ (=) gﬁ

HEVBRRBRARANLBEARRA
B R EL Y A R ] B R RO B IS HR
xeo EBERAENATERLTEREES
1

. has power over the investee; o AT E HITERE D
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its . ?yt)iﬁ,,\’f&&ﬁﬁ%fxﬂ’ff“

involvement with the investee; and
° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary or business begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary or business and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary or business. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date of the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary or business.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries or business is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

REMBEmERME(E)
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—FFT-A=THLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
FEVBRRME(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFHBEERE

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations i

Acquisitions of businesses, other than business combination W % (R EES TR B a0t
under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition SNERABBET AR - XBai B
accounting. The consideration transferred in a business BERERATENE  MAEFER
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the REEMEEEECWEBBRAT
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by B NEBE MW EE T AR ARE
the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners 2 BE R AN S B B A MR R T P
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in BT 2 IR AT 2 2 4870 o ULHE AR
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are BER—MREERTERER -

generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and RS B B - PRUCEE RT s Rl & 2 I P

the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the AEEBREDAIE R BEQ T ER

acquisition date, except that: R A TERERSN

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related . EEHEEENBERESR
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and BT BBEAaERERE
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and DRREB ST LERIE 1255
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively; FEHRBEBGETERE19

SRESEFERNETE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (Continued)

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangement of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition
date;

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in
HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases at the
acquisition date, except for leases for which the lease term
ends within 12 months of the acquisition date. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same amount as
the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with market
terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

REMBHmRERME(E)
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+-_A=1T—HILEFE

EXETEHERGE

XBaotE)

RUEETT AR D AR 2 (R %
BESUAR R BT SLIA B D B A
Z R FRB A 8 07 LA B A
REWRZNRLHERZ BEX
AT AR B BRERE
IS HmERERFAE

o  REBFEVMBREEAFLNRA
IFHEZHRBEER AU
EXFOBRRARFLEZEE
G ERRNIZZENE + &

e MEARBNBHEENR(ER
REBYHRELERFE165E) 0
REEALGE  HlEnE
ERNWEER A¥EE - ERER
PR UL EE B A1 218 A AR o (£
REEERERREERERR
M ERER LA E - WHETHE
R ET ISR EEN A
B AFIERSK -

BEEAMEEIRE  RERBETZ
EAAT IR AR 2R P A 2 3R S B 77 JA
EREZRRBETRA RS 2 AP E
(WnE) Z 4 - BB FTREE R BRI E
KA EafER BB AR FEZE
A8 o MEBRAR - PR
PEEEMAZEBENERRZF
ERREEIRE - FFEREDNEK
WEEH RS BARKE T AERE
WUEE T i 2 NP EE) 2 E A
AIZBABNRENERREERE
Wz e

HEEEERERAT —Z=—5FRH

125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R M ()

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

126

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEREFTEEGE
(CONTINUED)
Business combinations (Continued) X% E0E)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at
fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing
The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of a contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
agreements in which it is the lessee at the lease commencement
date, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these
leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate;
° the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

The lease liabilities are presented on a separate line in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The lease liabilities are subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)
whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

° the lease payments changes due to changes in an index or
rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to
a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised
discount rate is used).

. a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liabilities, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEARSTBEE@E)
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued) ME @)

The Group as lessee (Continued) REBEREBAGE

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle
and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located
or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured under HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and
contingent assets”. The costs are included in the related right-of-
use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease
term and useful live of the underlying asset. If a lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset
reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the
related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented on a separate line in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

As a practical expedient, HKFRS 16 permits a lessee not to
separate non-lease components from lease components, and
instead account for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components a single component. The Group chooses to
use this practical expedient.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.
Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer
° Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract
° Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

° Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to customers.

Control of the service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the service is transferred over time if:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

. the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEREFTEEGE
(CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (Continued) W ER (58)

If control of the service transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the service.

The Group provides property management services, property
developer related services and value-added services to property
developers, property owners and residents. Revenue from providing
services is recognised over time in the period in which the services
are rendered.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of services transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract, that best depict
the Group’s performance in transferring control of services.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents
the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing services to a customer,
the Group determines whether the nature of its promise is a
performance obligation to provide the specified services itself (i.e.
the Group is a principal) or to arrange for those services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified service before
that service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified service by another party. In this
case, the Group does not control the specified service provided
by another party before that service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified services to be provided
by the other party.

Property management services

For property management services fee income from properties
managed under lump-sum basis, where the Group acts as principal
and is primary responsible for providing the property management
services to the property owners, the Group recognises the fee
received or receivable from property owners, which is a fixed
amount, as its revenue and all related property management costs
as its cost of services. For property management services fee
income from properties managed under commission basis, where
the Group acts as agent, the Group recognised its revenue on a net
basis. On a commission basis, the Group charges a pre-determined
percentage at 10% of the total property management fees received.
Any direct cost under the property management service agreement
shall be borne by property owners and residents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEREFTEEGE
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued) Wt (&
Property developer related services Y 3B B rs AR BA IR A

Property developer related services to property developers and
other property management service companies mainly include
property planning and design consultancy services, pre-delivery
inspection services, sales assistance services, post-delivery repair
services or a combination of these services at the pre-delivery
stage to property buyers. The Group agrees the price for each
service with the customers upfront and issues the monthly bill to
the customers which varies based on the actual level of service
completed in that month.

Value-added services

For value-added services, it includes community-related services
ranging from utilities services, household repair and maintenance
services to other value-added services that meet the daily needs
of the property owners and residents. Revenue is recognised
over time/at a point in time in the period when the related value-
added services are rendered. Payment of the transaction is due
immediately when the value-added services are rendered to the
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

REMBEmERME(E)
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+-_A=1T—HILEFE

EXETEHERGE

SN

REENEEEREZMBEHRKRE - X
ZERMBEEB AN B ONE) P
TP TR 5 E R ZBRITERHE
R NIEHR - AIMNEFIEZ BT
HANEZAZERERSHHRE -
IONESHEX IR R FEARZIFER
HERBEETAFECAZERERE
ME o WINEBESLKAG 8 2R
BEHEBATTENRE -

REEERHAREMREEKIAH
MELXZELZ®E REEEHEE
BREATER

HEEBERERLE —T-—F5H

137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GEUBREME (&

For the Year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T_—F+-A=1t—"HILFE

138

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES EARSTBEE)
(CONTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs IRRABFI A AR

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans and state-
managed retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deduction of any
amount already paid.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit during the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwiill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEREFTEEGE
(CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued) I8 (%)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities
and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS
15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a settlement
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
periods. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances and cash) are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are measured
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend but includes interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains or losses” line
item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit-risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables, amounts due from related parties and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognised lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix
i.e. analysis of trade receivables by aging and apply a probability-
weighted estimate of the credit losses within the relevant time band.
The probability-weighted estimate of the credit losses is determined
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from financial analysts and governmental bodies, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information that related to the Group’s core operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFHBEERE

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR T B (5B)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued) BN RFISWA (&)
Definition of default EREIUE

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event
of default occurs when information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

. it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and
other receivables from individual customers, amounts due
from related parties are each assessed as a separate group.
Trade receivables from customers which significant balances
are assessed for expected credit losses on an individual
basis); and

° Past-due status.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management of the Group

to ensure the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREFHBEERE

148

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued) SR T B (5B)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued) BN RFISWA (&)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the corresponding adjustment
is recognised through a loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Classification of financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the group entities are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and amounts
due to related parties) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when,
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
twelve months.

Impairment assessment of expected credit losses
for trade receivables and trade receivables from
related parties

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to estimates the
amount of loss allowance for ECL on trade receivables and
amounts due from related parties that are measured at amortised
cost based on the credit risk of the respective financial instruments.
The loss allowance amount is measured as the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future credit loss of the respective
financial instrument. The assessment of the credit risk of the
respective financial instrument involves high degree of estimation
and uncertainty. When the actual future cash flows are less than
expected or more than expected, a material impairment loss or a
material reversal of impairment loss may arise, accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of trade receivables
amounted to RMB47,975,000 (net of allowance for credit loss of
RMB4,915,000) (2020: RMB29,223,000 (net of allowance for credit
loss of RMB1,760,000)) as disclosed in Note 19 and amounts
due from related parties amounted to RMB104,662,000 (2020:
RMB77,320,000) net of nil allowance (2020: nil) as disclosed in Note
20.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill amounted
to RMB29,330,000 (2020: RMB1,519,000) as disclosed in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets with finite useful lives

In determining the recoverable amounts of these assets, expected
cash flows to be generated by the assets are discounted to their
present value, which involves significant levels of estimates relating
to sales volume, selling prices and other operating costs. When a
decline in an asset’s recoverable amount has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment amounted to RMB38,017,000 (2020: RMB17,848,000) as
disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, and
intangible assets with finite useful lives amounted to RMB 18,866,000
(2020: RMB3,500,000) as disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Valuations of identifiable intangible assets acquired
upon business combination

The Group had completed a business combination during the
year and intangible assets and goodwill totaling approximately
RMB16,894,000 and approximately RMB29,330,000 respectively
were resulted from the acquisition. The fair value of intangible assets
and the purchase price allocation were supported by valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer. The Group used
judgement in making the assumptions on key estimates including
revenue growth, useful life of the intangible assets and discount rate
based on the Group’s past history, existing market condition and
forward looking estimates.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable for
(i) property management service, (ii) property developer related
services, and (iii) value-added services.

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) of the Group, for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the revenue analysis of each operating
segment in the provision of property management service,
property developer related services and value-added services of
the Group. Other than the revenue analysis as set out below, no
operating results and other discrete financial information including
geographical location by operating segments relating to provision
of property management service, property developer related
services and value added services is prepared regularly for internal
reporting to the CODM for resources allocation and performance
assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE M BRR A (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_EZ-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERIHBERGE

(CONTINUED)
No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is presented WAZIDHEERSBEEND
as these information are not regularly provided to the CODM for i DEZEERLARTERREETE
review. BIRERFEEN -
Revenue from major services F ZERriFay ke
2021 2020
—E-——F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMTFT AREFT
Type of services Jilgr% e
Property management services YIEEIR R 259,197 191,851
Property developer related services Y2 BB R AR S 43,462 45,679
Value-added services (B ARFE 34,169 23,875
336,828 261,405
Type of customers BPEEAR
External customers HNERE P 287,687 211,373
Fellow subsidiaries CEL VNG 49,141 50,032
336,828 261,405
Timing of revenue recognition W R R ]
Over time —BREER 323,681 248,656
A point in time PRI (ERF 2, 13,147 12,749
336,828 261,405
Performance obligations for the provision of property management REWMEEERS  WEREEIEH
services, property developer related services and value-added Rl %5 K 3% 18 AR 7% 8 B 40 & (£ /9 BARR /&
services are either for a period of one year or less or bill a fixed —FERBAENHE A RENRE
amount for each month of services provided. As permitted under KWREESEER - REFAMBER
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied HEREASHEAAT - WRBEBESE
contracts is not disclosed. %uZ%*ETT XS EIE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—HLLEFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERIHBERGE

(CONTINUED)
Geographical information = &k
The Group’s revenue from customers is derived solely from its AEENEFPKBEERBRFENE
operations and services rendered in the PRC, and the non-current BRETIREORE - BEASEIERY
assets of the Group are all located in the PRC. BEMYNAFE o
Information about major customers FEXFER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing MHEFEMAEEBKZEI0%IA L8
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: EPYEIT
2021 2020
—E-—F ZTTF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT AREFT
Fellow subsidiaries (Note) EESI =N iFE9) 49,141 50,032
Note: The fellow subsidiaries are companies in which the Controlling P &E - @,‘ﬁmga@mgmﬁﬁmmp
Shareholders has beneficial interest. BRRRERODF
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OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES 7.

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Other Income

REMBEmERME(E)
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE T —F+_fF=+—HBItEE

Htt AR H s8R
(a) EMKA

2021 2020
—B-—-F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT
Interest income from IPO subscription BARRBEERBILZEH - 2,457
deposits FLEMA
Bank interest income ERITHBUA 2,377 899
Value-add tax refund IET R 1,680 -
Loans interest income ERFLEBHA - 5,087
Others H - 604
4,057 9,047
Other gains/(losses) (b) EHtz (EE)
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ERTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment BER) (B518), W 4) 2
Government subsidy (Note) BT B (B ) 2,326 -
Net exchange loss b W 518 5 28 (507) (696)
Others H (124) 467
1,691 (227)
Note : Htat -
The government subsidy represents subsidy received from BUAS # Bh A 4B BE B AT 2B PT A S 45 AR

relevant government authority for supporting initial public
offering of the Company’s shares in 2020. There are no unfulfilled
conditions and other contingencies attaching to it.

ANEIR2020F TR AR EITR
EmMRENMHE  ZEHITFE
REITHMRG R B EE -

EESEZRARAE

R —FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HILFE

8. NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN IMPAIRMENT 8. JMEEE®LN, (Hd)FEE

LOSS
2021 2020
—B--F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFT
Impairment losses recognised on: ERERAEEE ¢
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 3,267 (405)
Other receivables Hfth EUERIR 807 258
4,074 (147)
Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31 December REBEE-Z - —FR-_F-FTFA+=
2021 and 2020 are set out in Note 19. R=+—BIFERENEFESR
HMIEE19
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE M BRR A (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+-_A=1T—HILEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrE8ipE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ERTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥TFr
Current tax BNHARE 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) RGBSR (REMSTH]) 14,115 11,063
Deferred tax (Note 16) RERE (PI5E16) (1,149) 38
12,966 11,101

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on EIT (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. For Beijing Hongkun Property
Management Company Limited (“Beijing Hongkun Property
Management”), Yichang Zhongxiang Property Management Co.,
Limited (“Yichang Zhongxiang”), Chengde Hongkun Guangsha
Property Management Co., Limited (“Chengde Hongkun”) and
Hongkun Valley Enterprise Operation Management Company
Limited (“Hongkun Valley”), they were recognised as a small profit
enterprise in 2021 and 2020. The portion of annual taxable income
amount, which does not exceed RMB1 million, shall be computed at
a reduced rate of 25% as taxable income amount, and be subject
to enterprise income tax at 20%. And the portion of annual taxable
income, which exceeds RMB1 million but does not exceed RMB3
million, shall be computed at a reduced rate of 50% as taxable
income amount, and be subject to enterprise income tax at 20%.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Company and the group entity incorporated in the BVI are
not subject to income tax in the Cayman Islands or any other
jurisdiction.

RIEPEAREMBECEAAERETD
¥MBREAD REEMBRAE K
- PEKBARNEAE25% ° 4t
FURHYEEBEERAR - HEEFTH
MEBIBER DT - AEBIMEEY)
EERAR QBT ZBH A EE
EERER A RZE_—F k=
T _TFERAANDEBADE - K
R EMESATBBAARBIEET
RIERD - FERIR25% T B ERT TS
BH o WHIAN 20% M EFTSEL  mE
ERTFSEBBARB1IAELER
BBARE3 BELHED @ ERIZ
50%FH HERFLATSEE - WHM20%
WD ERTSH

HRAEERBE T _—FR=FT
“EFE+ A=+ -HIEFESKRA
WIHELERES  THFREEL - &
I BB ROB IR B -

RRB R BB R LR SR AL &Y
SEERHAEHSHEREMNEA
RIERER BT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021

BE_T_—F+-A=1t—"HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9.

The income tax expense for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

FriS BB < (&)

BHE-_Z-—Fk-_T-ZTF+=A
=+ —BILFEMESHRAZ BRI
wBARBAEBER M EMEE SR
RIEERIOT -

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARMFIT AEHFT
Profit before tax FR SR A 44,173 31,863
Tax at the applicable tax rate AR R EBIE 11,473 8,301
Tax effect of preferential tax rate EERENT G E (806) (576)
Tax effect of expenses not A EB S EOREE
deductible for tax purposes 2,155 1,044
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERRIBEIBN S E 1,816 1,333
Tax effect of income not taxable for TAHEFU AT IS 2
tax purpose (588) -
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAFERERER)BETR (986) 272
Over-provision in current year REE RS - 727
Others HA (98) -
12,966 11,101

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EE  RETBRAEREESF
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS [}

REE_TE-_—FR-FZTF+=
BA=+—HL&E i/ EBEEAA
AEENHE (BEXNAEERTEER
PEBEE S ETE 8 FriR RIS A BN

Details of the emoluments paid/payable to the directors of the
Company (including emoluments for the services as employees of
the group entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company)
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follow:

B)FFIBEET :
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EC-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEB¥TTT ARMTF T
Directors’ fee FEEE - -
Other emoluments HoAth F B
— salaries and other benefits —¥re REMER 2,916 2,548
— discretionary bonus —IBIEAL 300 24
— contributions to retirement — iR RS 3R
benefit scheme 225 93
3,441 2,665
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mE M BRR A (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE T - —F+-A=1+—HIEE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10. EX RE{THAERESFH
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) BN (48)
Salaries Contributions
and other  Discretionary to retirement Total
Fee benefits bonus  benefit scheme amount
ek RIER
e B3R BigTA HEI:2 2
AMB000 RMB000 AMB000 RMB000 RMB000
NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT NEEFT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-E--&
tZR=t-BLEE
Executive dlrectors HIEE
Ms. Wu Guoging REWTL - 1,47 100 115 1,632
M. Zhao Weihao BEFEE - 378 - 18 396
Ms. Li Yin Ping £33 - 233 - 12 25
Ms. Zhang Chunying FHEENT
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (BN -F-—FLFR) - 376 200 80 656
Non-executive director FHIEE
M. Li Yifan -k
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (FHR=F=—FtALtA) - - - - -
Independent non-executive director BT HHFEE
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung REREE - 147 - - 147
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REELE - 147 - - 147
Ms. Chen Weijie Rt - 147 - - 147
Mr. Leung Ka Wo RRAEE
(appointed on 7 July 2021) (FRR=F=—FtALA) - 1l - - 7
Total fit - 2916 300 225 3,441
Year ended 31 December 2020 Bz-goER
TZA=t-ALEE
Executive directors HiTEE
Ms. Wu Guoging REFART - 1467 2% 63 1,554
Mr. Zhao Weihao BERLE - 389 - 15 404
Ms. Li Yin Ping FRELT - 389 - 15 404
Independent non-executive directors  BUE7TEE
Mr. Cheung Wai Hung REREE
(appointed on 17 February 2020) (ERR=F=FF=FT+A) - 101 - - 101
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REERE
(appointed on 17 February 2020) (ERR=F=FF=FT++A) - 101 - - 101
Ms. Chen Weijie et
(appainted on 17 February 2020) (ERR=F=FF=AT+A) - 101 - - 101
Total At - 2,548 4 93 2,665
HEEEEZEREBRAR —Z-—F5R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

REMBHRRMFT(E)
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_T_—F+-A=1t—"HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note: The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group. The non-executive director's and
independent non-executive directors' emoluments shown above
were for the services as directors of the Company.

The discretionary bonus is determined based on the performance
of individual and market trend for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: one). The
remunerations of the remaining three individuals (2020: four) for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below:

10. EF  RETBRABRESH
B (&)
fisk: LRMTEEHMARSHERA

RERAEE FEAIR IR &
B o bl 3R 99T 3 % A0 08 SO F BA
EERRAEERAAMRBNES
e -

HEEAERBE_T_—FR_
ZTFET A=+ -HIEFER
BEARRETIHBLEE -

BE-ZF-_—#F+=-A=+—HL
FE AEBALZERETHALE
EMEER(ZTTF : —H) -
Hz-_Z-_—4#+=-A=+—HLt
FE BTZBAL(CE-ZF:
PO KIF BN

2021 2020

—BC-—F —ETHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FrT ARKFIT

Salaries and other benefits e REAMER 1,664 2,389

Discretionary bonus BYIFTEAL 323 15

Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R /R4&FI5t Bl 257 152

2,244 2,556

The emoluments were within the following bands:

2021 2020

—EB-—fF —E-TF

No. of employees No. of employees

EEA™ BB A%

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/5 7T 3 4
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no REBE-_F-_-—FR_F_FF

emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the
five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no directors waived
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

160 Ye Xing Group Holdings Limited 2021 Annual Report

+-ZA=+—BLEE  RNEEH
BATMNESKAETREH AL
(PHREEREE) AWM E -
EBRBI A S I A K £ @ik 5 8
X EABRME - 1 REE
T FR-ZFTZZTF+=A
=t+—HIFE BEZEFRECL
A& o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B RRMEE (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021

BHE_Z_—F+_A=1t—HILFE

EX  BETHABREEH
i (48)
HE - —FR-_ZE-FTF+-A

=t BLEFEE  ARERERER
B D IR AR AR R AR R BR Y i

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 10.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under retirement benefit plan utilised
to reduce future contributions.

4,
/N

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11. BREANER
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEFTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARETFT
Profit before tax for the year has been FABRB AT ISR IA T 5IE
arrived at after charging: fFH
Auditors’ remuneration 2 Gl
— audit services —ZERTE 1,700 1,987
— non-audit services — IERL B RTS 600 726
2,300 2,713
Directors’ emoluments (Note 10) FE2WE (FIzE10) 3,441 2,665
Other staff's salaries and other benefits ~ Efh 8 T &4 M HthiEF| 76,283 68,345
Other staff's contributions to Hih B T 7 RIREFIF SR
retirement benefit scheme 16,186 5,194
Other staff's contributions to HEMET2FEAESHER
housing provident funds 2,706 2,071
Total staff costs B IR AR4A%E 98,616 78,275
Depreciation for property, M - BEREETE
plant and equipment 4,808 1,044
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 1,188 866
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EE 1,528 1,000
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FEMBRRME(E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021

Bz

—FtZA=1T—RIFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. BRER
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit BRERBNEENEBERABNF
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average /F'EJF‘?L/($¢§'* THE BAR INHE T &
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. FTEMmE
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the weighted average HE-Z-TF+-_A=+—HIEF
number of ordinary shares was based on the assumption that the EEEERINE TS ERRRE
reorganisation and the capitalisation issue as detailed in “History, EEHRERETEIE ﬁﬁ(‘zliﬁj
Reorganisation and corporate structure” and “Share Capital” in the WHRRERIESL EZE& GES
Prospectus of the Company had been effective on 1 January 2020. MBEEADBERZZE=_=4F— ﬂ =S
e
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to RATHE ANEEERERNZF O
owners of the Company is based on the following data: HTERATEIE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Earnings for the purposes of basic EREARZFME R T
earnings per share, as appropriate (Profit  (2NiER) (ANA A A
for the year attributable to owners of the — E{L4E i A1)
Company) 30,723 20,706
Number of Number of
shares shares
RBEE B
Weighted average number of ordinary EREAZFME K
shares for the purposes of basic Lm AR N T 2
earnings per share 405,310,000 384,519,534
No diluted earnings per share is presented for each of the years HE-_ZT-_—FR-ZT-_FF+-A

=t—HLEEE  SREJNEIFER
BN DRZEFEYEEENDE
TTEB -

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as there is no potential
ordinary shares in issue during those years.
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B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ET-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for %%TE%M’EH%E —E-—FR=
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. TZ_EFF+ A=+ —BIEFENE
{THX/%\ ©
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold land Leasehold fixtures and
and building improvement equipment Total
HELi A BE
RETF HEEE RERRE @t
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000

ARETT ANRETT ANERETT ANERETT

At 1 January 2020 RZZE-ZF—-F—H 1,073 - 3,922 4,995
Additions NE - 14,486 1,464 15,950
Disposals HE - - (65) (65)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZEZZTF+-A=T—AK

1 January 2021 —T-—%-A—H 1,073 14,486 5,321 20,880
Additions R 22,338 "7 2,520 24,935
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y —mF AR 0 226)

(Note 26) - - 101 101
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) & —BEF AR (H:727) - - (127) (127)
Disposals HE - - (24) (24)
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—F

+-A=+—H 23,411 14,563 7,791 45,765
DEPRECIATION ?ﬁ%
At 1 January 2020 e 163 - 1,895 2,048
Provided for the year FERE 51 241 752 1,044
Eliminated on disposals R B - - (60) (60)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZTF+ZA=+—HK

1 January 2021 —T-—-%-f—-H 204 241 2,587 3,032
Provided for the year FEEE 51 2,975 1,782 4,808
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) tH&E—RT AR (H227) - - (90) (90)
Eliminated on disposals P R - - () )
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ—5+ZA=+—H 255 3,216 4,277 7,748
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZE+-A=1—H 869 14,245 2734 17,848
At 31 December 2021 RZB_—%+-A=+—H 23,156 11,347 3514 38,017
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MR (R)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERRE (@)

(CONTINUED)

Ltz - BEREEEE DRER
SR A AR R AR FIERE
BREAERER TS F L RET

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
over their estimate useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum: i
Leasehold land Over the shorter of FE T RIESF + A8 B sk 205
and building the term of land lease (AEF2 = B2E)
or 20 years
Leasehold improvement 5 years HERE 5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 10 years RE - BEEERE 3E104F
K&
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Software Customer
copyrights relationships Total
B EFBE @5t
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANEEFT ANEBFT ANEBFT
COST BA
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RZZ-TF—-F—AH"
1 January 2021 ZZZZF+ZA=1-H
k=—Z-—-%—-fA—H 5,000 - 5,000
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 26) WEE—R B AR (Hat26) - 16,894 16,894
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F+-A=1+-H 5,000 16,894 21,894
Amortisation B
At 1January 2020 R-ZE-ZTF—-F—H 500 - 500
Charge for the year FREH 1,000 - 1,000
At 31 Decerrber 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZZZTF+-A=1—H
R=Z=-F—-A—H 1,500 - 1,500
Charge for the year FREH 1,000 528 1,528
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—F+-A=+—H 2,500 528 3,028
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-FTF+-A=+—H 3,500 - 3,500
At 31 December 2021 R-B--F+-A=+-H 2,500 16,366 18,866
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B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ET-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 15. BEE(GE)

Notes:

a. During the year ended 31 December 2018, Hongkun Holding REZE-—Z—NE+-A=+—8
developed two mobile applications called Hongkunhui* #8if& WEE Bl R R mERR
and H-Butler* %% %K. Hongkun Holding agreed that the Group EEREFIEHE N H-Butler g
can use the above copyrighted software on a royalty-free basis. R oo JEHIE IR S AN E BT
In order to expand the functions of the mobile applications, MEEEH L RESG - BERE
on 10 June 2019, the Group entered into a software copyright BEARFNIIE RS —h&
transferring agreement with Hongkun Holding, pursuant to which NA+TH  RE®EE ST
Hongkun Holding as vendor sold and the Group as purchaser SRR AR R YR o YRR
acquired some copyrighted software (i.e. Hongkunhui* J&#& and BUHEAE R HE  MAEEES
H-Butler* 6% %) at a consideration of RMB5,000,000. The Group BB S TRES (AL mE
visualise Hongkunhui* J838# as a platform for the development FH-ButlerlB &%) - KEBAARK
and dissipation of new value-added services, whereas H-Butler* 5.000,0007T ° 7S£ @ 45 8 s & 7]
JE R as the key supporting tool for staff in carrying out daily WAL o B e % ST S (E RS B T
functions. & MH-Butle8ERA RS THE

FETFENEEXHTH-

The software copyrights have finite useful lives and are amortised BHREEEBRHNFERFEH - B
on a straight-line basis over 5 years. REF NIREAREES -

b. The customer relationships were acquired as part of a business EEHEABE-_ZE-_—F+=-A4

combination completed during the year ended 31 December
2021 (Note 26), which represents property management service
contracts. They were recognised at their fair values at the date
of acquisition and are subsequently amortised on a straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives of 8 years.

=t HIEFETKNEBE N
—#o (H52e) - BREWEEERR
BER - ELEETERBRANAR
BERER  ERERSFHOMHFAE
RERNRERERE -

HEEEERERAT —Z=—5FRH
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PR M (&)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—HLLEFE

16. DEFERRED TAXATION 16. EERIE
Movements in the Group’s net deferred tax position for the year are REBAFEEFREFRGRMANE
as follow: E N
2021 2020
—B-—-F T
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARHTFT ARETFIT

Recognised net deferred tax ERREERIBF (BB EE

assets (liabilities)
At the beginning of the reporting period AR HI%) 549 587
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 26) U g — P 2 B (FsE26) (4,224) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) & — B A T (H7E27) (22) -
Credited/(charged) to consolidated profit &A1) G454 B

or loss 1,149 (38)
At the end of the reporting period RS EAR (2,548) 549
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M F R M o (48D

For the Year ended 31 December 2021

qH=E —F+_A=+—RILFE
16. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED) 16. IEFEBIIE (&)
Recognised net deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the HERSHAREERNELERIEFE
reporting period represent the following: EXRAENAT
Assets Liabilities
BE 8

2021 2020 2021 2020

—B--f e e 23 —B--f e i 223

RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARETT AREFT ANRETT

Allowance for doubtful debts REREERE 1,544 549 - -
Fair value adjustment on EBAHRERY

business combination B EEEE - - (4,092) -
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) ECHIBEE / (Bf8) 1,544 549 (4,092) -
Offsetting i (1,544) - 1,544 -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) ~ EEREF(EE) /BfE - 549 (2,548) -
At 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H &%
RMB17,880,000 (2020: RMB8,895,000) available to offset against @T?ﬁﬁiﬁ]@mfumﬂiﬁﬁﬁmﬁiﬂa
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect ABARKE17,880,000L(ZE=FF :
of the tax losses, respectively, due to unpredictability of future profit AERHE8,895,0007T) © FF A AHE R
streams. The unrecognised tax losses in the PRC will expire from FORTER - ARSI IR R RRIT
2022 to 2026. %RIE BE - PRNAERBIABER

RIEZZFEZTRFEM -

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends BEFECEMERE  BZZFN
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 F—A—BR REHNBARERR
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided HRER NS IROKREHANENF -
for in the consolidated statements of financial position in respect of RZTE_—F+ZA=+—8 I
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC RRERE M BRRRAS R ENE R
subsidiaries amounting to RMB100,691,000 as at 31 December BES A H%r EBAR
2021 (2020: RMB91,064,000), respectively, as the Group is able to 100,691,0007C (=& —F4F : /\E’iﬁ
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and 91,064,0007T) 1E LR EF BB -
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 7R & B B 2 2 I B 1 = R[] E’\J
foreseeable future. Frfdl - BEREZERAEETIERA

T8 R
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ZT-_—F+_A=+—HI=FE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EREEE
AEEHERFEMERETIEEMN
e - MERENETHR —K
RBIESF - HERRIIIRERIE £
& BE TREEK T - HER
T EEMEMNRY - BREEET

The Group leases office premises and staff quarters to operate
its business. Property leases are typically made for fixed periods
of 11to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain various different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may

not be used as security for borrowing purposes. 1S RVEERIER -
The average lease term are 3 years (2020: 2 years) for the years HE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—HL
ended 31 December 2021. FE - FHHEHBAAE=F(2020F ' W
F) e
RMB'000
ARBTT
cosT A
At 1 January 2020 RZZZFF—H—H 6,631
Additions i 91
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZZEZZTF+A=+—HK
—E-—%—Hf—H 6,722
Additions i 1,300
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 26) W bE — 7R R (B77226) 242
Termination of lease MEKIE (4,694)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 3,570
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2020 R-E-ZTF—HF—H 5,045
Provided for the year FERE 866
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 RZBZEF+A=1+—HEK
—E-_—%—HA—H 5,911
Provided for the year FERE 1,188
Termination of lease HERIE (4,694)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-—F+-A=+—H 2,405
CARRYING VALUES SREIE
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZFE+_A=+—H 811
At 31 December 2021 R-E-_—-F+=-HA=+—H 1,165
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B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ET-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. FRAEEEGE)
The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other rEBEREEMEAKEREE T
comprehensive income contain the following amounts relating to BRAHENSE -
leases:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMFT ARETT

Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 1,188 866
Interests on lease liabilities HEAGBZHE 65 109
18. GOODWILL 18. B&
RMB’'000
AEETFT
COST AND CARRYING AMOUNTS EUF&REEEfE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and RZEZTF—A—H ZT=ZT+=A
1 January 2021 =t+—HBERZZE=Z—F—H—H 1,519
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 26) WiE—MFRa#at2e) 29,330
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27) HE—RFRAREZ27) (1,519)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 29,330
Impairment testing on goodwill EEHRERH
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group completed F@i:g:_%—kiﬂ E"’: A1k
the acquisition of Jiangsu Wanhao Property Management Co., Ltd. FE - $%@mﬁkﬂﬂ%}l%%%%¥
(“Jiangsu Wanhao”) at a consideration of RMB47,000,000, which FRBARAR (CIHARD) - KiER
resulted in the recognition of goodwill of RMB29,330,000. RERAKA47,000,0007T * EL#
T B AR29,330,0007T ©
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group disposed RBE-_F-—F+=-A=+—H
of the entire equity interest in Tianjin Hongsheng Property J}:iﬁi\ ’ 7*"%@ HETHERFAN %
Management Co. Ltd., (“Tianjin Hongsheng”). The goodwill with ERBBEMEBIHHR AR (R
carrying amount of RMB1,519,000 was derecognised and included MRER )RR o EEE{E%E"}\EM
in the determination of loss on disposal of a subsidiary. 1,519,000 T M B AR I HEGR -~ WD

SHEHEME AR AT o
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BRI (B

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

18. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 18. BHE(E)
For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group’s goodwill BT REMTE  AEBEEBS O
acquired through the business combination is allocated to the BEOMERES IR AREES
subsidiary which was regarded as a cash generating unit (‘CGU”). BA(REEEEN]) OHEBRR - 17
The recoverable amounts of CGU have been determined on the CEABEMMHITRESE  REFTE
basis of value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations use EAEEREE - MEHAER - AR
cash flow projections based on financial forecast approved by the BEEEDEHNSFRHCEEF
management of the Group covering a 5-year period (2020: 5-year SFHD R MIBRREE -
period).
Goodwill allocated to the CGUs and key assumptions used in AEHSHRECEEEMNNHERTE
calculation of recoverable amounts of the CGUs are set out below: SHeEEBEMNATRESEEERE
s
As at 31 December 2021 R-_ZT-—F+-F=+—8H
Annual
revenue Terminal Pre-tax
growth rate growth rate  discount rate
CGU Principal activities Goodwill (Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
REEEBEN FTEER HE  KEFERE KERRE BRIRE R &
(FMizEa) (Bt &Eb) (MizEe)
RMB’000
AREFT
Jiangsu Wanhao Provision of property 29,330 6.5% 3% 16.4%
&SR management services
R ETE R
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZZEF+-—A=+—H
Annual
revenue Terminal Pre-tax
growth rate growth rate  discount rate
CGU Principal activities Goodwill (Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
ReEEEN FEEK E WETFERE KB R TATREER &
(ff5Ea) (Hf3ED) (fg5Ec)
RMB000
ARWFr
Tianjin Hongsheng Provision of property 1,519 2% 2% 15%
PAE 12 management services
RV EE LIRS
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B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE T —F+_fF=+—HBItEE

18. GOODWILL (CONTINUED) 18. HE (@)

Notes M5

(a)  Annual revenue growth rate is based on the existing charge rates (a) FEURFEERUBEKRERLY
and revenue-bearing gross floor area of the properties. ¥R EEEERAEE -

(b)  Terminal growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth (b) KEBEEERERTDRIBEHEBITEERSE
forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate BEE - BABBHABITEZ T
for the relevant industry. REERE -

(c)  The management of the Group considered market and industry (c) AEEEREETHEERBEER
data to develop the weighted average cost of capital for the value- FINEFHERKAREE BT SR
in-use calculation. TTEEE -

The management of the Group determined that there is no AEBEEEEEAMEFEANRE

impairment of the CGU containing goodwill for the acquisition of XBUWENENIR S EE B I ER

business during both years. The management also considered that B ERBENTRR  EARKROEM
any reasonably possible change in any of the assumptions would SEARYHETGEHFEN TR
not cause the recoverable amount of goodwill below its carrying Bl FEENERMEE -

amount.
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ESRHMEBEWFIE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ERTEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARETIT

Trade receivables B 5 EWFIE 52,890 30,983
Less: allowance for credit losses W EEEBERE (4,915) (1,760)
47,975 29,223
Other receivables: HAb pEUMGRIA -
Refundable deposits (Note a) ALRER S (Wita) 38,454 -
Deposits (Note b) =& (Witb) 774 936
Prepayments TEFRIR 9,027 3,142
Payments on behalf of residents REPRFEEC)

(Note c) 5,000 3,052
Advances to staff MBI #5R 5,210 1,213
Others Hip 3,667 205

Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (1,332) (525)

60,800 8,023

Total trade and other receivables 5 R EMEW R IEA S 108,775 37,246

Notes: MEE -

(a)  The amounts represented refundable deposits in relation to a sole (a) ZELEEEEFITINBR/E
agency services agreement entered by the Group (Note 20). REHEAEN TR SRS (s

20) °

(b)  The amounts represented the deposits paid for staff quarters,
Point of Sales machines and tendering activities. The deposits (b) HRELHEEREIBES TEHR
are refundable in the next twelve months at each of the end of R EEEHYNNIRS  c RE
the reporting period and therefore the amounts are classified as MEHK - HEAURAKRKR+ @A
current assets. WIRE  AhZEHBEHEARDY

(c)  The amounts represented the amounts paid on behalf of residents
to the utilities service providers for the services provided. (c) ZELBEAREPEIKERGHE
P BE P HR (AR TS S B BRI -
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Property management service income is generally required to be
settled by property owners and property developers on the date
upon issuance of demand note.

The Group generally grants a credit period of 30 days for its
property developer related services and value-added services to its
third parties.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, before the
impairment allowance presented based on the date of demand note
issued:

B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ET-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

19. B RHMEWFEGE

MEEBERBUABEARERDE
RERNKEIMEEARNEE -

A6 B E E g K Y X R ARR IR
NIBERBE TE=IT30RNEE
Hi o

AT BB 5 RNGRIA (RRE R AT &
R DERABEFLAHZ
Bl -

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ERTEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#FT ARBTIT

0 to 60 days 0260k 23,435 22,203
61 to 180 days 612180k 8,680 3,590
181 to 365 days 181%365K 7,455 3,444
1to 2 years 15224 11,590 1,103
2 to 3 years 2E3F 1,099 20
Over 3 years HBiA3EF 631 623
52,890 30,983

Impairment assessment on trade receivables subject to ECL
model

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies
internal credit rating for its corporate customers. The debtors with
significant balances are assessed individually, and the remaining
debtors are grouped under a provision matrix based on shared
credit risk characteristics and are assessed collectively, by
reference to past default experience and current past due exposure
of the debtor and adjusted for forward-looking informations that is
available without undue cost or effort.

EFRMFEBEREAARNES BK
IR YR E R A

ERAEEEERREEN D
AEBREDERF R AER
& HEERGEHRNEAETES
FHh - ESREBARRBRERRER
BEHEANKRERRARER - £2F
BEEH AR OZ R NE AT R E R
N B R B P AN S S5 ) BN AT RS 0 48
FEE AT L E R KRR Y -

EESEERBRAE —Z-—FFH
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BRI (B

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. B 5 K H Mt EWFEIE (&)

174

(CONTINUED)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables subject to ECL
model (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates (which are determined for each ageing
category of trade receivables by using the estimated actual
loss proportion and the transferring rate (which represented the
proportion of trade receivables that may be received in next
financial year)) over the expected life of the debtors and study
of other corporates’ default and recovery data (in which the
comparables companies are principally engaged in the provision
of property management services in the PRC and in opinion of
the directors of the Company, are the major market players in the
industry) and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted economic growth rates in the
PRC, which reflect the general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate) that is available without undue cost or
effort. Such forward-looking information is used by the management
of the Group to assess both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date. The Group rebutted the
presumption of default under ECL model for trade receivables over
90 days past due based on the historical continuous settlement
by the trade debtors with the Group. Large number of customers
with insignificant balances are assessed collectively based on
provision matrix based on historical credit loss experience adjusted
by forward-looking estimates. Individual customers with significant
balances are assessed individually for the credit risk based on
their probability of default and exposure of default. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by the management of the Group to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19.

(CONTINUED)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

Impairment assessment on trade receivables subject to

ECL model (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recognised
impairment allowance of RMB3,267,000 (2020: reversal of
impairment allowance of RMB405,000), respectively, on ECL

based on the provision matrix.

The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ET-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

B R HMEWREGE

ZHAFEBEEARRNES ER
FRIE YRR FR A (D)

HE T -+ -_A=t+—HItFE
B AEERBEEBEHERREBREE
ERERRMEARES,267,0000(ZF
ZEF  FER AR AR 405,000
JT) °

TERBTEREBCIENE Z R
RERANEHBHREEBRRNE

approach: g
Lifetime ECL
(not credit-
impaired)
S
FEEE
(REEERE)
RMB'000
ARETFT
As at 1 January 2020 RZZZTF—H—H 2,165
Reversal of impairment losses BRERREEE (405)
As at 31 December 2020 and RZZEZZTF+A=+—8HK 1,760

1 January 2021 T —F—HF—H
Impairment losses BEREE 3,267
Written off B (112)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 4,915
EEEEZERERAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
B R R et (A&

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. B 5 K& H f fE WK E ()

(CONTINUED)
Impairment assessment on trade receivables subject to ECL THRACEEBREXNARNE S EK
model (Continued) FRIE AR A ()
The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure TREHEBLAEEEENEERR
to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables that are assessed RRiE IR LR T A AE 5 EBGR
collectively as at the end of the reporting period: IBHBEHEERENER
Loss allowance (lifetime not
Expected loss rate Gross carrying amount credit-impaired)
BHEEE BRAR FEREGILEERR
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
E--F 3 —E--f it 3 E--f 2
tZh +=A tZh TZA TZh TZA
=+-H =t-A =t-H =t-A =t-H =t-H
RMB000 AMB 1000 RMB’000 AMB 00O
ABEFL  AREFT  AREFT  AREFI
Aged 0to 30 days FER0Z0K 1% 1% 15,837 14,976 158 150
Aged 31to 60 days HRER31 260K 2% 2% 7,596 7,227 152 145
Aged 61to 90 days HRE61 290K 6% 6% 4,328 1,175 260 70
Aged 91 to 180 days HRER912180K 10% 10% 4,352 2,415 435 241
Aged 181 to 365 days BRI 1812365 15% 15% 7,455 3,444 1,118 517
Aged 110 2 years BiR1Z2E 16% 16% 11,590 1,103 1,854 177
Aged 210 3 years FRiR0Z3F 37% 35% 1,100 20 407 7
Aged 310 4 years FRiR3Z4E 50% 50% 202 219 101 110
Aged 4105 years RiR4ZHT 85% 85% - 404 - 343
Over 5 years 5 E 100% 100% 430 - 430 -
Total &t 52,890 30,983 4915 1760
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

MR MR (B

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ET-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

20. FEWREES A

Maximum aggregate amount
outstanding during the year

FEEREERSLALHE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--% —Z-FF —E--F —Z-FF
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ANEETT
Trade nature g5%E
Fellow subsidiaries EELEVNG 104,662 77,320 104,662 94,468
Non-trade nature FESUE
Fellow subsidiaries (Note) BE =S E) 1,614 11,328 51,163 117,153
Total st 106,276 88,648
Note: The amount mainly represented the refundable deposits (the Mz : ZEEXTERAEFRERZR

“Deposits”) paid by the Group to its fellow subsidiaries. During
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group
entered into several sole agency services agreements (the
“Agreements”) with its fellow subsidiaries, pursuant to which
the Group agreed to provide agency services to the fellow
subsidiaries, by sourcing potential purchasers and providing
assistance in entering into sales contracts with buyers with
respect to unsold car park spaces developed by the fellow
subsidiaries (the “Agency Services”).

Pursuant to the Agreements, the Group is required to pay the
Deposits up to the total minimum sales price of the car park
spaces to be sold under the Agreements. Upon completion
or termination of the Agreements, the remaining sum of the
Deposits in respect of unsold car park spaces, if any, will be
refunded to the Group in full.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a fellow subsidiary
became an independent third party of the Group, due to
the change in its shareholder. As a result, the balance of
the Deposit amount to RMB38,454,000 due from that fellow
subsidiary was transferred to “Refundable deposits” included
in “Trade and other receivables” (Note 19).

MEBARS MM RERS ([1Z
%) - REIE2021512831H
N2020F12A31HIEFE - A
EEEEFRWE QAR LB
BRAERS = (TR - B
It ANEERE [ R R E A A
RARIPIRTE - LA BY R R B
ARFHAENRE L EEMD
CEECERNREEFRIIHES
BRERED -

REZHZ  AKREAXNEZS
EzpEA NBERENERLL
RIEHEESRE - NRFHHT
PR bR - BREIAREHEMZ
meBnRWE) B2BURETA

&H -

REE2021F12A8318 -4
E - ARREE  —RRARHE
NEIRABRNEBMOBILE=F -
SN A A EN = PNGIL:0F 774
SHEH AR 138,454,000 T =
(85 REMBEWR]PO[ATRE
Bd ] (FE19) »

EESEZRARAE

—E-—F5H
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

MR (R)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 20. FEWEE S AR

(CONTINUED)

The Group generally grants a credit period of 30 days for its NS E m) HLRAE 7 IR Y R 3 AR
property developer related services and value-added services B AR 75 S 35 (B AR T Iy — AR X T30 &Y
to its related parties and no credit term granted to related parties FEH - mmEEsREmEEER
for its provision of property management services in which such B UAEHRTEESR E4h6E
income is generally required to be settled upon the date of BRABERELABEAHER -
issuance of demand note. The following is an aging analysis of AN Rtk B B A B2 51/ FE Uk &
trade receivables from related parties presented based on date of 78 SRIBHBRE AT -

demand note:

2021 2020
—B--F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHFT ARHETFT

0 to 60 days 0Z260X 14,166 11,299
61 to 180 days 612180K 17,762 16,624
181 to 365 days 181E2365K 19,047 17,660
1to 2 years 1224 45,258 29,524
2 to 3 years 2534 8,429 2,213
104,662 77,320
The Group applied simplified approach to provide the ECLs ZK%@E}% %ﬁ{tﬁiﬁﬁl%ﬂﬁ%%&
prescribed by HKFRS 9. The impairment methodology is set out in R EL ETEHE"]}E/HHTE BEBs
Notes 4 and 19, respectively. A o BB IED BB 4 K
190
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES

21.

(CONTINUED)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses the
internal credit rating to assess the impairment for its related parties.
The directors of the Company considers that there is no significant
ECL recognised for the trade receivables from related parties
based on historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
(for example, the current and forecasted economic growth rates in
the PRC, which reflect the general economic conditions of the real
estate industry in which its related parties operate) that is available
without undue cost or effort. The Group rebutted the presumption
of default under ECL for trade receivables from related parties
that over 90 days past due because these related parties are the
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries of Beijing Kongkun Weiye Real
Estate Development Company Limited (“Hongkun Weiye”), which
have no history of default and continuous partial settlement of these
counterparties as well as, considering the financial capability and
good credit rating of Hongkun Weiye. The directors of the Company
consider that the default risk is low based on their probability of
default and exposure of default.

The Group’s non-trade amounts due from related parties as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 were unsecured and interest-free.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances carry interest at variable rate with an average
interest rate of 0.35% (2020: 0.3%) per annum.

B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

20. FEUREEE S FRIE ()

21,

ERAKEEERREEN—HD
REEERAAEE ARG ERE
7T EVRE o RIRES A TR F O E
SEEMBEAE  YHERMHBG
LA SE RS R BTIE A (B
R EE R RIERAEEIERE - kR
THRETREZMERMETRNE
BEERIELREE  ARAEER
RAZMBARE S RUEFIBLESE
REMEEBR - ANLERET S
B EREEREER AR (S
EZE DM B QRS R RN B AR
(RERARLBENESL) MIEEFERS
HFFENRDEE  BERIRHE
ENMBENRRIFEEFE KK
%] HE D S A 8 B R B OO0 K MY B UK 8 2
TEZFAREEREEERREN
MEE - ARAREFEAR/REEEY
AR RENRKR - HEEORRE
1K »

RZEBEZ—FR_EB_ZFE+_A
=+—8  AEEHREKKEQRE
ZESFEABEEALEE -
IRITERRES

IRITHEBRIRDTEFEETE - FHIFEF
R H0.35%(ZFE=FF : 0.3%) °

EESEZRARAE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

MR (R)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-_T-_—F+=-A=+—HLLEFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 22. BZRHEMEAGRERENE
=

LIABILITIES
(a) Trade and Other Payables (a) BSHNREMERKIA
2021 2020
—E-—=5 —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AREFT ARBFT
Trade payables 2 ZENFIE 36,987 37,769
Other payables: EAFE A
Receipts on behalf of residents  RR{EF UK (a) 11,948 8,437
Deposits received Blkize (b) 34,208 50,022
Accrued staff costs JEETE TR 14,989 15,645
Accrued contribution to social  FEFH R KERE
insurance and housing NI
provident funds 7,830 4,970
Other tax payables EfhERE 3,269 6,899
Accrued expenses fERTRISL 6,942 1,456
Other payables E At T FRIE 546 276
Total other payables Hib eI 79,732 87,705
Total trade and other payables & 5 & E{h fER ZIBHERE 116,719 125,474
Notes: B3
(a) The balances represented the receipts on behalf of (a) #HEHERLEEP WK R
community residents to settle the utilities bills from utilities TH o RS EKEHERY
suppliers. IKEEEES o
(b)  The balances mainly represented by the utility, interior (b) HHBIESEAZIREPK
decoration and rental deposits received from the property- DM ARSYE RATRER
owners and residents. The deposits received are repayable AERs - CDWikSERE
on demand and accordingly the amounts are classified as kg ANZEZENE
current liabilities. HAERHEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(a) Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The credit period granted by suppliers to the Group
ranges from 30 days to 90 days during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020. The following is an aged
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

22,

P F R M (48)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE T —F+_fF=+—HBItEE

ESRAEMEAREARENE
& (%)

(a) BHRAMENFIAG)
PHEE - (3
(o) (&)
REEZT-—FR-FZ
TE+-A=t+-ALA

EOBETAEEMHERNGE
EHNT30RKZEIOK - LT

date at the end of each reporting period: ERNEREHARENREER
HE23ME 5 EMNRIBENR
BT
2021 2020
—BC—F —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FrT ARMFT
Within 1 year 16" 29,523 37,271
1-2years 18224F 7,121 147
2 -3 years 2E3%F 73 148
Over 3 years 3FLE 270 203
36,987 37,769

HEEBERERLE —T-—F5H
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI (B

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities represented the advance from
customers for property management services, property
developer related services and value-added services. The
payment terms vary and depend on the terms of the Group’s

22 BESRHMEARERENE
& (&)

(b) BHAME

BRABEEREMXEEREN
BEPEHK - MEREHABERY
RIBERT - XHEREEBER
FAREBENYEE LR A LOIE

property management services contracts. FTE o
The movements in contract liabilities are as follows: aRaEnEesnT
2021 2020
—E—F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARYMTFT AREFT
At the beginning of year REA] 67,949 60,236
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 27)  H&—RT AR H:727) (2,536) -
Receipt from customers upon RERNFIMEETE
entering property management A R B P UG
contracts during the year 295,339 198,381
Revenue recognised that was RETFAELBE
included in the contract liabilites 45 &K 2 MERULES
balance at the beginning of the
year (56,783) (49,759)
Revenue recognised during the year K4 RIERER R FE
that was related to receipt from BRI &0 ]l
customers in the same year (222,767) (140,909)
At the end of year RER 81,202 67,949

When the Group receives advanced consideration from
customers before the property management service activities
commence, this will give rise to contract liabilities, until the
revenue recognised on relevant contract upon provision of
property management services.

ERKERNYXEERSEEMA
AT R FE PR BN KER -
EERNAE  EERHUMEE
B IRISIR AR & AR S

FrE & WREBRT N —F R

All contract liabilities are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

P F R M (48)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE T —F+_fF=+—HBItEE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES 23. HE&SE
2021 2020
—B--F —EETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHFT ARHETFT

Non-current JERH 180 16
Current RE 538 968
Total st 718 984
2021 2020

—E-—F TECTF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT AR¥TT

Minimum lease payment due: SEBEMNREENT ¢
— within one year — 1R 541 1,025
— more than one year but not — VLA LETEBB2F
exceeding two years 68 16
— more than two years but not — 2 LA LB EBIBSF
exceeding five years 136 -
745 1,041
Less: future finance charge W RRBMEER (27) (57)
Present value of lease liabilities HEAGEMNEREAE 718 984
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

BRI (B

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 23. HEEEE

184

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ERTEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARETIT

Present value of lease liabilities: HEBBNIRE :
— within one year - 1FR 538 968
— more than one year but not — 1FLAEBETBIE2F
exceeding two years 62 16
— more than two years but not — 2F LA EBTRBIBSE
exceeding five years 118 -
718 984

The Group lease various properties to operate its business and
these liabilities were measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not yet paid.

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to
its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the Group’s
treasure function.

Extension options are included in certain lease agreements entered
by the Group. Certain periods covered by the extension options
were included in these lease terms as the Group were reasonably
certain to exercise the option at the lease commencement date.

The total cash outflows for leases including the payments of lease
liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2021 are RMB1,873,000
(2020: RMB1,033,000).
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

= =
B mRME(E)
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-—ZT-—F1-A=t+—RALFE
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, BB
Details of movements of authorised and issued share capital of the RARVEE REBITRANEEFIEW
Company are as follows: T
Number of shares Share capital
REEE [REN
HK$ RMB 000
BT ARETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &/%0.01/8 LAY @A
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2020 \_g_—\'i A—AH 39,000,000 390,000
Increase on 17 February 2020 RZZ-ZF-A++H
20 461,000,000 4,610,000
At 31 December 2020, 1 January W-Z-T&HE+-A=+—H
2021 and 31 December 2021 :Z:—¢ A—BEK
—E-—F+=ZR=+—H 500,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: E',ﬁ" &ﬁ;‘iﬂﬁ%ﬁ :
At 1 January 2020 RZZ=TF—-H—H 10,000 100 -
Issue of new shares upon initial RER ARSI TR
public offering 100,000,000 1,000,000 900
Capitalisation issued of shares BARETRGD 299,990,000 2,999,900 2,701
Exercise of over-allotment option 1 T{#BREACAHE 5,310,000 53,100 49
At 31 December 2020, 1 January R-ZT-ZF+_-_A=+—H "
2021 and 31 December 2021 B 2 =03
—E-—F+-A=1t—H 405,310,000 4,058,100 3,650
All new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in all BTN ERE A EER A IR =
respects. ke o
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MR (R)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

25. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 25. REEEHFMEEEENHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRAMAEERETHAEEEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash WEE)  BRERSRIFRSEH - /@
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for BEHMEAMNABRRERED K
which cash flows were, or the future cash flow will be, classified in REBEREFNAEENGERS
the Group’s consolidated statements of cash flows from financing MEXRASBEARMETHMBHRESR
activities. EMATLE-
Non-cash changes
FRo8E
New
At Interests lease At
1 January Financing on lease during  Acquisitionof 31 December
20%1 cash flow liabilities theyear  asubsidiary 20;1
ZBz-f i HEER Eh bE-8  —3--f
-A-A ReHE ZHE & WEAY t=R=t-H

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  AR®TR  ARWTR  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARKTR

(Note 26)

(H3t26)
Lease liabilities HEERE 984 (1873) 65 1,300 22 718

Non-cash changes
Ei35% 0 1)

New Non-trade
At Interests lease Accrued amounts At
1 January Financing on lease during share due toffrom 31 December
2020 cash flow liabilities the year issue costs offsetting 2020
I &t/ I
ZSI%F HE E&f EmE FEatiRin B  ZF-EF
-A-H Reing ZHE HE BATRA FEEE  TZA=T-R

AMBU0O AMBU0O AMBU0O AMBU0O AMBUOO AMBUOO AMBUOO
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARBTT  AREBTT  ARRTT  ARETI

(Note 30)
Wtz
Accrued share issue costs  [ERHRIAETAA 3,075 (12.408) - - 9,333 - -
Lease liabiliies HEERE 1817 (1,033) 109 91 - - 984
Amounts due torelated  FE(S R FUE -
parties - Non-trade #25 - (4.490) - - - 4,490 -
4,892 (17,931) 109 91 9,333 4,490 984
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

26. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 24 September 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party. Pursuant to
which the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Jiangsu Wanhao
(“Jiangsu Wanhao Acquisition”). The total purchase consideration
for the Jiangsu Wanhao Acquisition is RMB47,000,000. Jiangsu
Wanhao is engaged in the provision of property management
services. The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy
to expand its market share of property management operation in

the PRC.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the date
of the Jiangsu Wanhao Acquisition was as follows:

MR MR (B

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
BE_ET-_—F+_A=+—HIEE

W B — FEI B B A

RZE-_—FNA-+MHE » A£EH
H—BVE =R TWERE %
BOTAERBBIHEZMERY
BRAFIAI100%Ez ([ B IEHE
=]) c WETIHESNERERARK
47,000,0007C ° T#REREEEKE
PRFBREREDESERS - 2K
BAAEENMRMEETEEEMSL
BREMH—ED -

REBTIHESZAY  CHRBEER
BENDAEDT

Fair value recognised
on acquisition

RU BTN

ARE

RMB'000

AREFT

Intangible assets (Note 15) W EEWF15) 16,894
Property, plant and equipment (Note 14)  #1% « BB K :&M&E (B 14) 101
Right-of-use assets (Note 17) FEREEEMWZL17) 242
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MR 4916
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 1,868
Trade and other payables B 5 MEMPERFIE (1,809)
Tax liabilities HIEAE (76)
Lease liabilities HEBE (242)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 16) BERIEBE W Z16) (4,224)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value ERRFEEAEELE 17,670
Goodwill on acquisition (Note 18) W= (K177 18) 29,330
Total consideration satisfied by cash WEER(E 47,000

An analysis of the cash outflows in respect of the Jiangsu Wanhao

Acquisition is as follows:

YR IHESNFRSMEDTAT

RMB000

AREFT

Cash consideration ReERE (47,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired e RIRTTHEH 1,868
(45,132)

EESEERBRAE —Z-—FFH
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BRI (B

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

26. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 26. WEE—EWELQ R &)

188

In respect of the acquired subsidiaries, the fair value of trade and
other receivables acquired included trade receivables with a fair
value of approximately RMB3,186,000. The total gross contractual
amount of the trade receivables is approximately RMB3,186,000,
of which no balance is expected to be uncollectible.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the
growth and profit potential as a result of benefiting from the
growing demand in property management services and the
synergies expected to arise from the acquisition. None of the
goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for income tax
purposes.

Since acquisition, Jiangsu Wanhao contributed RMB6,288,000
and RMB664,000 to the consolidated revenue and profit for the
year ended 31 December 2021, respectively.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
year would have been approximately RMB354,340,000 and
RMB33,889,000, respectively.
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MR MR (B

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

27. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 27. HE—EKEB AT (&)

BER - —F+A-AMREERGS
(EEHS) - AEMBEIEEH100%KE
EEMESHET(IBYE=F  RES
ANR#4 200,000 ([HERZBEEE]) -

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 3 July 2021 (the
“Disposal Agreement” ), the Group disposed of its 100% equity
interest in Tianjin Hongsheng to an independent third party, for
a consideration of RMB4,200,000 (the “Tianjin Hongsheng
Disposal”).

The carrying values of the assets and liabilities on the date of REEAH EERABENREEBERT
disposal were as follows:

RMB’000
AR¥FT
Net liabilities disposed of: HERNFEE

Property, plant and equipment (Note 14) M - BRE MR (KAt 14) 37

Deferred tax assets (Note 16) EIERIIB A B (W7 16) 22

Trade and other receivables B 5 & H M EUGR 281

Amounts due from the Group JEUAS 52 B 5018 6,910

Amounts due from related parties JrE Wk A 75 ROE 2,391

Bank balances and cash RITAE R R RIA 57

Trade and other payables B 5 R EAFER A (1,551)

Contract liabilities (Note 22(b)) EHIBEM F220)) (2,536)

Tax liabilities BIREE (529)
Net assets BEFRE 5,082
Goodwill derecognised on disposal (Note 18) 1% 4% FHER I EE (177 18) 1,519
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary REE—HATEENEE (2,401)
Total consideration satisfied by cash NBEEE 4,200
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHE—HRBARMNRE KReSEMTF
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: AT

RMB’000

AR¥FT

Cash consideration BeRE 4,200
Net off with amounts due to Tianjin BT RSB IE AR R HBR (T 5E)

Hongsheng (Note) (6,910)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEMNRE RIBEEEY (57)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in = EHHE—RBRARELNRE KBS EEY

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary FRL e (2,767)

Note: Pursuant to the Disposal Agreement, the consideration payable by

RIBELERTE  EFRINOREABAR
#4,200,0007T + FE B AN S B ) FE U X
THH ARK6,910,0007CHEE - K&
BAEBEREEREERAEFZFAR
#2,710,0007T A R EE B FFIE o

the buyer of RMB4,200,000 should be net off with the amount due
from the Group of RMB 6,910,000, resulting in a net payment of
RMB2,710,000 by the Group to the buyer in respect of the Tianjin
Hongsheng Disposal.
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-ZE-_—S+-A=+—HILtEE

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXREKER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AEEEBEERNABRAEEET
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the BREUHELE  RSBBELE
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and R SRR IR R A R KB -
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged AEBEERBEREEZE S -_—FK
throughout the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. T EFE+_A=t+—HILEES
RTE -
The capital structure of the Group consists of non-trade amounts REENEREERERMNAESIFE
due to related parties, share capital and reserves. BRI ~ IR fEE -
The Group reviews the capital structure periodically and considers AEBTFHBRTERAEBEREEER
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of RARESENERNB@ENRR - I
capital and balance its overall capital structure through the payment BIRIR AT IR S R B TTHT AR DA R B 1T 3T
of dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of new BERNERREEB T EHALEEBER
debts or the redemption of existing debts. BRiE -
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. @TH
a. Categories of financial instruments a. TR ITAEER
2021 2020
B —E-F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T AR¥TIT

Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost TRBEKATTEN S MEE 373,163 400,432
Financial liabilities cRas
Amortised cost R HR AR (113,450) (118,575)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and amounts
due to related parties. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes.

The management of the Group monitors and manages the
financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through
internal risk assessment which analyses exposures by
degree and magnitude of risks. The risks included market risk
(including interest rate and foreign currency risks), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below and remained unchanged during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021

=

E_FHFTA=THALFE

29. €@ T E(E)

b.

T RE R E IR B AR RBCR

AEENTEZSRTABEES
R E Ao FEMGRIR - FEURREE T 3K
B RITESBERS  EHRHE
b FERT IR - LA BT BRI T7 3R
H o ZESMIANFBNEM
AR -

REEEEERBANIDRRTE
AITREBIEE R AN - LERR
EREASEEESUNSRE
% ZERBPETISER (B
FEHERINERR) - EEER
KRBESER o BREMARIE
ZERBRIBEREN T WK
BE_ZT-—FR-_ZT-_FF
T-AZt+-—BLEFEHEET
o AEETEETENMNERZ
LR - DARER KB R BU R
BUEE B o

HEEBERERLE —T-—F5H
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
balances. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate lease liabilities.

The management of the Group considered that interest rate
risk of bank balances and lease liabilities are insignificant and
accordingly no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s transactions were mainly conducted in RMB,
the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries,
and its major receivables and payables are denominated
in RMB. The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate risk
arising from the assets and liabilities which are denominated
in currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entity. The majority of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions and balances are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The management closely monitors foreign currency
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 29. R T A (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. EEKREREHRRBR
policies (Continued) (58)
Market risk (Continued) iR (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) SER 2 (4)
The Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets/ RERERRATEERINERHE
liabilities are mainly bank balances and other payables at the EWEE/BEEZEARITES
end of each reporting period and the carrying amounts are as NEA e I - A AR E ST
follows: o
2021 2020
—E-—= —FE-F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARHFT ARETT

Assets BE
Hong Kong Dollars PETT 8,636 11,194
United States Dollars ETT 6,376 9,801
Liabilities afE
Hong Kong Dollars BT (1,107) (649)
Sensitivity analysis GREST
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a TE A E @Y AR 580
5% (2020: 5%) increase and decrease in RMB against PNEEFE SR FFH R 5% (—F —
the relevant foreign currency. The sensitivity rates used TE 5% MRS o TR
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably RSt ENERNSEE
possible change in foreign exchange rates. A positive number B BFTERSIE o 5| ESUR
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year BN R R A R FITE AR M
where RMB weakens 5% against the relevant currency. For a R M = S PR 5% B 338 A
5% strengthening of RMB against the relevant currency, there ]E - AR S IEEINEHES
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit = FFE - B RS 5 R YT
and the balances below would be negative. IEREARESZE A TES
HAR -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

29. €M T AE(E)

b.

S RARES A EREE

=

kA

~
Spes
~—

i

455 [ B (40)

BRI’

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ERTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AT T

Hong Kong Dollars/ BT

United States Dollars EH
Profit for the year FERHA 695 1,017
Credit risk EERK

The Group’s maximum expose to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position
at the end of each reporting period. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its
credit risks associated with its financial assets. However, the
management of the Group will consider collateral or other
credit enhancements should the need arise.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on amounts due
from related parties as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 with
details set out in Note 20. The management of the Group has
made periodic individual assessment on recoverability based
on historical settlement records, and adjusts for forward-
looking information. The Group granted a credit period of O to
30 days to its related parties. The management of the Group
consider that there is no default in repayment in the past,
the financial capability and good credit rating of Hongkun
Weiye. As a result, of the Group consider their probability of
default and exposure of default are low, and accordingly, no
impairment was recognised in respect of the amounts due
from related parties.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk with the customers, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits and credit approvals. Before
accepting any new corporate customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade balances
based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management
of the Group has taken into account the historical default
experience, contractual period of the receivables and
forward-looking information, as appropriate, for example the
Group has considered the consistently low historical default
rate in connection with payments on behalf of residents, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
other receivables is insignificant. The management of the
Group has assessed that other receivables have not had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
probability of default is insignificant.

The management of the Group considers bank balances that
are deposited with state-owned banks or financial institutions
with high credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets.
The directors of the Company consider that the probability of
default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

M F R M o (48D

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group’s management
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

All of the Group’s liabilities except for lease liabilities set out
in Note 23 are carried at amounts not materially different from
their contractual undiscounted cash flows as all the financial
liabilities are repayable on demand or within the credit period
granted by suppliers at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

c. Fair value measurement of financial instruments

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.
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30. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
Related parties balances
Other than the balances with related parties set out in Note 20, the

Group also had the following related parties balances during the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020:

BRESKE
BT KRR

B?MT?ZO?ﬁ%ZZEﬁEE ﬁ?ﬁﬂ\ ' $
‘f‘_)EJ_"I' Htirﬁfﬁ_—l—@l%ﬁ@

T4
2021 2020
:g:_qi —7 —= E'E
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARHEFT AEETFT
Lease liabilities HEAR 457 818
Related parties transactions 38 53 5
During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group REE-—T-_—FR-_FT-_TF+=
entered into the following significant transactions with fellow A=+—HIIFERXN  AEFHEAE
subsidiaries of the Group as follows: HERZEZMWMEBATIEI MU TEARS :

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TT AREFT

Property management, property developer ¥I#EIE « ¥ER%R
related and value-added services 1B IR E RS 49,141 50,032
Purchase of leasehold land and building ~ BEHEE L MIETF 22,338 -
Interests on lease liabilities HEBGEZFE 56 92

HEEBERERLE —T-—F5H
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30. RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)  30. BAEHHE (&)

Compensation of key management personnel FEEEABEHN
The discretionary bonus of key management personnel during the FEERBABREE-_ZT-_—FK=
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 was as follows: Z_EF+ A=+ —BIEFENER
TBIEATT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARHFT ARHETFT

Salaries and other benefits e RHEMER 4,158 4,845
Discretionary bonus BEIEAL 672 51
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme RAREFFT Sk 608 272

5,438 5,168
The discretionary bonus of key management personnel is TRERABNNBEAIZSEBEA
determined by reference to the performance of individuals and RARTIZBEETE -

market trend.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI (])
For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+-_A=1T—HILFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

At the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries:

31. MBARFHE

RARERH  ARRRTHIKHEA
AR B &M AR

Place and date

of incorporation/ Registered/lssued  Equity interest attributable
Name of company establishment and paid-up capital to the Group Principal Activities
ARER KL/ B dfEx,/ BRT rEBELRE TEEH
WERAH RARER
2021 2020
“B--% CZTCEZF
Directly held:
ERERE
Ye Xing Holdings Limited BVI usDo.01/ 100% 100% Investment holding
EEERBRAT 4 April 2019 USD0.01
EBRAES 0.01%1/ 100% 100% REER
—Z—-/EMANA 001%7T
Indirectly held:
FIEHE -
Ye Xing (HK) Holdings Limited HK HKD10,000/ 100% 100% Investment holding
BEEB)ERERAR 12 April 2019 HKD10,000
Bk 10,0007,/ 100% 100% REER
“Z-AEMATZH 10,0007
EREERANEERBRARAWZ) The PRC RMB31,625,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
Beijing Hongkun Ruibang Property 18 June 2003 RMB30,000,000 management services
Management Company Limited* (Note)
hE ANRH31,625,0007,/ RENZERRE
ZZT=EXATNA AK30,000,00070
ERBEMEERERAR () The PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
Beijing Hongkun Property Management® 16 July 2010 RMB5,000,000 management services
(Note) i AR 5,000,007,/ RENZERRE
ZE-ZFELATRE ARKES5,0000007
EARRNERBERAR W) The PRC RMB500,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
Xianghe Hongkun Property Service 25 April 2011 RMB500,000 management services
Company Limited* (Note)
e ANEH500,0007T,/ RENZERRS
“2—4MAZTRA ARH500,0007T
RARASANERBERAR W) The PRC RMB500,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
Dongfang Hongkun Ruibang Property 11 October 2011 RMB500,000 management services
Service Company Limited* (Mote)
hE AR ¥500,0007T,/ RENZERRE
“E2—%+A+-H AR #500,0007T
HEEEEZEREBRAR —Z-—F5R 199
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31. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31. MiBDAEEE)

Place and date

of incorporation/ Registered/lssued Equity interest attributable

200

Name of company establishment and paid-up capital to the Group Principal Activities
ARER FMRIL/ B HfEx,/ BRT FEBELRE TEEY
WHRAH RBREE
2021 2020
B CZEZ-EE
HETIMEERERAR(WH) The PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
Yichang Zhongxiang® (Note) 21 November 2012 RMB500,000 management services
el ARH3,000,0007, REEMFER RS
S AR#500,0007
KERE W) The PRC RMB5,000,000/ N/A 100% Provision of property
Tianjin Hongsheng* (Note) 27 December 2013 RMB5,000,000 management services
el AR ¥5,000,0007,/ RENZERRE
T =ETCACHA AK#5,000,0007
BROLRBEERERARW R The PRC RMB3,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
Hongkun Business Management Company 17 December 2008 RMB3,000,000 management services
Limited* (Nofe) HhEl AR 3,000,007, RENZERRS
ZET\ETCATHER AREES3,000,0007T
IRERACRELERERAAHZ)  The PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
Hongkun Valley* (Note) 18 February 2016 Nil management services
HE ARH5,000,0007T, REEMFERRS
T FZAT\H z
FIRERROXECERERARHZE)  ThePRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% 100% Provision of property
Cloud Era Enterprise Operation 19 February 2016 Nil management services
Management Company Limited* (Nofe) AE#5,000,00070,/ REMEERRE
ZZ-FZRTNA E
RERRERNEERERAA D) The PRC RMB1,000,000/ 60% 60% Provision of property
Chengde Hongkun* (Note) 21 July 2020 Nil management services
e AE1,000,0007T, RENEERRS
ZECEELACTA z
IHERWE) The PRC RMB5,000,000/ 100% N/A Provision of property
Jiangsu Wanhao* (Note) 24 September 2003 Nil management services
ZET=FAR=TMA AK¥S0000007,/ REEMFER RS
Z
* The English name is for identification purpose only. * B ETBERER -
Note: These companies were registered as a limited liability company Mz : ZEQARTEZMABREE

in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.
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33.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had non-cash
addition to right-of-use assets RMB1,300,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the consideration
payable by the buyer of Tianjin Hongsheng of RMB4,200,000 should
be net off with the amount due from the Group of RMB 6,910,000.

On 30 June 2020, the Group entered into an offsetting agreement
with Hongkun Weiye, a fellow subsidiary, pursuant to which the
non-trade amounts due from fellow subsidiaries (included in
amounts from related parties) of RMB4,490,000 had been settled by
offsetting with the amounts due to fellow subsidiaries at aggregate
amount of RMB4,490,000 as at 30 June 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, CAPITAL
COMMITMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities or capital commitments.

32.

33.

B R (E)

For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE—E—-—F+-A=1+—HILEE

EXFRERS

HE-_Z-—%+-_A=+—H &K
EEHFERAELEFRSMIGARE
1,300,0007T °

MNEE2021F12A31 B IEEE -
REBRBRETEINHREARE
4,200,0007T - JiE B fE I 7K B2 [ 5RIE A
R #6,910,000 TR §

RIE-TFENA=1+H KAEBHH
TR 3 (— R R B A R)) ER Y
WE - R EARE RKTE A AR IE
B 55038 G A B 5 5 IE ) AR
#4,490,00070E BEHEN —T T F
NAZTEENRENBRRIZIES
T AR#E4 490,000 T AES ©

RAREE EAREE

R2021F12A31H » KREBE I £ (T
BEAKABBEREAHRIE -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. AQTWEIEEARR R
COMPANY
2021 2020
—E—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AT
NON-CURRENT ASSET EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIEE 151,590 151,590
151,590 151,590
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Bank balances and cash IRITEHREIRS 5,808 11,844
5,808 11,844
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAG
Other payables HAbFERFIE 1,232 1,105
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note a) FETHY B 2 R 3E (T 5Ea) 1,038 2,144
2,270 3,249
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREBEEFE 3,538 8,595
NET ASSETS FEE 155,128 160,185
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARREE
Share capital (&N 3,650 3,650
Reserves (Note b) fit (M 5ED) 151,478 156,535
TOTAL EQUITY MRS 155,128 160,185
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For the Year ended 31 December 2021
HE T —F+_fF=+—HBItEE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. AT BAR R F (&)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note a: Mizta :
The amounts are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. ZERIEREER RO RRERER -
Note b: MizED
Share Accumulated
premium loss Total
BRERE AitEER &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ANREFT ANREFT ARBFIT
At 1 January 2020 W-ZE-THE—F—H 46,606 (19,014) 27,592
Issue of new shares pursuant to BEARBERITHRG
public offering 139,537 - 139,537
Capitalisation issued of shares ER(CBEITRG (2,701) - (2,701)
Exercise of over-allotment option 1T B RA A A e 7,549 - 7,549
Share issuance costs B tn B4 TR AN (11,496) - (11,496)
Loss and total comprehensive FEBBRE2ERAZEE
expense for the year - (3,946) (3,946)
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-EF+-_A=+—H 179,495 (22,960) 156,535
Loss and total comprehensive FEBBRLEHEMASEE
expense for the year - (5,057) (5,057)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=—F+=-A=+—H 179,495 (28,017) 151,478

BEEERRERAT —T=--—FFHK 203



Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEMBHE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REXE

Year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=+—HLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—FtF ZT/\F ZF-NF ZTTF ZB--F
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFIT ARETFL ARETFTL AREFL AR¥FrT

Revenue WA 191,558 251,177 273,580 261,405 336,828
Gross profit EH 67,830 81,726 94,477 63,478 89,630
Net profit peilbEd 35,575 37,221 25,878 20,762 31,207

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES HREBE - EmkERE

As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—E2—tF ZE-N\F E-hF T=F BZ—F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT AEETT AERETT AR%FrT

Assets BE

Non-current assets EREEE 7,077 7,751 11,139 24,227 87,378
Current assets MENEE 206,698 252,561 236,272 403,574 382,190
Total assets HWEE 213,775 260,312 247 411 427,801 469,568
Equity and liabilities EnRaE

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 2,653 1,750 922 16 2,728
Current liabilities MENBE 160,354 170,960 170,428 194,423 202,271
Total liabilities mE s 163,007 172,710 171,350 194,439 204,999
Total equity MRS 50,768 87,602 76,061 233,362 264,569
Total equity and liabilites 4k A& 213,775 260,312 247,411 427,801 469,568

204







	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	財務摘要
	釋義
	年度大事回顧
	二零二一年榮譽及獎項
	主席報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級管理層
	項目概要
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年財務概要
	封底



